Government of the Peoples Republic of Bangladesh Flood Action Plan

FAP 17 Fisheries Studies and Pilot Project



FINAL REPORT

(Draft)

601 (1)

Call - FAP-17

JUNE 1994



Supporting Volume No. 6

LIBRARY

FISHERIES STUDY

BRAHMAPUTRA RIGHT EMBANKMENT

OVA Overseas Development Administration, U.K.

FAP 17



2

SUPPORTING VOLUME NO. 6

** Draft **



FISHERIES STUDY

Brahmaputra Right Embankment

man 22'

FAP 17 FISHERIES STUDIES AND PILOT PROJECT

June, 1994

Funded by ODA in conjunction with the Government of Bangladesh

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page No.
LIS	ST OF VOLUMES OF FAP 17 DRAFT FINAL REPORT	xi
PR	REFACE	xii
AC	CKNOWLEDGMENTS	xiv
AB	BREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS	xvi
SU	IMMARY	xvii
1	STUDY AREA: BACKGROUND	1
2	SAMPLING SITES	7
	2.1 Inside Sites	7
	2.2 Outside Sites	9
3	HYDROLOGY	13
	3.1 Outside Site	13
	3.2 Inside Site	16
	3.3 Impact of BRE on Flooding Patterns	20
	3.3.1 Flood source	20
	3.3.2 Flood magnitude and extent	20
4	WATER QUALITY	21
5	RIVER FISHERIES	29
	5.1 Total Catch	29
	5.1.1 Pattern of catch	29
	5.1.2 Size of catch	31
	5.1.3 Catch different between years 5.2 Pattern of Fishing	32
	5.2 Pattern of Fishing 5.2.1 Catch by gear	34
	5.2.2 Catch by gear by month	34
	5.3 Statistical Comparison of Catch Rates Inside	38
	and Outside the BRE	46
	5.4 Biodiversity and Catch Composition	49
	5.4.1 Species richness	49
	5.4.2 Catch composition	51
	5.5 Fish Migrations	53
	5.5.1 The unregulated Northern Dhaleswari	66
	5.5.2 The regulated Old Hurasagar	69

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Contd.)

Page No.

r

8

1

6	CANA	AL FISHERIES	75
	6.1	Total Catch	75
		6.1.1 Pattern of catch	75
		6.1.2 Size of catch	75
		6.1.3 Comparison of catch between years	77
	6.2	Pattern of Fishing	78
		6.2.1 Catch by gear	78
		6.2.2 Catch by gear by month	81
	6.3	Statistical Comparison of Catch Rates Inside	
		and Outside the BRE	88
	6.4	Biodiversity and Catch Composition	91
		6.4.1 Species richness	91
		6.4.2 Catch composition	91
	6.5	Fish Migrations	92
		6.5.1 Unregulated Anahula Khal	97
		6.5.2 Regulated Nandina Khal	100
		5	
7	FLOO	DDPLAIN FISHERIES	103
	7.1	Total Catch	103
		7.1.1 Pattern of catch	103
		7.1.2 Size of catch	103
		7.1.3 Comparison of catches between different years	105
	7.2	Pattern of Fishing	107
		7.2.1 Catch by gear	107
		7.2.2 Catch by gear by month	110
	7.3	Statistical Comparison of Catch Rates from floodplains/	
		beel Inside and Outside the BRE	112
	7.4	Biodiversity and Catch Composition	120
		7.4.1 Species richness	120
		7.4.2 Catch composition	122
	7.5	Fish Migrations	125
		7.5.1 Unregulated Anahula floodplain/beel	125
		7.5.2 Regulated Nandina floodplain/beel	132
8	RECO	MMENDED MITIGATION MEASURES	137
0	KLCO	MIMENDED MITIGATION MEASURES	157
9	FUTU	JRE RESEARCH REQUIREMENTS	143
REFE	RENCE	ES	147

APPENDICES

G

Appendix 1 List of fishing gears

I.1-I.2

Q

Figure No.	LIST OF FIGURES Titles	Page No.
1.1	Location of Brahmaputra Right Embankment	2
1.2	The Brahmaputra and Ganges rivers	3
1.3	Evolution of the Brahmaputra - Jamuna River system in Bangladesh	5
2.1	Location of sampling sites	8
2.2	Area elevation curves of floodplain/beel sites inside and outside the BRE	11
3.1	Seasonal variation in water depth on floodplains inside and outside the BRE	14
3.2	Seasonal variation in water levels of the Jamuna River at Bahadurabad	15
3.3	Seasonal variation in water levels of the Dhaleswari and Baral rivers	17
3.4	Seasonal variations in water level differences across Bauitara regulator and water levels in the Baral River at Baghabari, June to October 1993	18
4.1	Water quality, Anahula Beel (site NC09): outside BRE	23
4.2	Water quality, Nandina Beel (site NW21): inside BRE	24
4.3	Water quality, Anahula Khal (site NC07): outside BRE	25
4.4	Water quality, Nandina Khal (site NW20): inside BRE	26
4.5	Water quality, Northern Dhaleswari River (site NC06): outside BRE	27
4.6	Water quality, Old Hurasagar River (site NW19): inside BRE	28
5.1	Seasonal variation in the catch per unit area from rivers outside and inside the BRE	30



iii

Figure No.	LIST OF FIGURES (Contd.) Titles	Page No.	
5.2	Percentage of total monthly catch taken by dominant gears: site NC06 (outside BRE)	39	
5.3	Total monthly fishing effort per kilometre of river by dominant gears: site NC06 (outside BRE)	41	15
5.4	Scaled CPUE of dominant gears: site NC06 (outside BRE)	42	
5.5	Percentage of total monthly catch taken by dominant gears: site NW19 (inside BRE)	43	
5.6	Total monthly fishing effort per kilometre of river by dominant gears: site NW19 (inside BRE)	44	
5.7	Scaled CPUE of dominant gears: site NW19 (inside BRE)	45	
5.8	Comparison of mean monthly catch rates (kg/hr) of dominant gears from rivers inside and outside the BRE	47	
5.9	Seasonal variation in the number of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident fish species on the Northern Dhaleswari River	67	
5.10	Percentage total monthly catch of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident groups of fish from the Northern Dhaleswari River	68	
5.11	Seasonal variation in the number of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident fish species in the Old Hurasagar River	70	
5.12	Percentage total monthly catch of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident groups of fish from the Old Hurasagar River	71	
6.1	Seasonal variation in the catch per unit area from canals outside and inside the BRE	76	
6.2	Percentage of total monthly catch taken by dominant gears: site NC07 (outside BRE)	82	

y

iv

Figure No.	LIST OF FIGURES (Contd.) Titles	Page No.
6.3	Total monthly fishing effort per kilometre of canals by dominant gears: site NC07 (outside BRE)	83
6.4	Scaled CPUE of dominant gears: site NC07 (outside BRE)	84
6.5	Percentage of total monthly catch taken by dominant gears: site NW20 (inside BRE)	85
6.6	Total monthly fishing effort per kilometre of canal by dominant gears: site NW20 (inside BRE)	86
6.7	Scaled CPUE of dominant gears: site NW20 (inside BRE)	87
6.8	Comparison of mean monthly catch rates (kg/hr) of dominant gears from canals inside and outside the BRE	90
6.9	Seasonal variation in the number of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident fish species in Anahula <i>Khal</i> (site NC07, outside BRE)	98
6.10	Percentage total monthly catch of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident groups of fish from Anahula Khal (site NC07, outside BRE)	99
6.11	Seasonal variation in the number of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident fish species in Nandina <i>Khal</i> (site NW20, inside BRE)	101
6.12	Percentage total monthly catch of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident groups of fish from Nandina Khal, (site NW20, inside BRE)	102
7.1	Seasonal variation in the catch per unit area from floodplains/beel outside and inside the BRE	104
7.2	Percentage of total monthly catch taken by dominant gears: site NC08+NC09 (outside BRE)	111
7.3	Total monthly fishing effort per hectare of floodplain by dominant gears: site NC08+NC09 (outside BRE)	113

V

Figure No.	LIST OF FIGURES (Contd.) Titles	Page No.	
7.4	Scaled CPUE of dominant gears: site NC08+NC09 (outside BRE)	114	
7.5	Percentage of total monthly catch taken by dominant gears: site NW21 (inside BRE)	115	
7.6	Total monthly fishing effort per hectare of floodplain by dominant gears: site NW21 (inside BRE)	116	
7.7	Scaled CPUE of dominant gears: site NW21 (inside BRE)	117	
7.8	Comparison of mean monthly catch rates (kg/hr) of dominant gears from floodplains/beel inside and outside the BRE	119	
7.9	Seasonal variation in the number of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident fish species in Anahula floodplain/beel (site NC08+NC09, outside BRE)	131	
7.10	Percentage total monthly catch of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident groups of fish from Anahula floodplain/beel (site NC08+NC09, outside BRE)	133	
7.11	Seasonal variation in the number of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident fish species in Nandina floodplain/beel (site NW21, inside BRE)	134	
7.12	Percentage total monthly catch of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident groups of fish from Nandina floodplain/beel, (site NW21, inside BRE)	135	

vi

1

么

14

T

Table No.	LIST OF TABLES Titles	Page No.
2.1	Description of sampling sites	7
5.1	Comparison of the annual catch from rivers inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	31
5.2	Comparison of the annual catch from regulated and unregulated rivers in the North Central and North West regions, March 1993 - February 1994	32
5.3	Comparison of the total catch from rivers inside and outside BRE between different years	33
5.4	Comparison of catch (kg/ha) of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident fish from rivers inside and outside the BRE between different years	34
5.5	Percentage contribution (by weight) to the total annual catch made by dominant gears in rivers inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	35
5.6	Percentage monthly catch by gear type: Northern Dhaleswari River (site NC06), outside BRE	36
5.7	Percentage monthly catch by gear type: Old Hurasagar River (site NW19), inside BRE	37
5.8	Statistical comparison of catch rates (kg/hr) of dominant gears used inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	48
5.9	Annual fishing effort by dominant gears used on rivers inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	49
5.10	Total annual number of fish species, classified by habitat preference, recorded from rivers inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	50
5.11	Percentage contributions of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident species to annual catches from rivers inside and outside BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	51
5.12	Percentage contribution (by weight) to the total annual catch by dominant species from rivers inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	52

Table No.	LIST OF TABLES (Contd.) Titles	Page No.	
5.13	Monthly catch composition (% by weight) from the Northern Dhaleswari River: outside BRE (site NC06)	54-55	
5.14	Monthly catch composition (% by weight) from the Dhaleswari River: outside BRE (site NC16)	56-57	
5.15	Monthly catch composition (% by weight) from the Jamuna River: outside BRE (site NC01)	58-59	
5.16	Monthly catch composition (% by weight) from the Old Hurasagar River: inside BRE (site NW19)	60-61	-
5.17	Monthly catch composition (% by weight) from the Karatoya River: inside BRE (site NW15)	62-63	
5.18	Monthly catch composition (% by weight) from the Jamuna River: outside BRE (site NW01)	64-65	
6.1	Annual catch from canal inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	75	
6.2	Comparison of the total catch (kg/km) from canals inside and outside the BRE between different years	77	
6.3	Comparison of the total catch (kg/km) of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident fish from canals inside and outside the BRE between different years	77	
6.4	Percentage contribution (by weight) to the total annual catch made by dominant gears in canals inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	78	
6.5	Percentage monthly catch from Anahula Khal by gear type: outside BRE (site NC07)	79	
6.6	Percentage monthly catch from Nandina Khal by gear type: inside BRE (site NW20)	80	
6.7	Statistical comparison of catch rates (kg/hr) of dominant gears used inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	89	
6.8	Comparison of annual fishing effort by dominant gears in canals inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	89	

1

r

LIST OF TABLES (Contd.) Titles	Page No.
Total annual number of fish species, classified by habitat preference, recorded from canals inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	90
Percentage contribution of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident species to annual catches from canals inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	92
Percentage contribution (by weight) to the total annual catch by dominant gears from canals inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	93
Monthly catch composition (% by weight) from Anahula Khal: outside BRE (site NC07)	94-95
Monthly catch composition (% by weight) from Nandina Khal: inside BRE (site NW20)	96
Annual catch from floodplain/beel sites inside and outside the BRE compared with sites at lower elevations, March 1993 - February 1994	105

- 7.2 Comparison of catches (kg/ha) from floodplains/beel inside and outside the BRE between different years
- 7.3 Comparison of catches (kg/ha) of riverine, migratory and 107 floodplain resident fish species from floodplains/beel inside and outside the BRE between different years
- 7.4 Percentage contribution (by weight) to the total annual 107 catch made by dominant gears on floodplains/beel inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994
- 7.5 Percentage monthly catch from Anahula floodplain/beel 108 by gear type: outside BRE (site NC08+NC09)
- 7.6 Percentage monthly catch from Nandina floodplain/beel 109 by gear type: inside BRE (site NW21) 7.7
- Statistical comparison of catch rates (kg/hr) of dominant 118 gears used inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 -February 1994

106

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

7.1

Table No.	LIST OF TABLES (Contd.) Titles	Page No.
7.8	Comparison of annual fishing effort per hectare of floodplain/beel by dominant gears inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	120
7.9	Total annual number of fish species, classified by habitat preference, recorded from floodplains/beel inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	120
7.10	Total annual number of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident fish species from different habitats inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 -February 1994	121
7.11	Percentage change in annual species diversity of different fish groups from rivers, canals and floodplains/beel inside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	121
7.12	Percentage contribution of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident species to annual catches from floodplains/ <i>beel</i> inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	122
7.13	Percentage contribution of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident fish species to annual catches from different habitats inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	123
7.14	Percentage contribution (by weight) to the annual catch by dominant species from floodplains/beel inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994	124
7.15	Monthly catch composition (% by weight) from Anahula floodplain/beel: outside BRE (site NC08+NC09)	126-127
7.16	Monthly catch composition (% by weight) from Nandina floodplain/beel: inside BRE (site NW21)	128
7.17	Breeding seasons of selected fish, inside and outside the BRE, October 1992 - February 1994	129-130

P

х

LIST OF VOLUMES OF FAP 17 DRAFT FINAL REPORT

Volume No.	Name of Reports
	Main Volume
	Guidelines
	Pilot Project Proposals
	Supporting Volumes
	Fisheries Studies
1	Tangail Compartmentalization Pilot Project
2	Satla-Bagda Polder 1
3	Chatla-Fukurhati Project
4	Pabna Irrigation and Rural Development Project
5	The Regulated Baral River
6	Brahmaputra Right Embankment
7	Chalan Beel Polder B
8	Manu Irrigation Project and Hakaluki Haor
9	Shanghair Haor Project and Dekker Haor
10	The Jamuna and Padma Rivers
11	Movements of Fish Hatchlings
	Village Studies
12	Chalan Beel Polder B
13	Pabna Irrigation and Rural Development Project
14	The Kai Project and Dekker Haor
15	Chatla-Fukurhati Project
16	Satla-Bagda Polder 1
17	Manu Irrigation Project and Hakaluki Haor
18	Manikganj District
	Special Studies
19	Thematic Socioeconomic Study
20	Fish Marketing and Prices
21	Fisheries Leasing and Access in the North East Region
22	Aquaculture Development Using NGOs and Target Group Approach
23	The Use of Passes and Water Regulators to Allow Movements of Fish Through FCD/I Structures
24	Investigation of Pesticide Residue Levels in Floodplain Fish in Bangladesh
25	Nature and Extent of NGOs' Participation in Fisheries Resource Development in Bangladesh
26	An Annotated Bibliography (1940-1992) on the River and Floodplain Fisheries Biology and Production in Bangladesh and South Asia
27	Review and Bibliography of Nutrition in Bangladesh
28	An Annotated Bibliography of the Quality and Limnology of Inland Freshwaters in Bangladesh
	Appendices
1	Fisheries Database Documentation
2	Socioeconomic Database Documentation
3	Fisheries and Socioeconomic Methods

PREFACE

The Fisheries Studies and Pilot Project (FAP 17) was funded by the British Overseas Development Administration (ODA) in conjunction with the Government of Bangladesh. The national implementing agency for the Fisheries Studies was the Department of Fisheries of the Ministry of Fisheries and Livestock. FAP 17 also reported to the Flood Plan Coordination Organisation of the Ministry of Water Resources. The project was one of a number of supporting studies of a broader programme known as the Flood Action Plan (FAP) of Bangladesh. The FAP consisted of a series of eleven major engineering studies, five of which comprised separate regional studies which aimed to identify feasible large-scale flood control and drainage projects through which it would be possible to regulate the extent of flooding during the monsoon. The engineering components were supported by a range of complementary studies, several of which were designed to address various social and environmental impacts which were anticipated to result from large-scale flood control.

FAP 17 was designed to address issues relating to fisheries and aimed to collect, analyse and interpret information with which to make predictions of the impacts of the planned flood control action upon the inland capture fisheries of Bangladesh. To do this, quantitative baseline fisheries and socioeconomic data were collected from inside and outside a range of different types of flood control projects in four regions of the country.

A total of eight FCD/I projects was studied and the results of each study were documented in a series of Supporting Volumes (Fisheries Studies) of the project Draft Final Report (see list of reports on page xi). Three further fisheries studies were completed, one of which described the fisheries of the main rivers Jamuna and Padma (Supporting Volume No. 10). The other two investigated the movements of a) adult and juvenile fish and b) fish hatchlings in regulated and unregulated rivers and assessed the impact of regulators on these movements (Supporting Volume Nos. 5 and 11). A parallel set of socioeconomic studies was carried out and the results documented in seven village study reports (Supporting Volumes 12-18). In addition to the fisheries and village studies, several special studies, mainly desk studies, were completed during the course of the project. These provided background information on fish, the environment and socioeconomics (Supporting Volumes No. 19-28). Several of these studies have been documented previously as annexes to the FAP 17 Interim Report. However, to ensure wider circulation, they were also included as part of the Draft Final Report.

One extremely important output from the FAP 17 study was the establishment of a detailed and comprehensive fisheries database which provides quantitative baseline information on inland fish resources and fisheries in Bangladesh. Fisheries and socioeconomic databases were submitted to the Government of Bangladesh through the Flood Plan Co-ordination Organisation of the Ministry of Water Resources and the Department of Fisheries in the Ministry of Fisheries and Livestock. Documentation of each database was included as Appendices 1 and 2 of the Draft Final Report.

1

xii

The present report is one of a series of eight fisheries studies which form part of the Supporting Volumes to the Draft Final Report. The principal objectives of the supporting studies are listed below.

- 1) Evaluation of the effects of different flood control measures on the production of fisheries.
- 2) Evaluation of the effects of different flood control measures on the movements and populations of fish.
- 3) Assessment of the feasibility of technical and developmental measures to compensate for or reduce potential losses to fisheries due to flood control.

Descriptions of the methods employed for field data collection, laboratory studies and analyses of data are provided in the FAP 17 Inception and Interim Reports and are presented again with some additions in Appendix 3 of the Draft Final Report.

Two taxonomic guides were used for the identification of fish found during this study. The first was Rahman, A. K. A. 1989, Freshwater Fishes of Bangladesh, published by the Zoological Society of Bangladesh. The second was Talwar, P. K. and Jhingran, A. G. 1991, Inland Fishes of India and Adjacent Countries, Vols. 1 and 2, published by Oxford and IBM Publishing Co. Ltd. The more recent guide was used to provide a systematic listing of the scientific names of fish. However, the guide by Rahman was used more widely by fisheries biologists and all Bengali names of fish used in the present report were derived from this guide. The FAP 17 database also provides comprehensive lists of local names of fish collected in each region studied.

The term "species diversity" was used in this report in its simplest sense to denote the total number of different species of fish recorded at each site. The numbers of species recorded depended on the sampling effort deployed. No doubt more species would have been recorded had more sites or gear units been sampled more often using larger sub-samples of catches. All species recorded were divided into three categories of habitat preference; riverine, migratory and floodplain residents based on distributions identified using the complete FAP 17 database. The categorisations should be regarded as provisional only. As more knowledge is gained of the ecology and behaviour of individual fish and prawn species in Bangladesh more accurate revisions to the list will be needed.

Local names of gears were used throughout the report despite considerable geographical differences in names used in Bangladesh. A list of all gears recorded by FAP 17, with local and English names, and a brief description of each, is provided as an appendix to this report.

The source of all tables and figures presented in this report, unless otherwise stated, is from data collected by FAP 17 fisheries surveys.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

This report is based on the concerted efforts of a large number of people whose responsibilities covered: field data collection; administrative support; entry of data into computers; management of databases; analyses and interpretation of results, and report preparation.

Under the guidance of a senior fisheries supervisor, fisheries biologists, directly recruited by the project or provided through temporary employment by the Department of Fisheries, were responsible for the collection of fisheries, hydrological and limnological data. Field survey schedules required the team to monitor fishing activities from dawn to dusk, 12 hours each day, with additional surveys carried out before dawn to monitor night fishing. That the team accomplished its objectives despite arduous working conditions and long, unsocial hours of work, warrants the highest recognition and is a credit to both the team and the senior fisheries supervisors, Drs. Islam and Wahab, who were responsible for maintaining not only discipline and high quality survey work but also team morale. The achievements of the FAP 17 fisheries survey teams demonstrated that it is possible in Bangladesh to obtain detailed quantitative fisheries appraisals based on the direct monitoring of fishermen's activities on water.

Administrative support staff and computer operators both in the field station and in Dhaka headquarters were responsible for the smooth running of the field programme and ensured that data were entered into the database promptly and accurately.

Mr. Asaf Hussain, senior computer programmer, was responsible for database management and programming and worked closely with Drs. James Scullion and Bernadette McCarton on data analyses. Fisheries resource assessment specialists, Professor John Beddington and Dr. Geoffrey Kirkwood of the Marine Resource Assessment Group, Imperial College, London, UK, advised on the statistical methods for the analysis of catch rates of gears which formed the basis of comparisons of fish catches inside and outside the flood control project.

Mr. Goutam Chandra Dhar, computer specialist, and a small team in Dhaka, were responsible for the preparation of the report.

Personnel contributing to the production of this report are listed below:

Dr. James Scullion	:	Fisheries Ecologist
Dr. Bernadette McCarton	:	Fisheries Scientist
Dr. M A Wahab	:	Senior Fisheries Supervisor, North Central Region
Dr. Nazrul Islam	:	Senior Fisheries Supervisor, North West Region
		Fisheries Biologists

North West Region

North Central Region

			1911 - 2222 - 1221 - 122 - 1231 - 12712 - 12		
Md. Abdullah-A	l-Mamun		A. K. M. Salim Ahmed		
Md. Ayaz Hasan Chisty			Md. Alfaz Uddin Sheikh (Short Term)		
Md. Golam Saro	war Talukd	er	Debashis Kumar Saha		
Kazi Md. Mahbu	ıbur Rahma	n	Dilip Kumar Saha		
Md. Khaled Hos	sain		Jayanta Kumar Saha (Short Term)		
Md. Mahmudun Nabi (Short Term)			Khan Mohammad Iqbal		
Md. Monir H Chowdhury			Md. Masud Akhter		
Nazim Uddin Ahmed Chowdhury			S M Nurunnabi		
Nripendra Nath Biswas			S. M. Zakir Hossain (Short Term)		
Md. Rafiqul Islam Khan			Md. Shah Alam		
S. M. Hasanur Rahman			Md. Shahabuddin Sheikh (Short Term)		
S. M. Jashim Uddin (Short Term)		Term)	Sheikh Md Ziaul Haque		
Md. Shahed Ali			Shireen Sultana Lipi		
Md. Sharifuzzman			Md. Tariful Islam (Short Term)		
Tulip Shaheen			Zeb-Un-Nesa Ahmed		
Md. Zohurul Ha	que		Md. Zia Haider Chowdhury		
Farid Ahmed	: (Office Ma	anager (Tangail Field Station, NCR)		
loinul Huda			cretary (Tangail Field Station, NCR)		

Sheikh Farid Ahmed Md. Moinul Huda Raghubir Sen Gupta		Office Manager (Tangail Field Station, NCR) Senior Secretary (Tangail Field Station, NCR) Junior Secretary (Tangail Field Station, NCR)
Md. Shahriar Hossain Md. Sakikul Islam Md. Sohel Rana	:	Office Manager (Baghabari Field Station, NWR) Senior Secretary (Baghabari Field Station, NWR) Junior Secretary (Baghabari Field Station, NWR)
Nazmul Haque Asaf Hussain Goutam Chandra Dhar Mahabubul Hasan Yousuf Kazi Rozana Akhter Syeda Mahera Nazneen Kazi Ataul Hakim		Office Manager (Dhaka, H.Q.) Senior Computer Programmer (Dhaka, H.Q.) Computer Specialist (Dhaka, H.Q.) Computer Programmer (Dhaka, H.Q.) Report Production Staff Report Production Staff Report Production Staff
Md. Samsul Alam	:	Report Production Staff

ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS

R

b. aman	Broadcast aman
BRE	Brahmaputra Right Embankment
BRRI	Bangladesh Rice Research Institute
BWDB	Bangladesh Water Development Board
°C	Degree(s) Centigrade
cm	centimetre(s)
CPUA	Catch Per Unit Area
CPUE	Catch Per Unit Effort
DO	Dissolved Oxygen
EIRR	Economic Internal Rate of Return
EUS	Epizootic Ulcerative Syndrome
FAP	Flood Action Plan
FAP 17	Flood Action Plan Study No. 17 (Fisheries Studies and
	Pilot Project)
FCD	Flood Control and Drainage
FCD/I	Flood Control and Drainage with or without Irrigation
FRI	Fisheries Research Institute
g	gram(s)
GPS	Geographical Positioning System
ha	hectare(s)
hr	hour(s)
HYV	High Yield Varieties
kg	kilogram(s)
km	kilometre(s)
m	metre(s)
mg/l	milligram(s) per litre
MIKE11	A microcomputer based modelling system for rivers and
	channels
NW	North West
NC	North Central
ODA	
PIRDP	Overseas Development Administration
	Pabna Irrigation and Rural Development Project
PWD	Public Works Datum (water level)
pH	Measure of acidity and alkalinity of water (log of
OTH	hydrogen ion concentration)
STW	Shallow Tubewell
SWMC	Surface Water Modelling Centre
t	tonne(s)
t. aman	Transplanted aman
t/ha	tonne(s) per hectare
WARPO	Water Resources Planning Organisation (previously
-	MPO, Master Plan Organisation)
μS	Measurement of conductivity of water (micro Siemens)

xvi

SUMMARY

- 1. The Brahmaputra Right Embankment (BRE) is one of the largest and most significant flood control structures in the North West Region and in the whole of Bangladesh. The embankment runs from the Teesta River in the North to the Hurasagar River in the south, a distance of 220 km. The primary purpose of the BRE was to provide protection from flooding by the Jamuna on 240,000 ha of floodplain immediately bordering the embankment.
- 2. Between October 1992 and February 1994, fisheries catch assessment surveys were conducted at fortnightly intervals on rivers, canals and floodplains/*beel* inside the BRE and outside it on comparable areas in the North Central Region which were free-flooding.

Flooding Patterns

3. There was no difference in the timing of pre-monsoon rainfall flooding of regulated and unregulated *beel*. However, the timing of first entry of river floodwaters on to regulated floodplains was delayed by 9 weeks and the flood drawdown occurred 4 weeks earlier than on unregulated floodplains. The duration of river flooding was thus reduced to only 3 weeks on regulated floodplains compared with 16 weeks on unregulated floodplains. The duration of flooding on the lowest parts of unregulated and regulated *beel* was similar but on the latter, flooding was predominately due to rainfall, while on the former there was a greater mix of rainfall and river flooding.

Water Quality

4. Seasonal variations in water temperature, transparency, pH, dissolved oxygen concentration and total dissolved solids were monitored on floodplains, canals and rivers inside and outside the BRE. With the exception of transparency in rivers, no major differences in water quality between regulated and unregulated sites were detected. However, a greater clarity of water in the regulated Old Hurasagar River indicated either a reduced contribution to its flow by the silt-laden Jamuna River or the deposition of much of this silt in front of sluice gates where water velocities were reduced at the bottleneck to flow.

You

Total Catch

20

5. Between March 1993 and February 1994, the annual catch per unit area (CPUA) from the unregulated Anahula floodplain/*beel* was 43 kg/ha compared with 7 kg/ha from the regulated Nandina floodplain/*beel*, a reduction of 81%. Major differences in gear usage between sites severely restricted statistical comparison of fish densities (see para 10). However, the substantially higher catch from unregulated floodplains/*beel* was certainly caused, to a large extent, by increased fishing effort by dominant gears such as *thella jal* and *ber jal*. The increased annual fishing effort was in turn related to a greater ingress and longer duration of river flooding.

1-

а

- 6. The annual catch per kilometre from the regulated Nandina *Khal* inside the BRE (434 kg/km) was 70% lower that than from the unregulated Anahula *Khal* (1461 kg/km). In terms of catch per unit area, the regulated canal catch (523 kg/ha) was 53% lower than that from the unregulated canal (1115 kg/ha). Statistical analyses revealed no significant difference between fish densities between canals and that the higher catch from Anahula *Khal* resulted principally from increased fishing effort by dominant gears.
- 7. The annual catch per kilometre from the regulated Old Hurasagar River (1501 kg/km) was 3.4 times higher than that from the unregulated Northern Dhaleswari. In terms of catch per unit area, the difference between rivers was substantially larger: the regulated river catch was 14 times higher than that from the unregulated river. The value of CPUA from the Old Hurasagar was similar to those from other regulated rivers in the North West Region while the CPUA from the Northern Dhaleswari was the lowest recorded in the North Central Region. Reasons for such an atypically low catch from this river remain unclear. Statistical analyses revealed that fish densities were not significantly different between rivers and that the higher catch from the regulated Old Hurasagar resulted from higher fishing effort (see para 12).
- 8. Survey periods of 17 and 19 months in the North West and North Central Regions provided an opportunity to examine inter-annual changes in catch through two flood recessions and winters during which flooding patterns differed considerably. In 1992 there was a drought while in 1993 floods were a little higher than average. Catches from floodplains, canals and rivers were lower in 1992 and this was attributed to the lower flood.

Fish Densities

9. Statistical analyses of seasonally pooled catch rates of gears used inside and outside the BRE were carried out separately for each habitat type. The underlying assumption of the method was that once differences in catchabilities between gears had been accounted for, then any further differences in catch rates inside and outside the BRE were due solely to differences in fish densities.

- 10. Statistical comparison of the catch rates of dominant gears used on floodplains/beel inside and outside the BRE were made difficult by the marked difference in gear usage between sites. Only one gear, thella jal, was used extensively at both sites where it provided 61% of the annual catch from Nandina and 24% of the Anahula catch. Because of the absence of sufficient numbers of gears common to both sites, the proposed statistical model could not be used. Nevertheless, using alternative methods, statistical comparisons of catch rates of thella jal revealed significantly higher rates inside the BRE in one out of five seasons examined; in all other seasons catch rates were similar. From the results, it was concluded that there was no clear statistical evidence of differences in fish densities between sites inside and outside the BRE and that the higher catches from unregulated floodplains/beel were due solely to higher levels of fishing effort by dominant gears, particularly thella jal and ber jal for which there was a fivefold and twelvefold increase in effort on the unregulated site. These two gears together accounted for 67% and 72% of annual catches from regulated and unregulated floodplains/beel respectively.
- 11. Statistical comparisons of catch rates of dominant gears used on canals inside and outside the BRE revealed no significant difference between fish densities. The higher catch recorded from the unregulated canal was therefore principally due to higher fishing effort. The annual fishing effort per kilometre of canal was four times higher by *dharma jal* and twice as high by *thella jal* on the unregulated Anahula *Khal*. These two gears together provided 65% and 68% of the annual catch from regulated and unregulated canals respectively.
- 12. Statistical comparison of catch rates of dominant gears used on rivers inside and outside the BRE also revealed no clear significant difference in fish densities. The higher catch recorded in the regulated Old Hurasagar River therefore resulted from the greater amount of fishing effort by dominant gears. On the Old Hurasagar the annual fishing effort per kilometre of river was three to four times higher by the three

most dominant gears: *deal* traps, *thella jal* and *dharma jal* which accounted for 59% of the annual catch.

Diversity

22

- 13. Between March 1993 and February 1994, the total annual number of fish species recorded from the regulated floodplain/*beel* at Nandina (31 species) was 38% lower than that from unregulated floodplains/*beel* (50 species). Examination of the diversity of different groups of fish showed greater adverse impacts on riverine and migratory species; riverine species were totally eliminated while the diversity of migratory species was reduced by 93%. In contrast, floodplain resident species increased in diversity by 11% on the regulated site. The severe reductions in diversity of riverine and migratory species were attributed to the substantial reduction in river flooding on regulated floodplains/*beel*.
- 14. Comparisons of the impacts of flood control on fish diversity in different habitats revealed clear reductions in the regulated river, canal and floodplain/*beel* with larger reductions in the canals (42%) and floodplain/*beel* (38%) than in the river (23%). There were also clear differences between the degree of impact of flood control on different groups of fish. On the regulated Nandina *Khal*, the diversities of riverine and migratory species were reduced by 82% and 69% respectively while that of floodplain residents was reduced by 16%. On the Old Hurasagar River, the number of riverine species was 61% lower than that on the Northern Dhaleswari while migratory and floodplain residents were reduced to a lesser degree, 15% and 3% respectively.

Catch Composition

15. Riverine and migratory species accounted for 26% of the annual catch from unregulated floodplains/*beel* compared with less than 1% on regulated floodplains/ *beel*. These included larger and higher value species such as *rui*, *mrigel* and *boal* which together provided 7% of the unregulated catch. Other dominant riverine and migratory species which were greatly reduced in abundance on the regulated Nandina site included *piali*, *fulchela*, and *chapila*. The results revealed that flood control caused by the BRE not only caused a harmful reduction in species diversity but also severely disrupted the fish community structure. This resulted principally from the loss of important components derived from migratory and riverine species but also

ph.

from major changes in the composition of the remaining floodplain resident species. At Nandina, 5 floodplain resident species, *khalisha* (2 species), *taki*, *piali* and *shingi* accounted for 69% of the annual catch. Of these, *khalisha* (*Colisa fasciatus*) and *taki* dominated the catch, comprising 27% and 20% respectively. In contrast, at Anahula there was a more equitable distribution of the catch between dominant species which included one riverine species, *piali*; 5 migratory species together accounting for 21% of the catch, and 15 floodplain resident species which provided a further 56%.

The most important floodplain residents included, in descending order of abundance, *puti*, *lal chanda*, *guchi baim*, *canchan puti*, *taki* and *nama chanda*. Prawns formed an important component of floodplain catches but were more abundant outside the BRE, where they provided 15% of the annual total, than inside it (7%).

- 16. Riverine species made negligible contributions to catches from regulated and unregulated canals while migratory species accounted for 41% of the catch from the unregulated Anahula *Khal* compared with only 7% from Nandina *Khal*. Migratory major carps, *catla*, *mrigel*, *rui* and *kalbaus* dominated the Anahula catch, providing 37% of the annual total, whereas on Nandina *Khal* only *rui* provided more than 1% of the catch. A total of 14 floodplain resident species provided 82% of the Nandina catch compared with 10 floodplain residents which comprised 41% of the Anahula catch. *Puti* and *taki* dominated catches from both regulated and unregulated canals. Other species whose relative abundances were notably greater in the regulated canal included *kaikka*, *shol* and *khalisha*. Prawns were important in both regulated and unregulated canals where they comprised 8% and 12% of annual catches respectively.
- 17. Riverine species provided 15% of the annual catch from the unregulated Northern Dhaleswari River compared with less than 1% from the regulated Old Hurasagar. Six dominant riverine species, ghaura, kajuli, piali, bani koksa (2 species) and kauwa accounted for 12% of the Northern Dhaleswari catch. Three of these, ghaura, kajuli and piali were also dominant species in the Jamuna River near the offtake points of the Northern Dhaleswari and Old Hurasagar. In contrast, migratory species accounted for 49% of the catch from the regulated river compared with 15% from the unregulated river. The greater abundance in the Old Hurasagar was due to an influx of major and minor carps during the flood drawdown. These did not originate from sampled floodplains/beel or linking rivers and so it was assumed that they migrated from other downstream areas of the Old Hurasagar catchment. Floodplain residents provided 57% and 43% of annual catches from unregulated and regulated rivers. The

most abundant species on the Northern Dhaleswari included *puti*, *bailla*, *canchan puti*, *taki*, *guchi baim* and *baral baim*. On the Old Hurasagar, three species, *guchi baim*, *puti* and *taki* were particularly abundant in catches. Prawns again formed important components of the catch, providing 8% and 12% of annual catches from the regulated and unregulated river.

Fish Movements

- 18. Reductions in diversity and relative abundance of riverine and migratory species inside the BRE were caused by blockage or hindrance to their seasonal movements between rivers and floodplains. Flood control structures reduced fish migrations in two ways. Firstly, the number of entry points to floodplains was lowered thereby concentrating fish in fewer channels where they were more susceptible to capture. Secondly, the gates of regulators were closed for extended periods during the premonsoon and monsoon.
- 19. Eight riverine and 3 migratory species moved upstream into the Northern Dhaleswari River from the Dhaleswari when rainfall runoff increased river flows in May. The most abundant species included piali, bele and fulchela but others which increased in abundance later in the monsoon comprised kajuli, gang tengra and golsha tengra. In mid-June, floodwaters from the Jamuna entered the Northern Dhaleswari and brought with them a further influx of 4 riverine and migratory species including ghaura, baghair, kauwa and chapila. At this time, kajuli increased in abundance and accounted for 18% of the monthly catch. In July, a further 6 riverine and 3 migratory species arrived from the Jamuna and Dhaleswari rivers and in August a further 3 migratory species including juvenile mrigel. During the drawdown in September and October, 9 relatively scarce riverine and migratory species appeared probably from the Jamuna River or from floodplains of the North Central Region. Most riverine species migrated out of the Northern Dhaleswari in November to return to the shelter of larger rivers during the winter. In contrast, several migratory species, notably boal and ayre, remained in the Northern Dhaleswari during winter.
- 20. Riverine and migratory species commenced major lateral migrations from the Northern Dhaleswari on to adjacent unregulated floodplains/*beel* in July, about 2 to 4 weeks after the first ingress of river floodwaters on to the floodplains. A total of 13 species entered floodplains in July; all were juveniles and most averaged less than 4 g per individual. Riverine and migratory species accounted for 38% of the peak

monthly catch in July. The most abundant species comprised *piali*, *fulchela*, *rui*, *chapila*, *katari* and *bhangan*. In August, 4 migratory species appeared in floodplain/ *beel* catches; *mrigel*, *raik*, *golsha tengra* and *boal*. Again all were fry or juveniles. During July and August, 22 riverine and migratory species entered Anahula *Khal* from the Northern Dhaleswari River. The most abundant species were the juvenile major carps *rui*, *catla* and *mrigel* which accounted for 39% to 68% of monthly catches. Such high abundance in the canal was not matched on floodplains/*beel* during the same period where they provided 8% and 5% of monthly catches. During the drawdown in September and October, 5 riverine and migratory species appeared and the most abundant species at this time comprised *fulchela*, *boal*, *mrigel*, *catla*, *raik* and *rui*, all of which were juveniles of the year. By November all riverine and migratory species had migrated from the beel and returned to rivers.

21. On the regulated Old Hurasagar, there was no major influx of riverine and migratory species from downstream rivers comparable with that recorded on the Northern Dhaleswari River during May 1993. From June to August, entry of riverine and migratory species into the river was very limited. Only 5 species appeared in June, all in very low abundance. Of these, catla, chapila and ilish probably entered from the Jamuna through the partially open gates of Bauitara regulator since all were small fry averaging less than 1 g per individual. Two other species, balichata and piali were adults and may have entered from the Jamuna, the downstream Karatoya River or both. Contributions to monthly catches by riverine and migratory fish remained low (6-17%) up to August contrasting with those in the Northern Dhaleswari which reached 76% in August. During the drawdown in September, migratory species accounted for a very large share of the catch, ranging from 92% in September to 77% in October when a peak monthly catch was recorded. This contrasted sharply with the pattern in the Northern Dhaleswari where no major increase in percentage catch of migratory species was observed during the drawdown. On the Old Hurasagar, species which predominated during the drawdown included the major carps, kalbaus, rui and mrigel and others such as chital and bata. All major carps were juveniles of the year. Catches from urani jal set on the gates and walls of Bauitara regulator in September and October were dominated by rui, kalbaus and raik but also several other species. These fish again were juveniles which were captured as they migrated upstream into the Jamuna River. The regulator effectively blocked their movement and concentrated the fish in the immediate downstream area where they were also captured by dharma jal and deal traps.

22. Movements of riverine and migratory fish from the Old Hurasagar River into the regulated Nandina *Khal* and Nandina *Beel* were extremely limited. Only two riverine species were recorded in the canal, *kachki* in June and *balichata* in September. *Kachki* was found on Nandina *Beel* in August 1993 and was the only riverine species to reach this habitat. Migratory species were recorded on Nandina *Khal* once only during the year, in September when 5 species, *rui*, *kalbaus*, *bata*, *raik* and *golsha tengra* accounted for 19% of the peak monthly catch. The four carp species were juvenile fish. In contrast, only 1 migratory species was found on the floodplain/*beel*; juvenile *mrigel* in August 1993. The substantial reduction in movements of fish from river to floodplains/*beel* was attributed to the greatly reduced ingress of river floodwaters.

Mitigation Measures

27

- 23. Within an area of 240,000 hectares impacted by the BRE, there is enormous potential for the introduction of mitigation measures to reduce adverse effects of flood control on capture fisheries and thereby increase fish production. On the basis of results from the present study and other FAP 17 studies carried out in the North West Region, several mitigation measures have been recommended for implementation in the short or near term. These relate mainly to distributaries of the Jamuna and their respective catchment areas behind the BRE. The recommended measures question a principal rationale of flood control: to convert low-lying wetlands to drier land where deepwater rice can be replaced with HYV *t. aman*. An alternative approach is recommended based on partial flood control on lowlands to allow the production of deepwater rice and wild fish. This procedure is also advocated by the North West Regional Study (FAP 2) in its "Green River" project for the lower Atrai basin. It requires fully integrated water management to increase agricultural and fisheries production and satisfy the requirements of both rice and fish.
- 24. Other mitigation measures to reduce losses to capture fisheries included improving the operation of regulators to increase fish and hatchling migrations on to the floodplain and *beel*. It is also recommended that a new design of regulator be constructed and tested on the BRE. The regulator design should take into account the needs of adult fish and hatchlings and incorporate a fish pass for upstream migrating fish.

sid.

25. Proposed mitigation measures also included rehabilitation and protection of dry season habitats such as perennial *beel*. This would involve canal re-excavation both inside and outside the BRE. Other measures involved fisheries conservation through the protection of fish populations during the dry season using *beel* as fish sanctuaries and through the establishment of prohibited fishing zones on and near regulators. In addition, several measures were recommended which related to institutional improvements mainly within BWDB. The most important of these was the establishment of an effective multidisciplinary technical assessment/planning unit in BWDB or WARPO comprising expertise from fisheries, agriculture, environment, hydrology and hydraulic engineering. The unit should be responsible for the re-evaluation of operating procedures of existing major structures and for the examination of future proposed flood control projects. Proposals for major new road or rail links which may affect flooding and drainage patterns should also be assessed by the unit.

Future Research

26. Several topics which require further research work were identified. Many of these follow on from baseline data provided by the FAP 17 studies. In relation to the impact of the BRE on capture fisheries, future research requirements were identified in three broad areas. The first focused on the need for a more detailed understanding of the movements of fish between rivers and floodplains at different stages of their life cycles and the impact of flood control structures on such movements. The second emphasised the need for detailed long-term studies running for at least five years to understand the functioning of complex floodplain fisheries in relation to biological, environmental and socioeconomic factors which influence fish populations. Quantitative fisheries data obtained from these studies, when linked with hydrological data on flooding patterns, will provide a basis for the development of a floodplain fisheries model. This can then be used as a predictive tool to advise on future fisheries management and development. The third area of research highlighted the need for detailed stock assessments of selected fish and prawns dominating floodplain catches from flood controlled areas. These studies are particularly relevant to higher elevation floodplains behind the BRE where the diversity of fish communities has decreased and a greater dependence has been placed on a small number of floodplain resident species. The current status of the stocks of these species is not known nor is the degree to which they can continue to sustain prevailing levels of fishing pressure.



BRAHMAPUTRA RIGHT EMBANKMENT

1 STUDY AREA: BACKGROUND

The Brahmaputra Right Embankment (BRE) is one of the largest and most significant flood control structures in the North West Region. Construction work started in 1957 and was completed in 1968 with funding provided by the World Bank. The embankment stretches from the Teesta River in the north to the Hurasagar River in the south, a distance of 220 km (Fig. 1.1). At least 31 regulators were incorporated over the full length of the BRE, mostly to enable water to be released from the Jamuna into what were originally distributary channels. Most of these channels have silted up due to improper operation of the regulators.

The primary purpose of the BRE was to ensure flood protection on the right bank floodplain of the Brahmaputra-Jamuna covering an area of 240,000 ha. No consideration was given to the impact on capture fisheries of the area during the design and planning of the BRE. This is a characteristic feature of most flood control projects constructed during this era, and later. Ever since embankment construction was completed, its success in flood protection has been threatened by continuous erosion problems which have resulted in the need to rebuild and set back a total of 140 km of embankment during the last 20 years. Serious breaches occurred in 1987 and 1988 and smaller breaches have occurred more recently.

In order to understand better morphological changes occurring in the river today, it is necessary to place these changes in both a geological and more recent timescale.

The Brahmaputra is one of the world's greatest rivers, covering a distance of about 3000 km and with a catchment area of about 560,000 km². An average discharge of about 20,000 cumecs and bankfull discharge of 44,000 cumecs make the Brahmaputra the fourth largest river in the world. The river rises on the northern flanks of the Himalayas close to the source of the Ganges (Fig. 1.2). It flows directly eastwards through China as the Tsangpo before turning abruptly south to enter India where it flows south west through Assam as the Brahmaputra. It then turns due south to enter Bangladesh. Until the late 18th century the river followed the course of the Old Brahmaputra, flowing south west into the southern end of the Sylhet Basin where it joined the Meghna River, and the combined flow entered the Bay of Bengal along the present course of the Meghna estuary.







In a recent study of charlands on the Brahmaputra, FAP 19 showed clearly the historical changes in the river course since 1770 (Fig. 1.3)¹. Sometime between 1780 and 1830 the Brahmaputra cut a new main course flowing directly south to form a new large river, the Jamuna, some 60 km west of its original course. The former course of the river, the Old Brahmaputra, gradually shrank until the present day resulting in a greatly reduced combined flow as it joins the Meghna. The name Brahmaputra is retained for the stretch of river north of the offtake of the Old Brahmaputra while to south the river is now known as the Jamuna. The river formed a new confluence with the Ganges creating the very large Padma River. As the Jamuna cut south it captured the Dhaleswari River and transformed it from a distributary of the Ganges to a distributary of the Jamuna, as it remains today.

The Himalayas are a young and tectonically very active mountain range formed by the movement of the Indian subcontinent under the southern edge of the Asian tectonic plate causing uplift of the Himalayan range which is consequently subject to severe natural erosion. As a result, the Brahmaputra carries one of the greatest sediment loads in the world. The combination of variable discharge and high sediment load is responsible for the highly braided pattern of multiple channels and sandbanks or *chars* which change annually. Such braided rivers are characteristically unstable and exhibit rapid rates of lateral movement.

FAP 19, in conjunction with FAP 1, recently studied the erosion rates on the Brahmaputra-Jamuna using historical maps and modern satellite images. The study found that since 1830 the river has been moving west at a annual erosion rate of about 50 m per year on the right bank and at the same time the river widened and the area of *chars* increased in proportion to this widening. A more recent average erosion rate of 100 m per year was estimated for the period 1973 to 1992 and this was expected to continue for some time in the absence of engineering interventions.

In response to the westward migration of the river and the resultant erosion and loss of land, the FAP 1 study² carried out a detailed investigation to identify engineering options which would ensure structural security of the BRE and prevent embankment breaching and external river flooding in the immediate hinterland of 240,000 ha of floodplains. In 1991, the BRE breached in several places along its length. The sealing of these breaches through a river training programme formed an important component of the FAP 1 study leading to the identification of a series of high priority engineering works to be implemented in the short-term. In the formulation of the North West regional plan by FAP 2, it was assumed that complete sealing of the BRE would be achieved³.

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

4

T



Two sections of the BRE were studied in detail by FAP 12^4 and FAP 13^5 . The most northerly reach at Kamarjani was in a tributary area where land sloped towards the Jamuna River. The second reach at Kazipur, just north of Sirajganj covered an area which sloped away from the Jamuna and which, in the absence of the BRE, was seasonally flooded by the Jamuna which connected with adjacent rivers flowing south. In this reach the BRE successfully prevented the Jamuna flooding up to 1984 and during this period there was a shift in cropping patterns from mixed *b. aus* and *b. aman* to *t. aman* which required shallow water and an expansion of HYV *boro* which was related to the increasing availability of irrigation facilities. From 1984 onwards, *aman* cultivation became uncertain because of frequent serious flooding caused by embankment breaches. Despite frequent breaches bringing Jamuna floodwaters, local fishermen reported that there had been a 50% decrease in catches following embankment construction.

FAP 17 selected the BRE as one of its flood control projects to examine the impact of this regionally important structure on fish resources in an area where breaching was not a serious problem once the embankment had been reconstructed. Concomitant socioeconomic studies were not undertaken since the project had earlier decided not to study the Tangail area on the left bank of the Jamuna which provided a "control" area for the study. A separate survey was undertaken of the fisheries of the Jamuna River⁶. Results from this study relating to catch compositions are also incorporated into the present report in an examination of fish movements and the impact of flood control structures on such movements.

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

6

June, 1994

Rivers, canals, floodplains and *beel* were sampled inside and outside the BRE at fortnightly intervals for a total of 17 months and 19 months respectively. Survey periods covered October 1992 to February 1994 inside the BRE and August 1992 to February 1994 outside it. Site selection and fisheries data collection were carried out following the procedures previously outlined in the FAP 17 Inception and Interim Reports.

2.1 Inside Sites

The area selected for study, known locally as Nandina *Beel*, was located 10 km south of Sirajganj (Fig. 2.1). The *beel* and surrounding floodplain received seasonal river flooding from a distributary of the Jamuna, the Old Hurasagar River, via Nandina *Khal*. Three sites were selected, one covering the *beel* and adjacent floodplain, the second on Nandina *Khal*, for a distance of 2.1 km from the *beel* to its confluence with the Old Hurasagar and the third on the river itself for a distance of 6.7 km upstream to its point of regulation at Bauitara regulator on the BRE (Table 2.1). Additional information on catch composition from linking rivers Jamuna and Karatoya was used in an examination of fish movements. These rivers were surveyed as part of separate FAP 17 studies 6,7 .

			Inside/Out	Size of site	
Site Code	Site Name	Habitat	side FCD	Area (ha)	Length (km)
NC01	Jamuna River	Main River	Outside	1621	7.00
NW01	Jamuna River	Main River	Outside	1650	9.20
NC06	Northern Dhaleswari River	Secondary River	Outside	169	16.05
NC16	Dhaleswari River	Secondary River	Outside	277	15.55
NW19	Old Hurasagar River	Secondary River	Inside	17	6.65
NW15	Karatoya River	Secondary River	Outside	54	6.50
NC07	Anahula Khal	Canal	Outside	6	4.78
NW20	Nandina Khal	Canal	Inside	2	2.10
NC08/09	Anahula Beel	Floodplain/beel	Outside	92	-
NW21	Nandina Beel	Floodplain/beel	Inside	175	-

Table 2.1	Description of sampling sites
-----------	-------------------------------

لك من



The floodplain/*beel* site covered an area of privately owned land where a small central area formed Nandina *Beel* whilst the surrounding area increased abruptly in height on the *beel* margin. During the winter, the whole area was planted with HYV *boro* rice and during the monsoon the lower area was left fallow whilst *t. aman* and jute were grown around the site margin.

During preliminary surveys in September 1992, informal interviews were carried out with several local farmers. Most reported dissatisfaction with the operation of Bauitara regulator which resulted in insufficient river water reaching the *beel* and consequently farmers had to resort to STW irrigation for *t. aman* cultivation. All farmers agreed that there had been a decrease in fish catch since the BRE was constructed and that the numbers of full-time professional fishermen had declined.

2.2 <u>Outside Sites</u>

Since the entire length of the right bank of the Brahmaputra/Jamuna River is embanked in the North West Region, it was not possible to locate an adequate "control" area here. Instead a group of sites on the left bank of the Jamuna in the North Central Region was selected. The group comprised three sites, one on the Northern Dhaleswari River, a distributary of the Jamuna, the second on Anahula Khal which linked the river with the third site, Anahula Beel (Fig. 2.1). In the beel, data were collected separately for a small deeper water area comprising the beel itself (site NC09) and the surrounding floodplain (site NC08). However, the two together were essentially equivalent to the sampled area of Nandina floodplain/beel (NW21). The sites in North Central Region were originally selected to serve as part of a larger group of control sites in an investigation of the Tangail Compartmentalisation Pilot Project (CPP) the results of which have been documented separately⁵. Two other sites, one on the Jamuna River and the other on the Dhaleswari River into which the Northern Dhaleswari flowed, were included in the present study to compare movements of fish in regulated and unregulated systems. The Jamuna site was located close to the offtake of the Northern Dhaleswari and formed part of a broader, separate FAP 17 study of the fisheries of the Jamuna and Padma rivers⁶.

The Northern Dhaleswari River, from its offtake point with the Jamuna, flowed 35 km south to join the larger Dhaleswari River and along its route supplied flows to three important distributaries on its left bank, the Pungli, Lohajang and Elanjani rivers. The Lohajang bisected the FAP 20 CPP area while the other two circumvented it on opposite sides. After


completion of the FAP 17 field surveys in late 1994, the link between the Northern Dhaleswari River and the Jamuna was broken completely by a new embankment forming part of the construction of the Jamuna Bridge.

The sampled site on the Northern Dhaleswari commenced at the offtake point of the Lohajang for a distance of 16 km downstream which included an additional loop on the right bank that connected with Anahula *Khal* leading into Anahula *Beel*. The *khal* continued as a separate drainage channel on the western side of the *beel* which eventually drained back into the Northern Dhaleswari. A 3.2 km stretch of this part of the canal was also surveyed in addition to the 1.6 km reach of the southern end of the *beel*. At the northern end, there was a further connection of a feeder canal linking the *beel* during periods of high river flows with the Jamuna River. This canal was not monitored.

Anahula *Beel* site consisted of a small deeper water area of the *beel* itself and area of surrounding floodplain similar to that seen on Nandina *Beel* inside the BRE. Area elevation curves were constructed for each floodplain/*beel* site inside and outside the BRE using 8"/mile topographical maps and electronic planimetry (Fig. 2.2.). The range of land heights at the two sites was very similar but the regulated floodplain site at Nandina *Beel* contained a greater proportion of higher land. Cropping patterns at the two sites were fairly similar: HYV *boro* covered Anahula *Beel* and floodplain during the winter as it did at Nandina, while during the monsoon *t. aman* and jute were grown on the higher parts of the floodplain.

June, 1994







9⁸

June, 1994

+

1

T

3 HYDROLOGY

Flooding patterns on regulated and unregulated floodplains were determined local rainfall and water levels in their nearest feeder rivers, the Old Hurasagar and the Northern Dhaleswari. The levels in these rivers were, to some extent, determined by the levels of the Jamuna River at its confluence with the Padma. In the North West Region, further drainage congestion of the Atrai River system resulted in the backing up of water levels in this river and its tributaries, including the Old Hurasagar.

Unfortunately BWDB did not maintain gauging stations an either the Old Hurasagar or the Northern Dhaleswari and therefore continuous records of water levels and river discharges were not available. The absence of water level data made it impossible to quantify accurately differences in flooding patterns on regulated and unregulated. During 1993, therefore, simple hydrological surveys were undertaken by fisheries biologists during routine fisheries assessment surveys. At each floodplain/*beel* site, water depths were measured at fortnightly intervals during 1993 at fixed points on different land heights. At the same time, the extent of the flood was recorded on sketch maps and points of entry and exit of floodwaters were noted together with directions of flow in associated canals.

3.1 <u>Outside Site</u>

Early rainfall between February and March 1993 had no impact on flooding. At this time of year water was pumped from shallow tubewells (STW) to irrigate fields of HYV *boro* rice which covered Anahula floodplain and much of the *beel*. Rainfall continued in April and resulted in the flooding of a small area on the lowest part of the *beel*.

By the beginning of May rainfall flooding to a maximum depth of 0.7 m was recorded in Anahula *Beel* but floodplains remained dry (Fig. 3.1). Runoff from the *beel* entered the Northern Dhaleswari River via Anahula *Khal*. Rainfall flooding increased slightly during May but decreased again in the first week of June when *boro* rice was harvested. In mid-June, water levels in the Northern Dhaleswari rose rapidly due to first inflow from the Jamuna River and floodwaters entered the *beel* for the first time in the year, flooding both the *beel* and lower areas of the floodplain (Fig. 3.2). In July, water levels recorded on the floodplain and *beel* were lower than in June. However, the hydrograph of the Dhaleswari River 11 km downstream from the entry point of the Northern Dhaleswari indicated that two peak floods occurred in July between fortnightly surveys of floodplains when water depth

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

13





WL = Land elevations (m PWD) at positions of depth measurements

Figure 3.2 Seasonal variation in water levels of the Jamuna River at Bahadurabad



measurements were made (Fig. 3.3). Flooding reached a peak between mid-August and the first few days in September when the whole site was inundated, including the highest parts of the floodplain. That this was the flood peak for the season was confirmed by downstream water levels in Dhaleswari River (Fig. 3.3).

The flood recession started in the second week of September and by the middle of the month most of the floodplain was again dry. However, during the first week of October the level of the Jamuna River rose and the site was again inundated. This was followed by a rapid flood drawdown and in mid-October most of the floodplain was dry. In the first week of November water remained only in the *beel* and by the middle of the month its connection with the Northern Dhaleswari via Anahula *Khal* was broken. The flooded area in the *beel* rapidly decreased during December and by mid-January the site was completely dry and planted with winter rice.

3.2 Inside Site

Bauitara regulator is a three-vent, undershot vertical lift gate through which water flows from the Jamuna to the Old Hurasagar River. Data on the operation of the regulator and records of water levels inside and outside it were not maintained by BWDB. However, the regulator was included in a separate FAP 17 study on the movement by passive drift of fish hatchlings across flood control structures⁹. During this study, observations were made of water level differences across the regulator (Fig. 3.4).

On the 12 June floodwaters from the Jamuna first crossed Bauitara regulator and entered the Old Hurasagar. At this time the gate opening were only 0.17 m. At the end of June gates were closed further but because of a mechanical fault a small gap of 0.05 m remained on each gate through which a small volume of water could pass. Under such conditions large differences in water levels across the structure occurred, accompanied by high water velocities, downstream turbulence and large hydrostatic pressure differences. Such severe hydraulic conditions have been shown to affect drifting fish hatchlings adversely and prevent or obstruct upstream migration of adult fish ^{9, 10}.

Records on gate heights indicated that all gates remained closed until the end of July but that during the first week in September they were partially opened to a height of 0.3 m. Such restrictions on the size of gate openings meant that the volumes of water discharged through the structure remained relatively low throughout the monsoon. Gate openings in early

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

-

4

T

Figure 3.3 Seasonal variation in water levels of the Dhaleswari and Baral rivers





Figure 3.4 Seasonal variations in water level differences across Bauitara regulator and water levels in the Baral River at

ell

18

Note: Vertical arrows denote dates when sluice gates were opened. The numbers refer to the number of gates opened and the

height in metres to which they were opened

T

September were probably to allow fishing operations on the downstream walls of the structure itself and in a settling pool immediately next to it. Interviews with several gear operators revealed that most were local farmers who fished on the structure for about two months each year to catch upstream migrating fish.

The Old Hurasagar flowed south for a distance of 35 km before joining the larger Karatoya River which continued south for a further 16 km to empty into the Hurasagar. Drainage congestion at this point caused by high levels in the Jamuna resulted in the backing up of floodwaters in these rivers. It is not clear how far upstream levels in the Old Hurasagar were affected by this congestion. What is certain however, is that most flooding in this area was caused by internal rainfall.

On the floodplains and beel at Nandina, early rainfall in February and March 1993 caused no flooding. During these months STW irrigation was used for the cultivation of HYV winter rice which covered most of the area. Further rainfall in April and May eventually led to flooding in a small low-lying area around the beel by the end of May but floodplains remained dry. Rainfall flooding continued through June and July with no sign of entry of river waters. In early August water levels temporarily dropped but rose again later in the month. During the last week in August river waters, for the first time, flowed slowly into the beel via Nandina Khal. Flooding reached a peak in early September when the whole floodplain was inundated for up to two weeks. The flood drawdown commenced in mid-September and by mid-October, the floodplains were dry with water remaining only in an expanded area of beel. During the second week in November, Nandina Khal lost its connection with the river and beel and residual water remaining in the beel gradually dropped leaving only a very small flooded area (50 m x 20 m) in December. In January, several small kua appeared but these were not fished until after the study ended in February 1994. Water level readings taken at various points on the floodplain showed several inconsistencies in relation to each other and, although presented in Figure 3.1 for comparison with unregulated floodplain, the data should be treated with caution. The points shown in the figure included medium high and highest areas of the site. Water level readings on lower areas showed greatest inconsistencies and were therefore not used. The sharp rise in water level recorded on 9 September, and the equally sharp decline a week later, coincided with peak levels recorded in the Baral River at Baghabari suggesting that the drainage congestion at this point may have influenced floodplains as for north as Nandina.

3.3 Impact of BRE on Flooding Patterns

3.3.1 Flood source

River flooding on the regulated Nandina *Beel* was greatly reduced so that internal rainfall caused proportionally more of the monsoon flood here than on the unregulated Anahula *Beel*.

3.3.2 Flood timing and duration

There was no difference in timing of initial pre-monsoon rainfall flooding on the lowest areas of regulated or unregulated floodplain/*beel*. However, whilst the first river floodwaters entered the unregulated Anahula *Beel* in mid-June, river flooding at Nandina did not occur until the last week in August, a delay of 9 weeks. The flood drawdown also occurred one month earlier, in mid-September, at Nandina than at Anahula where an initial drawdown occurred at the same time but was interrupted by flooding in the first week of October. The duration of river flooding was thus limited to only 3 weeks at Nandina floodplain compared with 16 weeks at Anahula but duration of the rainfall flooding in the lowest parts of both sites was the same.

3.3.3 Flood magnitude and extent

The absence of river level data and inconsistencies between readings of water levels on different land heights in the two survey areas made it difficult to assess accurately differences in flood magnitude and extent between regulated and unregulated floodplains. The greater ingress of river waters on to unregulated floodplains resulted in deeper flooding over wider areas and the duration of complete inundation of floodplains was longer (4 weeks) at Anahula than that at Nandina (2 weeks).

4 WATER QUALITY

Surface water measurements of temperature, pH, dissolved oxygen (DO), conductivity and total dissolved solids were made at sites on rivers, canals and floodplains/*beel* at fortnightly intervals using electronic metering techniques. Seasonal variations in these parameters are presented for sites inside and outside the BRE in Figures 4.1-4.6. Given that temperature, pH and DO levels on floodplains generally depend on the time of day, attempts were made to standardise times when measurements were made. However, this was not always achieved and whilst most readings were taken between 07.00-09.00, some were outside this range. Therefore data in Figures 4.1 and 4.2 also reflect diurnal changes as well as seasonal variations.

Dissolved oxygen concentrations on Anahula floodplain ranged from 1 to 4 mg/l while those on Nandina varied slightly more, from 2 to 6 mg/l. Similar ranges were recorded in their feeder canals and rivers. Previous more detailed studies carried out in Bangladesh showed that oxygen levels ranged over a 24 hour period from a completely anoxic (zero oxygen) condition near dawn to supersaturation in mid-afternoon in both open flooded fallow land and in deepwater rice fields^{11, 12}. The studies also revealed considerable vertical stratification in oxygen levels in fallow areas and rice fields with lowest concentrations (near zero) in the bottom layer and near saturation in surface layers. The effects of stratification were more pronounced towards the end of the monsoon season when amounts of decomposing macrophytic vegetation increased in decreasing volumes of water.

No seasonal trends in pH levels were detected on floodplains, canals or rivers. Values ranged from about 6 to 8, posing no danger to fish health or survival. Conductivities were lowest during the monsoon on both regulated and unregulated floodplains where they averaged about 150-160 μ S, compared with values of 130 μ S and 180 μ S in the Northern Dhaleswari and Old Hurasagar rivers. Conductivities on both floodplains increased during the drawdown and winter due to a combination of natural causes such as the decomposition of plant material in smaller volumes of water and later to the inflow of ionically-rich groundwaters pumped to the surface for the irrigation of winter rice. The same seasonal increase was observed in canals and rivers, even in the Northern Dhaleswari, which retained a greater perennial flow.

Values of transparency in the Northern Dhaleswari River decreased during the monsoon due to the increased flow of silt-laden waters from the Jamuna. In contrast, transparencies increased in the Old Hurasagar during the same period reflecting either the reduced

June, 1994

contribution to river flow by the Jamuna or the settlement of suspended silt in front of the sluice gates, both of which result from flood control. Transparencies also increased on regulated and unregulated floodplains during the monsoon which suggests that the mixing of river and rainfall floodwaters was incomplete at Anahula or that silt settled out in the feeder canal system prior to entry into the *beel*.

62

June, 1994

T





(D)





B





CR





NO





(18





Dh

5 RIVER FISHERIES

In the following discussion data were included from sampling sites on the Jamuna River and on the Dhaleswari and Karatoya rivers into which the Northern Dhaleswari and Old Hurasagar respectively drain. These data were included to assist in the identification of fish movements through the river systems.

5.1 Total Catch

5.1.1 Pattern of catch

On the unregulated Northern Dhaleswari River, lowest catches were recorded during the winter and pre-monsoon periods from December 1992 to April 1993 (Fig. 5.1). A rise in water levels in May due to rainfall runoff stimulated increased fishing activity but later rapid rises in river levels in June resulting from hydraulic connection with the Jamuna River produced very little change in the monthly catch. Increased discharges and rapid fluctuations in water levels in July coincided with further increases in catch but, in the following month, the catch declined slightly under prevailing high flows. During the flood drawdown in September and October, catches increased sharply, reaching a peak in October before decreasing less rapidly from November to January.

On the highly regulated and seasonal Old Hurasagar River, catches were lowest between December 1992 and May 1993 with a slight peak in March due principally to *katha* harvesting in a series of disconnected pools along the river. As the first floodwaters from the Jamuna entered the river in mid-June via partial opening of Bauitara sluice gates, the catch increased temporarily before decreasing again in July. A slight rise in catch in August was followed by sharp increases in September and October coinciding with the flood drawdown. Catches then decreased equally rapidly to low levels between December and February.

The major difference in catch patterns between rivers was seen in the more abrupt peak in catch during the drawdown in the Old Hurasagar and the reduced relative contribution to catch made during winter. This is reflected in annual percentage catch contributions of 47% and 66% made between September and November in the unregulated and regulated river respectively while 27% and 13% of the annual catch from these rivers was made between December 1993 and February 1994.



T



Old Hurasagar (site NW19): inside BRE Annual catch: 1501 kg/km



5.1.2 Size of catch

The annual catch per kilometre of river from the Old Hurasagar was 3.4 times greater than that from the Northern Dhaleswari (Table 5.1). In terms of catch per unit area (CPUA) the difference between rivers was substantially greater: the catch from the regulated river was 14 times greater than that from the unregulated river.

Site code	Site name	Inside/	А	nnual catch	
		Outside FCD	Total	Kg/ha	Kg/km
NC01	Jamuna	Outside	48,037	30	2,963
NW01	Jamuna	Outside	35,529	22	2,153
NC06	Northern Dhaleswari	Outside	7,036	42	438
NW19	Old Hurasagar	Inside	9,982	600	1,501

Table 5.1Comparison of the annual catch from rivers inside and outside the BRE,
March 1993 - February 1994

In comparison with catches from other regulated and unregulated rivers in the North Central and North West regions, the catch per kilometre from the Old Hurasagar was less than those from three unregulated rivers in the North West but higher than catches from five North Central rivers (Table 5.2). The catch per unit area from the Old Hurasagar was higher than those from all rivers sampled in both regions. The catch from the Northern Dhaleswari was not typical of other rivers in the North Central Region; per unit area it was the lowest recorded in all rivers, seasonal and perennial, from both regions. Reasons for such low catches from this river remain unclear.

Statistical analyses of catch rates of dominant gears revealed no clear significant differences between rivers which indicated that fish densities or abundances were also not significantly different. The considerably higher catch from the Old Hurasagar could, however, be attributed to a higher amount of fishing effort by the three most important gears, *deal* traps, *thella jal* and *dharma jal*. Another reason for the higher catch from the Old Hurasagar was the blocking by Bauitara regulator of upstream migrations of fish and the concentration of certain species in the area immediately downstream of the structure where many *dharma jal*

were established. Another more specialised gear, the *urani jal*, was set on the doors and walls on the downstream side of the regulator to catch fish as they leapt clear of the water in their attempts to cross the structure. The blocking of upstream migrations of adult and juvenile fish by structures built across distributaries has been documented in a separate FAP 17 study of the Charghat regulator on the Baral River in the North West Region¹⁰.

				Annual	catch
Region	Site Code	In/Out FCD/I	Name of River	(kg/km)	(kg/ha)
North West	NW19	In	Old Hurasagar	1501	600
	NW25	In	Baral	856	250
	NW03	In	Badai	8155	1631
	NW06	In	Ichamati	1596	236
	NW07	In	Kageswari	2028	541
	NW11	In	Chiknai	2079	555
	NW15	Out	Karatoya	4003	485
	NW14	Out	Baral/Atrai	5062	400
	NW27	Out	Atrai	2009	291
North Central	NC06	Out	Northern Dhaleswari	438	42
	NC02	Out	Pungli	794	85
	NC16	Out	Dhaleswari	1308	73
	NC21	Out	Gazikhali	332	74
	NC25	Out	Kaliganga	1768	132
	NC29	Out	Ichamati	2129	568
	NC12	In	Lohajang	748	299

Table 5.2Comparison of the annual catch from regulated and unregulated rivers in
the North Central and North West regions, March 1993 - February 1994

5.1.3 Catch differences between years

d?

Survey periods of 17 and 19 months, in the North West and North Central regions respectively, provided an opportunity to examine inter-annual changes in catch through two flood recessions and winters. In the North West Region, total catches for the period October

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

1992 - February 1993 were compared with those for the same period in 1993/94. A similar comparison was made in the North Central Region for the months August to February 1992/93 and 1993/94 (Table 5.3). Catches from katha fishing were excluded from the analyses since these required more intensive sampling which was provided in 1993/94 but not in 1992/93.

% reduction

		5 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	Cat	ch	% reduction
Site code	Site Name	Inside/Outside BRE	1992-1993	1993-1994	in catch in 92/93
NW19	Old Hurasagar	Inside	513	863	41
		1			
NC06	Northern Dhaleswari	Outside	236	305	23

Note 1: Katha catches were excluded from the analyses (see text for details)

In both rivers, catches in 1992/93 were substantially lower than in the following year. In Table 5.4 the catch is divided into three different groups of fish based on habitat preference: riverine, migratory and floodplain resident species (see Section 5.4.1 for definitions). The results showed that changes in catch between years varied between species groups and rivers. Results from studies elsewhere in the world have demonstrated that yields from floodplain fisheries are directly positively related to the flood extent¹³. Therefore, since 1992/93 was a relative drought year compared to 1993/94, lower catches of floodplain dependent fish would be expected. The results agree with those predicted from differences in flooding patterns between years. Catches of floodplain resident fish were lower in both rivers during 1992/93 but substantially lower in the unregulated Northern Dhaleswari. This suggested that differences in flood magnitude and extent were relatively greater between years on unregulated floodplains. Unfortunately, no direct hydrological evidence was available to examine this point. However, hydrographs presented in Figure 3.3 for the Dhaleswari and Baral rivers indicated almost identical inter-annual changes in flood magnitude and duration.

Table 5.4Comparison of catch1 (kg/ha) of riverine, migratory and floodplain
resident fish from rivers inside and outside the BRE between different
vears

		In/		Riveri CPU			Migra CPU	231. * *	Flo	odplain CPU	resident A
Site code	Site name	Out BRE	1992- 1993	1993- 1994	% change in 92/93	1992- 1993	1993- 1994	% change in 92/93	1992- 1993	1993- 1994	% change in 92/93
NW19	Old Hurasagar	In	62	4	+ 1450	49	389	- 87	347	381	- 9
NC06	Northern Dhaleswari	Out	40	37	+ 8	97	49	+ 98	75	184	- 59

Note 1: Katha catches were excluded from the analyses (see text for details)

Catches of riverine fish species were higher in the drier years in both rivers, considerably so in the Old Hurasagar. Since this group of fish is the least dependent on floodplains, it is expected to exhibit a less close relationship between inter-annual variations in catch and flood extent. Catches of migratory species were considerably lower in the drier year in the Old Hurasagar but higher in the Northern Dhaleswari. The principal species contributing to these catches were all dependent on floodplains for breeding and juvenile growth and therefore, for reasons which remain unclear, the result from the unregulated river does not agree with the expected pattern.

A second factor which may have influenced differences in fish catches between years was the occurrence of the fish disease, epizootic ulcerative syndrome (EUS). This disease first appeared in Bangladesh in 1988 and outbreaks have occurred irregularly since then. The disease was more serious in 1992 than in 1993 but since the first major outbreak occurred around mid-November 1992 after the bulk of the catch (excluding *katha* fishing) for the compared time periods had already been taken (96% and 80% in the Northern Dhaleswari and Old Hurasagar respectively) it is unlikely to have had a significant influence on catch comparisons between years.

5.2 Pattern of Fishing

5.2.1 Catch by gear

Percentage contributions made by dominant gears to the total annual catch from each river are presented in Table 5.5. More detailed information on percentage monthly and annual catches of all observed gears is given in Tables 5.6 and 5.7.

February 19	94	
Gear	Northern Dhaleswari: outside BRE (site NC06)	Old Hurasagar: inside BRE (site NW19)
Thella jal	16.8	18.1
Moi jal	14.8	(-
Jhaki jal	11.9	4.6
Katha	10.8	7.7
Hand fishing	8.6	12
Doiar trap	8.1	8.2
Dharma jal	7.2	14.1
Ber jal	7.1	-
Sip	4.3	7.7
Kathi jal	4.2	
Deal trap	-	27.1
Current jal (Stationary)	-	3.8

Table 5.5Percentage contribution (by weight) to the total annual catch made by
dominant¹ gears in rivers inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 -
February 1994

Note 1: Dominant gears are defined as those gears which, when ranked in order of abundance, comprised at least 90% of the total annual eatch

The total numbers of fishing gears recorded on each river were similar: 20 on the Northern Dhaleswari and 23 on the Old Hurasagar. However, there were several important differences between rivers in terms of the composition of dominant gears. On the Northern Dhaleswari, seine nets, *ber jal* and *kathi jal* and drag nets (*moi jal*) together accounted for 26% of the annual catch whereas on the Old Hurasagar, *kathi jal* was not used and *ber jal* and *moi jal* together comprised only 2% of the catch. A second major difference between rivers was seen in the use of *deal* traps on the Old Hurasagar which captured the greatest proportion (27%)

																					Total annual catch	al catch
Gear			1.=	Year: 1992	The second	3				State of		Year: 1993	993						Year: 1994	1994	(Mar'93 - Feb'94	Feb'94
Code	Gear name	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	April	May	June	July	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Kg	34
255	Thella jal	33.983	12.593	5.747	5.765	26.652	40.460	1	41.853	18.756	11.908	17.139	32.263	62.701	32.609	13.789	1.959	6.370	1	8.470	1184.270	16.832
202	202 Moi jal	0.170	5.465	16.451	2.075	ï	1	Ţ	1	1	7.920	15.764	0.398	Ţ	Ţ	5.163	43.732	40.438	1	13.459	1039.238	14.770
164	164 Jhaki jal	24.061	2.964	27.240	3.636	4.541	33.978	1	1	33.824	24.927	6.005	12.290	5.835	12.417	22.221	13.356	2.547	2.398	2.543	838.315	11.915
270	270 Katha	1	1	1	Т	1	1	1	1	1	1	T	T	T	ĩ	1	6.262	20.053	53.612	44.935	762.217	10.833
307	Hand fishing	T.	J.	T	Т	-1	J.	ų	58.147	18.681	T	Т	T	1	28.274	19.635	2.346	ł	L	6.382	602.177	8.559
95	Doiar trap	4.080	43.073	1	1	1	1	્ય	1	1	1	17.967	162.8	2.515	1.215	0.445	8.824	1	41.890	20.489	568.475	8.080
105	105 Dharma jal	15.015	28.881	2.989	3.354	1	4.766	ï	1	T	6.485	1.004	2.376	7.325	12.339	21.609	3.119	1	1	Ľ	507.081	7.207
45	Ber jal	ľ	1	9.070	20.285	-U	1	1		24.299	42.690	40.081	1	Т	2.852	12.053	1.774	Т	Т	1	496.835	19072
30	30 Sip	3.036	91	37.059	46.806	58.081	3	1	1	1	1	T	3.237	1.098	5.225	0.653	4.243	22.967	1	1	304.521	4.328
175	Kathi jal	T	1	T	T	1	1	ļ,	I	t	T	L	36.933	5.280	3.498	0.758	ı	1	T	Ľ	295.339	4.198
272	Daun	10.225	7.023	0.895	15.184	10.726	T	1	Ţ	1	1	1.266	1.077	15.247	1.571	2.242	0.618	2.684	1	T	150.047	2.133
152	. Tana barsi	1	1	1	1	1	ļ	1	Ţ	T	1	T	T	1	1	1	12.200	T	T	T	136.372	1.938
88	Current jal (Stationary)	T	U	E	1	-l	1	100.000	ţ	F	t	T	Т	T,	1	1	1	4.242	0.926	3.365	58.488	0.831
271	Suti jal	1	3	1	1.532	1	ļ	1	1	Ĩ	6.070	Т	2.635	1	1	1	1	T	1	1	35.159	0.500
123	Koijal	1	T	T	T	Ţ	ł	1	1	T	1	T	Т	1	1	1	1.567	E	0.729	1	21.006	0.299
89	Dhor jal	9.430	10	0.549	1.282	T	19.910	1	Ţ	1	Т	T	Т	1	1	1.432	1	T	J	1	19.866	0.282
314	314 Boat katha	1	3	1	Т	1	0.887	1	1	4.441	1	Т	T	1	Ţ	Т	1	0.700	0.444	0.213	13.068	0.186
278	Nol barsi	L	L.	T	1	I	1	1	1	r	U	0.774	T	Ţ	1	1	1	Т	Ľ	T	2.569	0.037
170	170 Juti	1	1	4	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	T	T	1	Ţ	1	1	T	T	0.144	0.896	0.013
149	149 Horgra	1	T	T	0.081	r	1	Ţ	T	T	1	Т	Т	г	T	T	Ľ	T	Ľ	T	T	
		1001	1001	1001	WU1	1001	1001	1001	1001	1001	1001	1001	1 MM	100	1 MM	VUL.	1001	1001	1001	I'VVI	000 2000	1001

y's

- denotes zero catch Note:

36

¢

				A CONTRACTOR															I otal annual catch	al catch
Gear		-	Year: 1992						1	Year: 1993							Year: 1994		(Mar'93 - Feb'94)	Feb'94)
118	Gear name	Qt	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	April	May	June	July	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Kg	%
-	286 Deal trap	9.509	0.342	T	T	T	T	Т	T	0.217	30.786	35.711	55.140	36.690	12.361	28.386	Т	ų.	2707.865	27.127
255	255 Thella ial	55.363	13.370	46.119	7.105	10.323	0.455	7.671	90.056	20.978	23.282	28.328	1.663	11.910	42.746	36.162	11.518	21.649	1809.823	18.130
105	105 Dharma ial	4.311	16.131	1.793	1	1	1	1	1	1	ł	7.349	28.339	25.053	4.249	T	ł	2.682	1412.356	14.149
95	Doiar trap	1	1	T	1	1	Ţ	-1	2.404	69.087	J	-1	0.104	1.724	18.622	10.858	T		817.471	8.189
270	270 Katha	ļ	-1	T	Ţ	0.562	66.533	73.932	T	1	1	1	T	Т	1	T	40.725	13.708	769.700	7.711
30 Sip	Sip	5.526	25.408	10.634	I	ľ	T	-1	3.103	6.794	1.454	14.222	7.547	8.072	10.027	12.208	1.000	14.708	764.861	7.662
164	164 Jhaki ial	10.235	2.499	21.107	45.810	16.537	2.803	16.738	1	1	666.9	7.184	0.123	1.822	5.461	9.078	13.749	31.512	460.834	4.617
88	Current ial (Stationary)	1.979	13.013	11.165	2.075	17.487	4	0.128	0.482	2.556	37.479	7.205	4.788	4.210	1.623	2.866	1	ł	377.004	3.777
45		3.338	1	1	-1	1	Ţ	1	3.955	1	Т	1	1	Ţ	1	T	30.918	1	227.354	2.278
291	Urani	0.860	0.314	1	ł	T	T	1	Т	1	T	1	2.161	5.386	0.672	0.442	1	I	217.203	2.176
		6:639	T	T	1	T	Т	1	T	ľ	1	I.	1	4.204	0.398	11	1	1	134.220	1.345
307	Hand fishing	1	20.639	8.354	15.845	21.804	15.231	1.530	T	1	T	1	1	1	1	1	0.313	4.928	82.128	0.823
306	Baoli jal	1	1	T	1	3	Т	1	T	1	1	1	1	1	3.672	1	1	1	62.212	0.623
298	Akra	1	1	1	1	1	7.181	1	T	1	T	1	1	1	I	1	T	5.993	45.503	0.456
56		1	1	1	Ţ	1	4.661	-1-	Т	ľ	T	1	L	Ţ	T	1	1.777	1	32.371	0.324
272		Ŷ	T	T	Ţ	ľ	1	1	Т	T	1	IJ	0.136	0.898	0.022	1	Т	1	30.186	0.302
202	Moi jal	2.241	7.786	T	Ţ	32.763	3.118	-1	Т	0.368	T	1	1	1	Т	1	1	1	15.233	0.153
263	Ucha	I	T	1	T	a.	1	1	T	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	4.819	12.374	0.124
152	Tana barsi	1	1	1	1	a.	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	0.032	0.147	1	1	1	3.452	0.035
301	Chunga	1	1	1	Ţ	Ţ	0.020	1	1	1	1	1	t	ř	T	Į.	I.	Į.	0.083	0.001
276	Hat panch	1	1	Ĩ	29.165	Ľ	1	T	T	I.	E	1	Ľ	T.	10	I.	Ð	Ъ.	1	24
149	Horgra	1	0.498	1	T	0.524	1	T	Ľ	1.	ľ	1	1	Т	T	1	T	1	T	a Cal
314	Boat katha	Т	Т	0.829	T	1	Т	1	T	ા	1	1	1	T	1	1	1	1	Т	
		100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100 + 9982.233	100

Note: - denotes zero catch

P R LIBRARY.

48

of the annual catch. In contrast, this type of trap was not used at all on the unregulated river or in any of the other six rivers sampled by FAP 17 in other parts of the North Central Region. Reasons for the absence of this gear are not known, but they may be related to cultural/traditional differences rather than biological differences between regions. Whilst the *deal* trap targeted juvenile major carp which comprised 59% of its annual catch, the smaller *doiar* trap (and its variations), which was equally important in the two rivers, targeted mainly prawns (24-46%) and other small species of fish.

A third difference in gear usage was seen in the increased importance of lift nets, particularly *dharma jal*, in the Old Hurasagar where they captured 14% of the catch compared with 7% in the Northern Dhaleswari. Several *dharma jal* were established immediately downstream of Bauitara regulator in an enlarged pool area on the river. A further difference between rivers which was directly related to the presence of the regulator, was the use of *urani jal* set on the gates and their supporting side walls where they captured upstream migrating fish which jumped out of the water in their attempts to cross the gates. One final major difference was the larger share of catch taken by hand fishing in the unregulated rivers. This is rather surprising since this method might be expected to be of greater importance in the seasonally disconnected pools of the Old Hurasagar.

Similarities between rivers included the equal dominance of *thella jal* which provided 17% and 18% of the annual catches; the equal share of catches by *doiar* traps mentioned earlier, and the use of *katha* which provided 11% and 8% of annual catches respectively.

5.2.2 Catch by gear by month

Dy

On the Northern Dhaleswari, only two gears, hand fishing and *thella jal*, were recorded in March 1993, but as flows increased somewhat a month later these gears were joined by *jhaki jal* and *ber jal* which captured 34% and 24% of the low monthly catch (Fig. 5.2). As flows continued to increase in May and June, the numbers of different types of gears also increased to 6 then 8. In May, *ber jal*, *jhaki jal* and *thella jal* dominated catches but in June, as floodwaters from the Jamuna entered the river, *doiar* traps appeared and captured 18% of the monthly catch. However, *ber jal* still took the largest share (40%) and *moi jal* gained in importance taking 16% of the catch. During the full flood period from July to early September, *thella jal* consistently provided a large share (32-63%) while *kathi jal* took 40% in July and *daun* took 15% in August.



Figure 5.2 Percentage of total monthly catch taken by dominant gears: site NC06 (outside BRE)

4b

During the drawdown from September to November, the numbers of different types of gears used each month increased progressively from 9 to 12. During the early drawdown in September, *thella jal* and hand fishing provided the greatest share of the catch but *jhaki jal* and *dharma jal* increased in importance. As water levels decreased rapidly in October, *dharma jal*, *jhaki jal* and hand fishing took about an equal share of the catch (19-22%) while *thella jal* captured 14% and *ber jal* increased in importance to take 12% of the catch. During later stages of the drawdown in November, *moi jal* predominated (44%), but for the remaining gears there was a more equitable share of the catch than seen earlier. Peak catches recorded during the drawdown were a function of both peak or high fishing effort and catch rates by dominant gears (Figs 5.3 and 5.4). In December, three gears predominated: *moi jal* (40%), *sip* (23%) and *katha* (20%). In the subsequent winter months of January and February 1994, *katha* provided 54% and 45% of monthly catches and *doiar* traps regained importance and provided 42% and 20% of catches.

On the regulated Old Hurasagar River, katha harvesting accounted for 66%-74% of monthly catch in March and April 1993 (Fig. 5.5). There were about 30 katha units on this river compared with 27 on the Northern Dhaleswari. On the latter river, no units were observed fishing during this period. In May, 90% of the Old Hurasagar catch was taken by thella jal. This compares with only 12% of the May catch taken by this gear in the Northern Dhaleswari where ber jal and jhaki jal predominated reflecting the larger river flows. In June, when the first floodwaters passed through Bauitara regulator into the Old Hurasagar, doiar traps were set and took 69% of the catch while a further 21% was again taken by thella jal. In July, doiar traps disappeared and were replaced by deal traps which accounted for about a third of the catch. Current jal gained in importance in this month when they captured 37% of the catch and thella continued to supply an important share of the catch (23%). Catch contributions from deal traps increased progressively during the flood season, rising to 36% in August and 55% in September. In contrast, thella jal catches increased to 21% in August but dropped to 2% in September when dharma jal became more important as the flood drawdown commenced. At the height of the drawdown in October, peak catches were taken principally by deal traps (37%), dharma jal (25%) and thella jal (12%). The peak catch was a function peak fishing effort by deal traps and thella jal (Fig. 5.6) and peak catch rates of all three gear types (Fig. 5.7).

In November and December, *thella jal* again predominated with *thella jal* while *dharma jal* lost their effectiveness in the slower flows and shallower depths and were replaced by a *doiar* trap fishery. In the winter months of January and February 1994, *katha* harvesting commenced and provided 41% and 14% of monthly catch. *Thella jal* and *jhaki jal* were also dominant gears at this time of year.



Figure 5.3 Total monthly fishing effort per kilometre of river by dominant gears: site NC06 (outside BRE)



Figure 5.4 Scaled CPUE of dominant gears: site NC06 (outside BRE)

Note: Scaled CPUE are values of CPUE expressed as a proportion (decimal) of the maximum monthly value recorded



Figure 5.5 Percentage of total monthly catch taken by dominant gears: site NW19 (inside BRE)



Figure 5.6 Total monthly fishing effort per kilometre of river by dominant gears: site NW19 (inside BRE)



Figure 5.7 Scaled CPUE of dominant gears: site NW19 (inside BRE)

LIBRARY
5.3 Statistical Comparison of Catch Rates from Rivers Inside and Outside the BRE

Statistical analyses of seasonally pooled catch rates of dominant gears used inside and outside the BRE were carried out. The underlying assumption of the method was that differences in catch rates of a particular gear inside and outside the BRE reflected differences in fish densities and abundance.

There were five dominant gears, excluding *katha*, common to the two rivers; *thella jal*, *dharma jal*, *jhaki jal*, *doiar* traps and *sip*. One very important gear, the *deal* trap, could not be included in the analyses since although it provided the greatest proportion of the catch from the Old Hurasagar, it was not used on the Northern Dhaleswari. It was also not possible to combine the catch rates of this gear with those of smaller *doiar* traps, since mesh size and target species differed between gears. Mean catch rates of each of the five common gears from the two rivers were compared, where data were available, for each of five seasons and for all seasons combined between March 1993 and February 1994 (Table 5.8 and Fig. 5.8). The non-parametric Mann-Whitney U-test was used since catch rate data were not normally distributed. However, the parametric student t-test on logarithmic transformed catch rates produced essentially the same results as those presented in Table 5.8 for four gears.

Of the 20 gear/season combinations examined statistically, significant (p < 0.05) differences were found in only one case. This was for the annual catch rate of *doiar* traps which was significantly higher in the Old Hurasagar. There was also no consistency between catch rate differences of different gears: *thella jal* and *jhaki jal* provided the highest sample sizes and catch rates were generally higher in the Northern Dhaleswari River whereas catch rates of *doiar* traps and *sip* were higher in the Old Hurasagar and those of *dharma jal* showed no clear trend. It must therefore be concluded that on the basis of these results, no clear statistically significant difference in fish densities between rivers could be detected.

The substantially higher catch recorded in the Old Hurasagar was therefore due largely to a greater amount of fishing effort by dominant gears (Table 5.9). Most of the increased effort resulted from the activities of the three most dominant gears, *deal* traps, *thella jal* and *dharma jal*, which accounted for 59% of the annual catch from the Old Hurasagar.





Gear		Site: NV inside B		Site: No outside l		Manı	n-Whitney U- CPUE	test on
Gear	Season	Sample size	Mean	Sample size	Mean	Z- value	P-value	Comment
Thella jal	1	4	0.052	6	0.151	-1.71	0.088	NS
	2	11	0.079	9	0.097	-0.87	0.382	NS
	3	9	0.073	13	0.115	-1.37	0.171	NS
	4	10	0.268	8	0.132	-0.44	0.657	NS
	5	14	0.114	6	0.162	-1.15	0.248	NS
	All seasons	48	0.134	42	0.126	-1.44	0.150	NS
Dharma jal	3	9	0.063	12	0.082	0.00	1.000	NS
	4	7	0.133	11	0.067	-0.50	0.618	NS
	All seasons	17	0.095	29	0.070	-0.47	0.641	NS
Doiar trap	4	2	0.007	4	0.003	-1.85	0.064	NS
	All seasons	4	0,006	13	0.003	-2.04	0.041	SIG
Sip	3	10	0.039	6	0.010	-0.93	0.353	NS
	4	12	0.026	3	0.005	-1.44	0.149	NS
	5	6	0.049	5	0.047	-0.36	0.715	NS
	All seasons	33	0.032	14	0.022	-0.99	0.322	NS
Jhaki jal	1	7	0.093	4	0.124	-0.94	0.345	NS
	3	5	0.076	10	0.101	-0.86	0.391	NS
	4	9	0.119	9	0.244	-1.81	0.070	NS
	5	5	0.285	4	0.192	-1.47	0.142	NS
	All seasons	26	0.136	37	0.144	-0.56	0.576	NS

Table 5.8Statistical comparison of catch rates (kg/hr) of dominant gears used inside
and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994

Notes: 1. NS - Not significant, SIG - Significant at 5% level

2. Seasons: 1. March - April, 2. May-June, 3 - July-September, 4. October-November and 5. December-February

1

1

Gear	Northern Dhaleswari (site NW21)	Old Hurasagar (site NC06)	% change compared with NC06
Thella jal	647	2,010	+ 211
Dharma jal	817	3,168	+ 288
Doiar trap	16,053	17,165	+7
Sip	36,770	6,333	- 83
Jhaki jal	327	48	- 85
Deal trap	0	55,670	

Table 5.9Annual fishing effort1 by dominant gears used on rivers inside and outside
the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994

Notes: 1. Annual fishing effort measured as total gear hours per kilometre of river 2. + and - denote increase and decrease in catch respectively

5.4 Biodiversity and Catch Composition

5.4.1 Species richness

Between March 1993 and February 1994, 78 species of fish were recorded from the Northern Dhaleswari River (Table 5.10). This compares with 60 species found in the Old Hurasagar during the same period, a reduction in species diversity of 23%. In Table 5.10, species have been divided into three categories of habitat preference based on spatial distributions derived from the FAP 17 fisheries database covering four FAP regions. The categories are defined below.

a) Riverine

Species which are usually confined to rivers and estuaries (or sea in the case of *ilish*) throughout their life cycle with no direct dependence on floodplains, although some species can be found on more extensive floodplains, particularly in the North East Region.

b) Migratory

Species which move between river and floodplain during different stages of their life cycle and therefore have some dependence on floodplains for growth and/or reproduction.

c) Floodplain resident

R

Species which are capable of surviving in perennial waters of the floodplain throughout the year and are largely dependent upon them for growth and reproduction. Many of these species occupy a variety of habitats, including large rivers.

Table 5.10	Total annual number of fish species, classified by habitat preference,
	recorded from rivers inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February
	1994

Site	River name	In/Out	N	umber of speci	es	Total
code	River name	BRE	Riverine	Migratory	Floodplain resident	Total
NC06	Northern Dhaleswari	Out	23	20	35	78
NW19	Old Hurasagar	In	9	17	34	60
NC16	Dhaleswari	Out	27	19	33	79
NW15	Karatoya	In	34	20	34	88
NC01	Jamuna	Out	22	19	28	69
NW01	Jamuna	Out	21	18	27	66

It is clear from the results in Table 5.10 that differences between rivers were due principally to differences in riverine and migratory species of which there were 40% fewer in the regulated river. In the Northern Dhaleswari 23 riverine species were found compared with only 9 in the regulated river, a reduction of 61% and 20 migratory species compared with 17 in the Old Hurasagar, a reduction of 15%. In contrast, the numbers of floodplain resident species were similar, with only 3% fewer in the regulated river.

Compared with the numbers of species recorded from adjacent sites in the Jamuna River, the numbers of riverine and migratory species were similar in the Northern Dhaleswari but lower in the Old Hurasagar while numbers of floodplain resident species were higher in both the regulated and unregulated distributaries. In comparison with rivers into which the Northern Dhaleswari and Old Hurasagar flowed, numbers of floodplain resident and migratory species were similar but numbers of riverine species were substantially lower in the Old Hurasagar than in the Karatoya (34 species).

5.4.2 Catch Composition

Percentage contributions made by riverine, migratory and floodplain resident species to annual catches from rivers inside and outside the BRE are presented in Table 5.11. The results revealed marked differences in catch compositions. In the Northern Dhaleswari, riverine species comprised 15% of the catch compared with less than 1% in the Old Hurasagar. In contrast, migratory species were considerably more abundant in catches from the regulated river where they accounted for 49% of the catch compared with 15% on the unregulated river. Floodplain resident species comprised a greater share (57%) of the catch in the Northern Dhaleswari than that in the Old Hurasagar (43%).

Table 5.11Percentage contributions of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident
species to annual catches from rivers inside and outside BRE, March 1993
- February 1994

Site		In/Out	9	% Total annual ca	itch
code	River name	BRE	Riverine	Migratory	Floodplain resident
NC06	Northern Dhaleswari	Out	15.2	15.4	57.1
NW19	Old Hurasagar	In	<1	49.2	42.7
NC16	Dhaleswari	Out	13.5	36.7	42.7
NW15	Karatoya	In	15.0	33.5	35.6
NC01	Jamuna	Out	53.2	15.9	21.0
NW01	Jamuna	Out	58.8	16.8	9.2

On the Jamuna River, migratory and riverine species accounted for 69-76% of annual catch. On the Dhaleswari River, these groups comprised 50% of the catch compared with 31% on its tributary, the Northern Dhaleswari. On the Karatoya, they formed 49% of the catch but riverine species were more abundant than on the Old Hurasagar and migratory species less so.

The percentage contribution of individual dominant species to annual catches from each river are presented in Table 5.12. Dominant species are defined here as those comprising 1% or more of the annual catch.

			Inside B	RE		Outside BRI	E	
Habitat	Species nar	ne	Old Hurasaga	Karatoya	N. Dhalewari	Dhaleswari		nuna
Preference	Scientific	Bengali	NW19	NW15	NC06	NC16	NC01	1
Riverine	Aspidoparia morar	Piali			1.6	2.0	5.2	10.4
	Barilius barna	Bani koksa	() .		1.2	_	_	
	Barilius evezardi		-		2.0	_	-	
	Crossocheilus latius	Kalabata			1	_	1.2	
	Hilsa ilisha	Ilish	-	4.6	_	_	28.3	8.0
	Corica soborna	Kachki	-	1.7		2.7	_	
	Rhinomugil corsula	Khorsula	-		- <u>-</u>		4.5	2.4
	Ailia coila	Kajuli	-	3.2	2.7	1.0	3.4	5.4
	Clupisoma garua	Ghaura	-	2.1	3.0	2.6	4.5	20.3
	Bagarius bagarius	Baghair	_			_	-	2.3
	Gagata cenia	Kauwa			1.4		_	
	Gagata nangra	Gang tengra	_	1			1.2	
	Gagata youssoufi	Gang tengra	_	1.0	_		3.0	4.0
Subtotal			_	12.6	11.9	8.3	51.4	52.7
Migratory	Aorichthys aor	Ayre		1.1	1.4	2.5	51.4	2.4
	Mystus bleekeri	Golsha tengra	1.2	4.3	1.4	2.5		2.4
	Mystus cavasius	Kabashi	1.1	9.3	1.3	2.0		
	Cirrhinus mrigala	Mrigel	7.1		1.3	2.0		
	Cirrhinus reba	Raik	4.1	1.2	1,	1.8		
	Labeo bata	Bata	4.1		1	1.0	3.8	2.4
	Labeo calbasu	Kalbaus	9.1	5.6			.3.0	2.4
	Labeo rohita	Rui	10.8		_			
	Salmostoma bacaila	Katari	_				2.3	5.5
	Salmostoma phulo	Fulchela	1.2	1.7	1.4	3.9	2.3	33
	Wallagu attu	Boal	5.4	6.0	5.3	22.3	5.6	2.7
	Notopterus chitala	Chital	3.9			£243		2.1
Subtotal		Cinici	47.9	29.2	10.7	32.5	11.7	13.0
Floodplain	Mystus vittatus	Tengra		2.1	2.6	52.5	11./	1.5.0
Resident	Colisa fasciatus	Khalisha	2.8	2.1	and a second sec			0 .
resident	Xenentodon cancila	Kaikka	1.7	1.9	1.1	2.6	1	29
	Puntius conchonius	Canchan puti		2.8	1.3	2.6	-	107
	Puntius sophore	Puti	3.2		*******	17.0	4.2	3.5
	Glossogobius giurus	Bailla	6.0	3.6	13.1	2.6	5.4	
	Lepidocephalus guntea	Sector Se	3.0	5.7	7.3	7.0	4.4	1.9
	Channa punctatus	Gutum Talei	2.1	-	1.3	-	-	-
	Heteropneustes fossilis	Taki	4.5	1.2	6.6	1.6	-	> -
	Macrognathus aculeatus	Shingi Tara baim	1.4	-	-		-	10 —
	the second s	http://www.page.com/actional	1.4	-				(-
	Macrognathus pancalus Mastacembelus armatus	Guchi	7.2	2.4	6.3	1.7	1.6	1.1
	THE REPORT OF THE PERSON AND A DEPENDENT OF THE PERSON AND THE PER	Baral baim	1.9	8.6	6,0	7.4	-	1
	Notopterus notopterus Chanda nama	Foli	1.4	-	-		-	3 .
	2010 No. 2010	Nama chanda	1.1	-	-	-	-	<u>)</u>
2.1.1.1.1	Chanda ranga	Lal chanda	1.1	1.6	-		-	-
Subtotal	-		38.9	29.9	52.6	39.9	15.6	5.4
Other	Prawn spp.	Chingri/Icha	7.8	15.8	12.2	7.0	10.0	14.6
Subtotal			7.8	15.8	12.2	7.0	10.0	14.6
Grand total			94.6	87.5	87.5	87.7	88.6	85.7

Table 5.12 Percentage contribution (by weight) to the total annual catch by dominant species from rivers inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 – February 1994

Notes:

1. Dominant species are those species contributing 1% or more by weight to the total annual catch

2. Shaded values highlight the most important species (>4%)

3. See text for definitions of habitat preference categories (Section 5.4.1)

¥.

On the Northern Dhaleswari, six dominant riverine species together accounted for 12% of the catch whereas no riverine species formed more than 1% of the catch from the Old Hurasagar. Three of these species *piali*, *kajuli* and *ghaura* were also among the dominant species of the linking Jamuna and Dhaleswari rivers.

Five dominant migratory species comprised 11% of the catch on the Northern Dhaleswari. *Boal* was the most abundant of these, providing 5% of the catch whilst the others, *ayre*, *kabashi*, *mrigel* and *fulchela* each comprised less than 2%. The composition of these dominant species was more similar to that of the Dhaleswari River than to that of the neighbouring site on the Jamuna. A total of 10 migratory species together accounted for 48% of the catch from the Old Hurasagar of which 3 major carps, *rui*, *kalbaus* and *mrigel*, comprised 27% of the catch while two other carps, *raik* and *bata*, provided a further 8%. Other important species included *boal* and *chital*. The possible causes of such marked differences in riverine and migratory species compositions between rivers are explored in more detail in Section 5.5 when migrations of individual species are examined.

A total of 10 floodplain resident species was recorded on the Northern Dhaleswari, 9 of which also occurred on the Old Hurasagar. Although dominant species compositions were similar, there were differences in relative abundances of individual species between rivers. On the regulated river, *guchi baim*, *puti* and *taki* predominated whereas on the unregulated river these three species plus *canchan puti*, *bailla* and *baral baim* accounted for the greatest catch shares. Prawns formed 8% and 7% of the catch from the regulated and unregulated river respectively.

5.5 Fish Migrations

Seasonal movements of fish were identified from changes in monthly catch compositions from the Northern Dhaleswari and Old Hurasagar and their connecting rivers (Tables 5.13 - 5.18) together with temporal and spatial changes in the distributions of important individual species and changes in monthly species numbers and catch contributions of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident fish. Where available, additional data on the average size of fish were used to determine whether the fish were adults or juveniles.

Hebitat Species name Riverine Riating Aug Riverine Riating 2.776 Risting Riating 2.734 Barilius evezardi Rain Koksa Romilepes georgena Rain 2.734 Ranilus evezardi Rani 2.734 Rani Koksa Rain 2.734 Rani Koksa Rain 2.734 Rain Consochelus ho	3.131	Year: 1992							Year	Vear: 1993						Year: 1994		(Mar'93 - Feb'94)	(Mar'93 - Feb'94)
os Scientific Bengoli Aug Rita rita Rita 2.776 Rita rita Rita 2.776 Aspidoperia jaya Piali 1.415 3. Aspidoperia jaya Piali 1.415 3. Aspidoperia morar Rait Rita 2.776 Barilius botra Barilius botra Baulichas 0.104 Barilius botra Barilius botia Bhol 0.104 Crossocheflus latius Baulichas 0.104 0.104 Nemachellus botia Balichas 0.104 0.162 Barilius stree Balichas 0.162 0.163 Somilestors goragota Rain bas 0.163 0.163 Somilestors goragota Rain 1.132 0.163 Somilestors goragota Balichas 0.163 0.163 Somilestors goragota Balichas 0.163 0.133 Somilestors goragota Balichas 0.133 0.133 Somilestors goragota Balichas 0.063 0	Sep	Oct			Contraction of					Tidu	Aup	Sen	Oet	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Kg	9 ⁶
Ritar tia Ritar 2.776 Riverine Ritar tia 2.776 Aspidoparia morar Pauli 1.415 Barilius botra Bauti Koksa 2.754 Barilius tiloo Bhol 0.104 Raiamas bola Bhol 0.104 Raiamas bola Bhol 0.104 Raiamas bola Bhol 0.104 Somileptes georgota Ralabata 2.753 Raiamas bola Bhol 0.104 Somileptes georgota Ralabata 0.762 Butia dario Rani 0.763 Rainana bola Rain 0.763 Rainana bola Rain 0.763 Rainana bola Rain 0.763 Rainana bola Rani 0.763 Rainana Rain 0.763 Rainana Rain 0.763 Rain Rain 0.763 Rain Rani 0.763 Rain Rani 0.763 Rain Rani 0.	11111		Nov	Dec	Jan Fe	Feb Mar	r April	May	punn	Leon	0.085	7 685	1	1	T	1	1	22.753	0.323
Aspidoparia morar Piali 1.688 Barilius barna Bani Koksa 1.688 Barilius barna Bani Koksa 1.415 Barilius barna Bani Koksa 2.524 Barilius tileo Blod 0.104 Barilius tileo Blod 0.104 Crossocheitus latius Kalabata 2.524 Barilius tileo Blod 0.104 Crossocheitus latius Balichata 0.762 Hilas likha Ginaloga mammina Goni chapila 0.763 Somileptes gengota Rani 0.763 Boin dario Rani 0.763 Hilas likha Ginaloga mammina 0.763 Somileptes gengota Rani 0.763 Boin dario Rani 0.763 Hilas likha Ginaloga mammina 0.763 Somileptes gengota Rani 0.763 Rhinomugi corsula Rani 0.763 Scipinus phasa Khorsula 1.1132 Scipinus phasa Khorsula 1.133 Rhinomugi corsula Rata 0.069 Scipinus phasa Khorsula 1.133 Scipinus phasa Khorsula 1.133 Rhinomugi corsula Bara 0.063 <td>161.6</td> <td>0.394</td> <td>т</td> <td>T</td> <td>T</td> <td>T</td> <td>1</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1700</td> <td>10000</td> <td>-</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>Т</td> <td>- 1</td> <td>1</td> <td>T</td> <td>ľ</td>	161.6	0.394	т	T	T	T	1			1700	10000	-	1	1	Т	- 1	1	T	ľ
Aspidoparia morar Piali 1.415 3. Barilius barran Barilius barran Barilius barran Barilius barran Barilius barran Barilius tileo 11415 2.524 Barilius tileo Barilius tileo 1140 0.104 Ranimus tileo Barilius barran Barilius tileo 2.524 Barilius tileo Barilius barran 2.324 Raimus tileo Balichana 0.104 Consacchelius latius Balichana 0.762 Boria dario Coni chapila 0.762 Baria Coni chapila 0.762 Boria dario Rami 0.763 Baria Coni chapila 0.763 Alia colia Rhoran 1.132 Stermugi cascasia Bara Abasa Ania colia Rhoran 1.133 Stermugi cascasia Bara 1.133 Stermugi cascasia Rata 0.063 Barasi Canagara viridescens 0.063 Barasio barasio Canag tengra 1.133 Steor thabolophorus Bara 0.063 Barasio barasio Canag tengra 1.497 Subtotal Aortichthys aor Ayre Mystus evasasis Aorticht	141.0	1	Ţ	Т	1	1	1		337 6	\$ 310	110 5	0.141	0.963	0.374	1.701	-1-	1	113.463	1.613
Barilius burm Barilius burm Barilius burm Barilius verzaedi Tila koksa Barilius evezaedi Editata Barilius evezaedi Editata Barilius verzaedi Editata Barilius evezaedi Editata Rainas bola Balichana Crosscochellus latius Kalabata Nemaschellus Kalabata Somileptes gengota Editata Somileptes gengota Editata Bolichana Conichapila Setipina phasa Balichana Sicamugi cascasia Bata Athia colia Kaura Sicamugi cascasia Bata Sicamugi cascasia Bata Sicar tabolophorus Sisor Sisor tabolophorus Sisor Panas tabas Cange tengar Migratory Avrichthys aor Mystus heekeri Cokha tengar Mystus heekeri Cokha tengar Mystus heekeri Cokha tengar Mystus heekeri	1 1 1 1 <u>6</u> 1 1 1	0.364	0.356	T	T	1	01710	5		_		1	1	1	1	T	T	84.791	1.205
Barilius riceo Tila koksa 2.524 Barilius riceo Babol 0.104 Raimas bola Bhol 0.104 Crosscocheilus latius Kalabata 0.104 Nemacheilus botia Bhol 0.106 Somileres gengona Bhol 0.106 Somileres gengona Bhol 0.106 Botia derice Bata Conichapila 0.762 Somileres gengona Rani Bata 1.132 Botia derice Rani Bele 0.763 Awous stamineus Bele 1.132 0.763 Seriptina phasa Phasa 0.763 2.534 Awous stamineus Bele 1.132 0.763 Seriptina phasa Rain Rani 1.132 Kajuli 1130 0.765 2.534 Stionin giondia Stionic silondia Stionic silongia 0.765 Bagarius begarius Rawa 0.831 0 Stionin silondia Stionic creatia Kajuli 1.132 Bagarius begarius Rawa 0.065 2.550 Stionin silondia Stionic creatia Kajuli 1.497 Stionin silondia Stionin silondia Stionic creatia Kajuli </td <td>0.141</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>E</td> <td>T</td> <td>1</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>16.480</td> <td>4.881</td> <td>1.473</td> <td>T</td> <td>-</td> <td>Т</td> <td>Т</td> <td>1</td> <td>137.542</td> <td>1.955</td>	0.141	1	1	E	T	1				16.480	4.881	1.473	T	-	Т	Т	1	137.542	1.955
Barilius tileo Tila kokea 2.524 Raiamas bola Bhol 0.104 Raiamas bola Bhol 0.104 Raiamas bola Bhol 0.104 Raiamas bola Bhol 0.103 Somileptes gengota Raharpia 0.762 Baria Genichosa manumina Conichapila 0.762 Rani Gonichopia Bele - Seripina phasa Phasa 1.132 Seripina phasa Rai 1.132 Seripina phasa Bele 1.132 Seripina phasa Bele 1.132 Seripina phasa Bele 1.132 Awaous stamineus Bata 1.132 Seripina phasa Bele 1.132 Awaous stamineus Bele 1.132 Seripina phasa Bele 1.132 Awaous stamineus Bele 1.132 Sionia silondia Silong 0.066 Bagarius begarius Bagaria Bagaria Sionia silondia Sisor 0.083 Sionia silondia Sisor 0.086 Bagarius begarius Bagaria Bagaria Sisor tanga Bagaria Pangasus Bagarius begarius	1112111	1	0.074	1		T		_			ľ	1	Т	1	Т	1	-	Т	1
Rainmas bola Bhol 0.104 Rainmas bola Bhol 0.104 Nemachellus botia Baliciana 0.763 Somilepres gengota Gharpolia 0.763 Botia dario Rani 0.763 Bilicalian Consichentus latius Rani 0.763 Botia dario Rish Gonilepres gengota Gharpolia 0.763 Botia dario Rish Gonileon 0.763 11332 Setipiuna phasa Phasa Bele 1.132 Setipiuna phasa Rain 0.763 23 Stionuugi cor sula Rain 1.132 24 Stionuugi cor sula Rain 1.132 24 Stionuugi cor sula Rain 1.132 25 Stionia siloadia Rain 1.132 26 Raparius bugarius Raguara 1.132 26 Stionia siloadia Stillong 0.069 26 Ragurus bugarius Raguara 1.132 26 Stionia siloadia Rain 1.497 27 Stionia siloadia Stillong 0.066 28 Ragurus bugarius Ragura 0.005 28 Stisor thabolocuus Stort 0.005 <td>1111</td> <td>t</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td></td> <td>_</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>-1</td> <td>Т</td> <td>7.1</td> <td>1</td> <td>Т</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td>	1111	t	1	1	1	1		_			1	1	-1	Т	7.1	1	Т	1	1
Crossocheilus latius Kalabata Somileptes gengenis Balicharis Somileptes gengenis Gharpolia Beita dario Gharpolia Botita dario Balicharis Botita dario Gharpolia Botita dario Balicharis Botita dario Charpolia Botita dario Charpolia Botita dario Balicharis Coniston Banamina Coni chapila Scription phasa Bata Awaous stamineus Bata Stemugi cascasia Bata Awaous stamineus Bata Jilia colla Steura Awaous stamineus Bagariu Steina siloadia Bagarius Stena siloadia Bagarius Bagarius bagarius Bagarius Silona siloadia Bagarius Silona siloadia Bagarius Silona siloadia Bagarius Silona siloadia Pangas Avaridescenta Cang tenga Silona siloadia Poa Silona siloadia Poa Migratory Aorichthys sor Avaridethis Cangas Migratory Aorichthys aor Avaridethis Cangan Migratory	0.147	1	T	t	I.	T	1		_		1	0.553	0.042	0.086	Т	T	Т	6.118	0.087
Nemachellus botia Balichara 0.762 Somileptes gengota Gharpoia 0.762 Botia dario Rani 0.762 Hilas Ilizha Ilish 0.762 Gernalosa manmina Goori chapila 0.762 Stepina phasa Rani 0.762 Stepina phasa Rani 0.762 Awous stamineus Bata 1.132 Stepina phasa Rhoruld corsula Bele Awous stamineus Bata 1.132 Stemugi corsula Bele 1.132 Ania colla Steinurg 0.063 Stemugi corsula Bata 1.132 Stemugi corsula Khorsula 1.133 Ania colla Kajuli 1.133 Stemugi corsula Shillong 0.063 Baganis bigarius Kauwa 0.063 Cagara viridescens Gang tengra 1.497 Gagara veridescens Panpas 0.083 Paras parasio Panpas 0.056 Panas atria Sisor Avrichthys aor Antia cola Avrichthys aor Avre Migratory Avrichthys aor Avre Migratory Avrichthys aor Avre Migratory Av	0.147	0.210	1	T	T	r	1	_	_	0.000	0.161	-	0 362	0.568	0.784	0.065	0.680	29.826	0.424
Somileptes georgeta Gharpola Botia dario Rani Botia dario Rani Botia dario Rani Botia dario Botia Setipizana Phasa Setipizana Phasa Setipizana Phasa Setipizana Phasa Awaous stamineus Bele Liza partia Bele Liza partia Bela Alla colla Stontal Stonta silondia Shillong Bagarius bagarius Bagarius Gagata cortai Kauwa Gagata cortai Kauwa Cangata viridescens Gang tengra Cangata cortai Sior Sioria silondia Sior Bagarius bagarius Pangas Cangata cortai Nawa Siort Oxoli Siort Siort Siort Siort Amapasitus Pangas Pangas Cortai Migratory Actichthys aor Ansigela Cuizza Migratory Actichthys aor Astario tengram Cuizza Migratory Actichthys aor Astario tengram Colish tengram Mystus coras	- , , ,	0.511	0.092	1	.065	T	- 2.561		1211	700.0	10170		-	1 401		1	1	15.911	0.226
Botia dario Rani 0.762 Hilas likka Rani 0.762 Hilas likka Gonialosa mammina Goni chapila Gonialosa mammina Goni chapila 0.762 Setipina phasa Phasa Conichapila Setipina phasa Phasa 1132 Awous stamineus Bele 1.132 Stiamugi corsula Rhorsula 1.132 Sicamugi corsula Kajuli 18.464 Alia colus Bata 117004 Silonia silondia Shillong 0.069 Silonia silondia Shillong 0.063 Bagarius bagarius Raura 1.132 Gagata certai Kajuli 1.1004 Gagata certai Kajuli 1.497 Gagata certai Kauwa 0.065 Sitor Gagata certai Poangera Gagata certai Poangera 1.497 Sitor Sitor 0.065 Barasio barasio Poan 0.0056 Barasio barasio Tengra 0.0056 Barasio barasio Colishing rengra 0.0056 Barasio barasio Colishing rengra 0.0056 Barasio barasio Colishing 0.0056 Barasio baras	.	0.053	Т	T	1	T	1	0.084			1	1	0107		1	1	0.051	3.372	0.048
Hilas Iiikha IIish Gonialosa mammina Goni chapila Setipinna phasa Phasa Setipinna phasa Phasa Setipinna phasa Phasa Setipinna phasa Phasa Stimornugi corsula Rata Rhinornugi corsula Rata Sicamugi corsula Rata Alia colia Gana Silonia silondia Shillong Gagata cenia Kauwa Gagata cenia Pon Silon tanasio Pon Migratory Aorichthys aor Mystus checkeri Coisma Mystus checkeri Coisha rengm Mystus checkeri <td< td=""><td>1</td><td>0.184</td><td>0.063</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>T</td><td>1</td><td>7000</td><td></td><td></td><td>1 CTION</td><td>- 1</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>0.027</td><td>0.0004</td></td<>	1	0.184	0.063	1	1	1	1	T	1	7000			1 CTION	- 1	1	1	1	0.027	0.0004
Avalues anamina Goni chapila Guian phasa Avalues anamina Scipitura phasa Phasa Avalues and the standing coreatia Phasa Scipitura phasa Phasa Avalues and the standing coreatia Phasa Storen ugl coreatia Phasa Alla colla Storen Alla colla Storen Storen struct Stata Anama garua Shillong Storen struct Gang tengra Indone Paneas Storent thabdophorus Poa Storent thabdophorus Poa Storent thabdophorus Poa Antiget origins Panpas Migratory Aorichthys aor Arriber Colsha tengra Mystus chekeri Colsha tengra Mystus consails Myster Antipel Colsha tengra Mystus consails Myster Arributs meteen Colsha tengra Mystus consails Myster Mystus consails Myster Arributs Colsha tengra Araba		т	1	T	T	1	1	0000	0		U)	1			T é	_		10731	0100
contantos mantantas Contantantas Scipina phasa Bata Scimurgi corsula Rhorsula Ania colla Khorsula Stamugi corsula Rhor Stamugi corsula Bata Ania colla Khorsula Stamugi corsula Bata Ania colla Khorsula Stamugi corsula Bata Ania colla Stata Stanta Stata Stata Capata Stata Capata Gagata viridescens Gang tengra Gagata viridescens Cang tengra Cagata voussouff Cang tengra Stoor thibys ac Ayre Subtota Aorichthys aor Migratory Aorichthys aor Arither Cangra Migratory Aorichthys aor Arither Cangra Barasio tengana Cangra Mystus bleekeri Cangra Mystus bleekeri Cangra Carbona Aorichthys aor Arither Aorichthys aor Arither Aorichthys aor Arither Cangra Mystus bleekeri Cangra Carbona Caba Arither Aorichthys aor	T	1	1	1	T	-	1	- 0.237	-	1 			1	1	1			e ADO	10101
Scienturia passa Fatalogical Awaous stamineuts Bara Liza passa Kiborsula Liza passa Kiborsula Liza passa Kiborsula Scientugi corsula Kiguli Stionia siondia Bara Stionia siondia Bara Stionia siondia Shillong Stionia siondia Stionia Stionia sionia Cange tengra Cange tengra 1.497 Sionia siona Pangasius Pangasius Pangasius Antipatory Antipates Antipatory Antipates Mystus carasius Pangas Antipatory Antipates Mystus carasius Pangas Antipatory Antibates Antipatory Antibate	1	Т	T	T	1	-	1	т	1	' -	1	0.075	9000	1	1			OF F	101 0
Awous stammeus Bene Liza parsia Exercisa Kabreula Exercisa Rhonengrege exercisa Kajuli Stemuoruge exercisa Kajuli Stemuoruge exercisa Kajuli Stemuoruge exercisa Kajuli Stemus begarius begarius Bagarius begarius Stoonia silondia Shillong 0.069 Stoonia silondia Stamura 117.004 Stoonia silondia Shillong 0.069 Stoonia silondia Shillong 0.069 Stoonia silondia Shillong 0.069 Stoonia silondia Store 0.069 Stoonia silondia Store 0.069 Stoor Gagata certai Kauwa 0.065 Stoor Stoor Stoor 1.497 Stoor Stoor Stoor 0.065 Pangastus pengastus Poa 0.005 Rama pama Poa 0.005 Barasio tengara Poa 0.005 Barasio tengara Codsha tengara 0.005 Mystus cerasius Mystus cerasius Attice Mystus cerasius Poa 0.005 Barasio tengara Codsha tengara 0.005 Barasio tengara <td></td> <td>T</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>-</td> <td>- 2.215</td> <td>5 0.109</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td>0011</td> <td></td>		T	1	1	1	1	-	- 2.215	5 0.109	1	1	1	1	1	1	-		0011	
Liza parsia Liza parsia Rhinornugi cersula Bara Sicamugi cersula Kabura Sicamugi cersula Kabua Silong casasia Kajuli 11,132 Cupisoma grua Ghaura 17,004 20 Silonia silondia Shillong 0,069 20 Silonia silondia Shillong 0,069 20 Gagata cenia Kauwa Cagata vridescenta Gang tengra 1,497 1 Sicor thay outsooufi Gang tengra 1,497 1 Sicor thay outsooufi Sicor 0,068 20 Sicor thay outsooufi Gang tengra 1,497 1 Sicor than genera Para Pangas 0,068 20 Para parati Pangasius Pon genera 0,0058 20 2 Barasio barasio Tengra 0,0026 Barasio barasio Tengra Mrigel 0,2111 Labeo bata Barasio barasio Caisan Raik Mystus cerasius Kabashi rengra 0,026 20 2 Labeo bata Barasio barasio Caisan Caisan 0,026 20 2 Labeo bata Barasio barasio Tengra 1,487 20 2 Mystus cerasius Kabashi rengra 0,026 20 2 Labeo bata Barasio barasio Caisan Raik Cirthinus teba Bara	Lan n	-		1	1	-	-	1	1		1	1	T	1	1	-	1	-	
Rhinomugi corsula Khorsula 1,132 Stemuugi cascasia Bata 1,132 Stemuugi cascasia Bata 1,1004 Atila colla Stonia silondia Baphair Clupisona grua Shillong 0,069 Stonia silondia Baphair 0,069 Bagarius bagarius Bagarius bagarius Baphair Gagata viridescenta Gang tengra 1,407 Gagata viridescenta Gang tengra 1,407 Gagata viridescenta Gang tengra 1,407 Sisor thabdophorus Pangas 0,065 Pana pama Pangas 0,065 Barasio tengra 0,065 2005 Migratory Aorichthys aor Ayre 5,619 Migratory Aorichthys aor Ayre 5,619 Migratory Aorichthys aor Colis 2005 Barasio tengram Cargara 0,005 Cirthirus secos Barasi 0,005 Barasio tengram Cargara 0,005 Bara	700.0	-			766	_	-	- 1	-	0.035	1	0.129	0.025	1	T	1	1	1.625	570.0
Sicamuge cascasia Bata Atila colla Kajuli 18,484 Clupisona garua Shihung 0,069 Bagnar shodia Baghar 0,081 Gagata viridescens Gang tengra 1,497 Gagata viridescens Gang tengra 1,497 Gagata vousoufi Gang tengra 1,497 Sisor thabdophorus Sisor Pama pama Pama Pama Pangas 0,065 Pangasius pangetuis Pangas 0,065 Pangasius pangetuis Pangas 0,065 Batasio tengram Cangra 0,026 Batasio tengram Cangra 0,026	1	1	1-1-0				-1	-	-		1	0.872	1	1	t	1	1	7.214	0.103
Atilia colla Kajuli 18,484 Atilia colla Statura 13,046 Stonia silondia Shilong 0,069 Bagarius bagarius Baghair 0,063 Bagarius bagarius Baghair 0,063 Bagarius partendia Shilong 0,063 Bagarius partendia Shilong 0,063 Gagata vicus Baghair 0,031 Gagata vicus Gang tengra 1,497 Gagata vicus Sisor Gang tengra Sisor rhabdophorus Poa 0,005 Pangasius pama Poa 0,005 Migratory Atorichthys aor Ator Migratory Atorichthys seenghala Caizza Mystus cavasius Tengra 0,026 Barasio tengram Caizza 0,026 Barasio tengram Caizza 0,026 Arystus cavasius Kabashi 0,026 Labeo bata Bata Caizza Laboo bata Bata Laboo bata Bata Laboo bata </td <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>_</td> <td>- 0.170</td> <td>0 18.704</td> <td>5.051</td> <td>3.858</td> <td>1.255</td> <td>4.936</td> <td>0.084</td> <td>1</td> <td>T</td> <td>Т</td> <td>191.155</td> <td>2.717</td>	1	1	-				_	- 0.170	0 18.704	5.051	3.858	1.255	4.936	0.084	1	T	Т	191.155	2.717
Clupisonna garua Ghaura 17.004 Silonia silondia Shillong 0.069 Bagarius bagarius Bagarius bagarius Bagarius Gagata centia Kauwa 0.0031 Gagata centia Kauwa 0.0035 Sisor Gang tengra 1.497 Pangas Pangas 0.0055 Pangas or Pon 46.350 Autichthys aor Ayre 5.619 Migratory Actichthys aor Ayre Migratory Actichthys aor 7.903 Migratory Actichthys aor 7.903 Astasio tengana Galaka tengra 0.0056 Barasio tengana Goldah tengra 0.026 Mystus cenasius Kabashi 0.026 Labeo bata Bata Cirthinus mrigala Laboo bata Bata Bata Laboo bata Bata 0.211 Laboo bata Bata 0.211 Laboo bata Bata 0.211	0.410	1.923	3.099	1	1						15.895	1.715	4.187	0.661	0.637	1	1	210.621	2.993
Silonia silondia Shillong 0.069 Bagarius begarius a Shillong 0.069 Gagata cenia Kauwa Gagata cenia Kauwa Gagata virdescens Gang tengra 1.497 Siort paras pama Pana pama Pona Pon 0.065 Pangastius pengastius Pon 0.0056 Barasio barasio Tengra 0.0026 Barasio barasio Tengra 0.0026 Barasio barasio Tengra 0.0026 Barasio barasio Tengra 0.0026 Barasio barasio Colsha tengra 1.45350 Mystus cherana Colsha tengra 0.0026 Barasio barasio Tengra 0.0026 Barasio barasio Tengra 0.0026 Labeo bata Barasio barasio Tengra 1.45350 Cirrhinus mrigala Kabashi 0.011 Labeo bata Bara	20.727	6.764	4.876	1	1	-		_				-1	0.860	1	1	T	1	11.935	0.170
Bagarius bagarius bagarius bagaair 0.831 0.631 Gagata cenia Kauwa 0.631 Gagata cenia Kauwa 0.631 Gagata viridescenta Gang tengra 1.497 Gagata viridescenta Gang tengra 1.497 Sisor thabdophorus Sisor 1.497 Sisor thabdophorus Pana para 0.065 Pana parai Pos 0.065 Pana parai Ponpats 0.065 Panto parais Panpas 0.065 Pana parai Pos 0.0055 Aorichthys aor Ayre 5.619 Migratory Aorichthys aor Ayre Migratory Aorichthys aor Cuizza Mystus feederii Galsh tengra 0.0266 Barasio tengana Galsh tengra 0.026 Mystus cenasius Kabashi 0.11 Labeo bata Bata 0.211 Laboo bata Bata Bata Laboo bata Bata 0.211	1	T	0.267	1			5	1-1	0.050	1170	0.829		1	3	1	1	T	11.242	0.160
Gagata cenia Kauwa Gagata viridescens Gang tengra Gagata viridescens Gang tengra Gagata viridescens Gang tengra Sisor rhabdophorus Sisor Parma pama Panpas Panpastius pangasius Panpas Panpastius Panpas Migratory Acrichthys aor Acrichthys seenghala Tengra Mystus bleekeri Golsha tengra Mystus cavasius Mriged Cirrhinus mrigala Mriged Labeo bata Bata Laboo bata Bata	0.492	1.474	1	t.				-10	209 0		16.142	0.291	0.131	Ţ	1	Т	1	101.319	1.440
Gagara viridescens Gang tengra 1.497 Gagara youssoufi Gang tengra 1.497 Sisor thabdophorus Sisor Sisor Panapama Pangas 0.065 Pangasius Pangas 0.065 Pangasius Pangas 0.065 Barasio barasio Tengra 0.026 Barasio barasio Tengra 0.026 Barasio barasio Tengra 0.026 Mystus bleekeri Golsha tengra 0.026 Mystus bleekeri Golsha tengra 0.026 Labeo bata Bata Mrigel Labeo bata Bata Bata Laboo bata Bata Bata	0.055	0.447	1	1	1		-	1900			8.517	1	1	1	T	1	Т	37.625	0.535
Gagata youssouff Gang tengra 1.497 Sisor thabdopborus Sisor 1.497 Sisor thabdopborus Sisor 1.497 Pama pama Poa 0.065 Subtotal Pangasius pangasius Pangas Subtotal Acrichthys searchala Cuizza Migratory Acrichthys searchala Guizza Acrichthys searchala Guizza 0.026 Barasio tengram Golsha tengra 0.026 Mystus cavasius Kabashi Golsha tengra Mystus cavasius Kabashi 0.211 Labeo bata Bata Golsha tengra Laboo bata Bata Bata Laboo bata Bata Bata Laboo bata Bata Bata Laboo bata Bata Bata	r	T	1		-		-	0100	0 2.878	2.376		0.553	0.744	0.335	1	1	1	68.471	0.973
Sisor thubdophorus Sisor Parma parma Pose Parma parma Pose Subtotal Pangustus Subtotal Pangustus Subtotal Avrichthys aor Migratory Avrichthys seenghala Guizza 0.026 Barasio tengena 0.026 Barasio tengena Golsha tengea Mystus cavasius Tengea Mystus cavasius Mrigel Cirrhinus mrigala Mrigel Labeo bata Bara Laboo pata Bara Laboo pata Bara Laboo pata Bara Laboo pata Bara Laboo bata Bara Laboo pata Bara Laboo bata Bara Laboo bata Bara	0.139	0.586	0.062	1					_			1	T	1	Т	1	1	0.034	0.0005
Parma parma Post 0.065 Pangustius parma Pangas 0.065 Subtotal Arreitatius Pangas 48.350 Migratory Acrichthys seenghala Cuizza 0.065 Migratory Acrichthys seenghala Cuizza 0.026 Barasio Tengra 0.026 Mystus corresulus Tengra 0.026 Mystus corrasius Tengra 0.026 Mystus corvasius Tengra 0.026 Mystus corvasius Kabashi Colsha tengra Cirrhinus mrigala Mrigel 0.111 Labeo bata Bata 0.211 Laboo bata Bata Data	1	1	I			-	-	- 0.004	1		1	-1	Ţ	T	Ţ	1	1	0.013	0.0002
Pangasius pangasius Pangas 0.000 Subtotal Acrichthys acr 48.350 2 Migratory Acrichthys seenghala Guizza 9.026 Barasio tengana Colsha tengra 0.026 Mystus cavasius Tengra 0.026 Mystus cavasius Tengra 0.026 Mystus cavasius Tengra 0.026 Mystus cavasius Tengra 0.026 Labeo bata Bata Bata Labeo bata Bata Bata Labeo bata Bata Bata Laboo bata Bata Bata Laboo bata Bata Bata Laboo bata Bata Bata	r	-				-1	T	-	-	-		1	1	1	1	'	T	1	
Subiotal Subiotal Migratory Activity act Ayre 5.509 40.500 40.500 Activity act Ayre 5.619 Activity seenghala Guizza 0.026 Barasio tengana Tengra 0.026 Barasio tengana Golsha tengra Mystus cavasius Kabashi Golsha tengra Mystus cavasius Kabashi Labeo bata Bara 1.4000 bata 1.4000 bata Bara 1.4000 bata 1.40000 bata 1.4000 bata 1.	. 18		D MAD		1831	-	- 2.779	125.7 91	1 32.700	53,258	62.009	9,741	13.014	3.509	3.122	0.065	0.731	1071.403	15.227
Migratory Actichthys act Ayre 5.619 Actichthys seenghala Guizza 0.026 Barasio barasio Tengra 0.026 Barasio barasio Tengra 0.026 Mystus bleekeri Golsha tengra 0.026 Mystus cavasius Kabashi Colsha tengra 0.211 Labeo bara Bara Mrigel 0.211 Labeo bara Bara 1.200 bara 1.200 bara 0.0211 Labeo bara Bara 1.200 bara	791.02	17:303	ncn.x			-	-		0.047	7 1.479	4.472	0.313	0.504	1.878	0.478	1	5.693	98.824	1.405
Actichthys seenghala Guizza 0.026 Barasio barasio Tengra 0.026 Barasio barasio Tengra 0.026 Mystus bleekeri Golsha tengra 0.026 Mystus cavasius Kabashi Mystus avasius Kabashi Cirrhinus mrigala Mrigel 0.211 Labeo bata Bata Labeo bata Bata	1		-		-1	-1			-1	-	1.764		0.495	1	1	1	1	14.624	0.208
Barasio barasio Iengra 0.020 Barasio tengnan Tengra 0.020 Mystus envasius Kabashi Mystus envasius Kabashi Cirrhinus mtigula Mrigel 0.211 Labeo bata Bata Labeo bata Bata				-1	- 1	1	Т	-	Ţ	-			1	1	1	1	1		
Barasio tengana Iengm Mystus bleekeri Golsha tengm Mystus cavasius Kabashi Cirrhinus mrigala Mrigel Cirrhinus reba Raik 0.211 Labeo bata Bata Labeo bata Bhangau		-		-	,	-	-1	-1	1	-		0.716	Ţ	1	L.	T		076.5	0.004
Mystus bleekeri Gosha tengra Mystus cavasius Kabashi Cirrhinus mrigala Mrigel Cirrhinus reba Raik 0.211 Labeo bata Bata Labeo bata Bata	-	1000	0100	-1	-1	-1	-1	- 0.027	1.704	4 0.089	0.604	1	0.189	2.054	1.651	0.621	3.075	010.60	0.400
Mystus cavasius Kabashi Cürthinus mrigala Mrigel Cürthinus relsa Raik 0.211 Labeo bata Bata Labeo bega Bhangata		170.0	10.00			-1	-	T	-1	T		1.279	0.513	5.143	0.122	0.317	2.672	94.257	1.340
Cirrhinus mrígala Mrígel 0.211 Cirrhinus reba Raik 0.211 Labeo bata Bata Labeo boga Bhangad	2:030	0.10%	007-0		-	1	-	1	-1	-1	5.620	8.054	Т	1	T	T	T	095-16	1.298
Cirrhinus reba Ralk 0.211 Labeo bata Bata Labeo boga Bhangan	-		- 7	1	-	1	-	-	-	- 0.042	0.194	0.333	1.654	0.655	1.034	0.047	2.241	56.371	109.0
Labeo bata Bata Labeo boga Bhangati	1	1			-	_	-1	-1		_	т		1	0.258	1	1	1	2.879	0.041
Labeo boga	0.220	2.134	0.004	1	-			- 1	-1			-	1.075	0.135	Т	Т	T	16.425	0.233
 A Distance in the second s	1	0.659	0.037	1	-	-	-		-1	-1		1.450	1.246	Т	1.541	0.729	T	44.823	0.637
102 Labeo calbasu Antibaus	1	1	1	1	-	-		. 1		L 0 774		1.020	1	1	1	0.355	Ţ	11.870	0.169
107 Labeorohita Rui 0.425	T	1	T	T	T	-	_	_	_	-1			-	0.013	1	1	Т	0.144	0.002
Chela laubuca Kash Khaira	T	Т	1	T	T	r	-	_		- 1	0 300	1	0.799	0.161	1	1	1	14.635	0.205
Salmostoma bacaila Katari 0.207	0.735	0.655	0.074	1	-	1	;	aure	101 F	4 874		0.322	1.409	0.518	1	0.170	2.205	97.066	1.380
	1	1.278	0.616	1	9.634	,	1 1	NIT N	_			0.852		0.021	T	1	3	14.790	0.210
	1	1	T	1		r	-	-	105.0	FES U LI	0117			0.011	1	1	1.379	17.418	0.245
Gudusia chapra Chapila 0.323	0.028	0.109	0.039	1	1	r	-	007 0	_		_		1.437	1	1	-	Т	26.991	0.384

¥

1-

-0

Habitat Preference Subtotal Floodplain Resident	Species name Scientific Bengal Pseudeuropius atherinoide Batasi			•								1000000 LC 007	ADD 10000000						Year: 1994	Superior S	T 100-
Preference Subtoral Resident Resident	ropius atherinoide				Year: 1992		20000000000000000000000000000000000000					Year	Year: 1993				Constanting of the	Contraction of the		1	Mar 33 - FC0 34
Subtotal Subtotal Floodplain Resident	ropius atherinoide	Benzali	Aug	Sep	Oet	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb M	Mar April	H May	June	July	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Kg
Subtorial Floodplain Resident		Batasi	0 1	1	1.034	0.071	r		1	T	-					0.254	1.033	T			15.068
Subtorna Floodplain Resident	Wallagu attu	Boal	0.194	1	35.742	56.007	59.795	1	1	-1	1		3.237		1 1	1.405	4.126	31.013	2.536	5.247 3	373.210 16.477
Flood plain Resident	Notopterus chitala	Chifal	17.325	6.624	43.003	57.302	59.795	9.634		- 2.190	0 3.029	7.634	10.529	13.676	14.338	11.723	17.451	35.839	4.775 2.	22.512 10	1082.662 15.387
Resident	Anabas testudineus	Koi		T	T	-	1	T	-	-	-				T	0.189	T	T	6.261	Т	32.567
	2	Bajari tengra	0.341	1	0.020	1	7	1.266	-	Ţ	-				0.229	1	2.856	Т			33.810
		Tengra	1	-	1.845	2.904	3.776	1.911	T	- 7.681		0.181			166'0	2.191	5.890	2.245			80.030
		Khalisha	-1	1	1	1	-	Ţ	T	- 0.093	3 0.035	0			1.735	0:000	0.274	0.310	7.221	3.218	75.795
	Colisa Ialia	Lal Khalisha	1	1	1		1	1	1	1	,				1/2	0.047	1	T	1	t	0.656
	Colica sota	Khalisha	-1	-	Ţ	1	1	1	-1	1	,					1	1	0.248	1	T	1.940
	n cancia	Kaikka	0.722	-	0.027	0.030	-	10.167	-1	- 0.125	126.1 22				1	30£.0	1.443	1.292	5.048	4.454	88.444
	otio	Keti		1	1	'	1	Ţ	-	-1	-				1	20	0.004	1	-	T	0.048
	Puntius chola	Chala puri	-1	1	0.053	1	1	1		-	-				1	1	1	0.144	T		16.110
	Puntius conchonius	Canchan puti	-	0.176	2.679	8.121	2.220	12.582	- 25.812	512 45.556	58.200	5.299	105.0	0.407	0.982	3.795	3.413	12.635	3.672	5.927	499.458
10/1	Puntius golius	Gülputi	7	7	0.013	1	1	1	ţ	T	T	-				1	1	T	1	T	1
P 177	Puntius guganio	Mola puti	(J	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1				1	1	0.004	T	1	1	0.048
	Puntius phutunio	Phutani puti	1	T	T	0.017	1	9.445	T	- 0.513	.3 0.761					1	1.	1	1	0.385	5.198
P 179	Puntius sarana	Sarpuri	1	ł	ł	1	1	1	1	1	- 0.500	_			105	1	1	T			1.530
180 P	Puntius sophore	Puri	0.071	0.088	17.066	6.937	11.019	2.060 85	85.369 2.4	2.468 2.467	12.931	0.298	0.302	3.173	2.761	37.180	15.080	6.451	14.004 1	<u> </u>	923.346
181	Puntius terio	Teri punti	5	1	0.979	0.602	1	T	T	T	,	1					1	1		1/0.0	0.439
212 P	Puntius ticto	Tit puti	9,463	16.510	ŗ	r	ŗ	5.205	Ŀ.	1	51	1	0.021		2.032	0.462	1.060	5270	_	616.0	020.66
5	Ambiypharygodon mola	Mola	1	1	1	1	Ţ	1	J	1-	1	-			0.094	0.036	0.256	1	0.363	Ľ.	0.210
	Danio devario	Chebli	1	1	1	T	1	1	1	1	1	1			0.099	1 001 0		-	1	1	0.65
	Esomus danricus	Darkina	0.280	1	0.018	0.004	1		-	-	-					0.400				_	CO1.4
	Giossogobius giurus	Ballla	5.975	1.597	2.543	3.555	1.559	13.688 14	14.631 22.252	252 25.247	17 5.414	C+C-6 +	215.0	1./45	19./45	010.0	500	064.6	06/.6	760.0	0150
	Chela cachius	Chep Chela	0.380	T,	1	1		1	1	_	_				1 066	1 011	2 166	ACT C	1010	SPC 1	03 531
	Lepidocophal us guntoa	Gutum	0.505	1	1.893	0.246	0.904	r -	s T	00071 000570	CTTT 00	700.0			006-1	11011	001-7	07/14	C4+'0	0471	1.000
	Lepidocephal us thermalis	Furya		-	1	-	-		-	-	1110		- X						1	1	9500
	Aplocheilus panchar	Kanpona	600.0		-	0 400		0.424		019 0 1900	_	0000	0.027		# 70K	10.058	1 654	8 000	14 040	7135	167 880
	Channa punctatus	Iaki cutadi	C11.0	961.0	7//0	060'0	010-0	166 1		_					202.0	-	1 383	0.152	0.151	0.634	23.178
00	Hereropheusres tossus	Sung TT			00710	aut u		1.441			0 587		0110			1 041		[0.998	23.183
	Macro guardus acucatus	Guchi	0 414	0220	0.485	0.372	0.288	5.770	16	9.035 6.847		3.832			-	4.438	11.758	13.652	9.048	8.299	445.442
	Mastroembelus armatus	Reral haim	0 338	0.678	5.818	7.352	7.667	0.173	-	_		-		3.937	7.680		17.651	4.666	4.028	6.184	422.602
	Badis badis	Napit koi		3	1	4	1	-1	Т	-	1	-		-	-	1		-	1.037	1	4.960
	Ompok pabda	Madhu pabda	1	1	0.324	- 1	1	T	Т	1	1	1	1		-	1	1	0.310	1	1	2.425
	Notopterus notopterus	Foli	1	Ţ	ľ	-	1	T	-	-1	-	T	-		0.290	1	0.106	1	0.148	1	4.293
	Tetraodon cutcutia	Potka	4	1	1	ł	1	1	т	-	- 0.096	2		1	-	ŗ	1	0.004		U	0.325
36 0	Chanda nama	Nama Chanda	0.113	1	0.061	0.078	T	1	T	- 0.400							0.746	0.595	_	1	47.436
37 C	Chanda ranga	Lal chanda	0.165	T	0.016	0.009	t	T		_							0.457	0.273		_	59.530
Subtotal			18.952	19.468	41.121	31.032	30.743	64.335 100	100.000 90.	90.324 91.155	55 84.854	4 32.492	8.582	19.056	52.186	866'69	70.737	58.257	77.170 6	62.868 4	4020.241
Others	Unidentified fish		0.036	0.328	0.053	T	1	1	T	1	-	1	1	1	1			1	1	1	
	Macrobrachium rosenbergi Golda	Golda		200 01	1 000	262 6	- 121 0	000 10	1		- 1 10K	FLILL	0.011	6760	73 744	2765		- CML C	17 080 1	13 888	861 650
T Internet	rrawn spp.	Cungrysca	000001	377 84	Y940 L	9192	EN4.0	21 200	0	18		100			100		8.272	2.782	188	諁	861.727
anonuc -					-				2		L						901	1001		ſ	2026.013

notes Let 0 catch

Note

9	
E(
BR	
9	
sin	
ü	
Live	
i i	
SWIZ	
ale	
đ	
Ę.	
E	
Ē	
Eht	
M	
A	
R	
BO	
- Mail	
Ê	
8	
atc	
N G	
f	
Wo	
-	
05	
abk.	
FL	

	Species n	ame			Year: 1992							×	Year: 1993						Vear: 1004		Total annual catch
Code Prelerence	Scientific	Bengali	Aug		Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar A	April N	May Ju	ne July	by Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	de 1	Ke
166 Kiverine 106	Kita rita Labor monorcia	Rita		0.028	0.168	0.185	0.202	0.291	T	20.22	1	1	1		0	0	1.070	T	1	1	36.250
13	T.M.T.	Piali	LCA F	436 5	1 1 2 1	1 316	a Mic	1 100		_			- 1		1		0.016	1	1	1	0.477
18		Bani koksa	-		14000	oren	010	- 10/-/1	-412	* 061.0		3.297 4.9	.928	1	0.302		0.110	0.878	3.296	0.635	414.580
218	Įp.			1	1	1	0.231	1	-	- 1	-	-	-		1360			1	1	1	5.750
22		Tile kokse	•	T	0.004	0.060	1	-1	-1	-	T	-	-	1.0.0		751'0	0.452	1. Sel	1	1	69.859
59		Kalabata	0.245		1	0.352	0.005	1	0.339	0.169	,	1	-1		0.109	0.792	0.865	T	2.815	0.041	000 11
139		Ballchats	0.028	0.028	1.135	2.405	0.087	0.065	1.014 0	0.106 0.1	0.504 1.1	1.185 0.600	00 0.878		0.163		0.028	0.192	24.0	0.214	55.283
100	Daydelli	Culturn		1	T	1	1	0.005	1	r	,	1		1	ſ	1	1	-	1	'	1
30	tongota	Gharpoia		1	T	0.008	1	T	1	1	-	0.852		-		0.123	1	-	,	0.039	13.583
07	Both darto	Kaul	0.233	0.231	0.068	1.067	0.835	0.081	0.001	0	0.002	1	- 0.067	-	0.773	0.199	0.613	0.036	0.817	0.205	47.062
Da			0.003		1		1	1	1	т	1	U	1			0.066	1	1	1	T	1.437
50		11150	0.609	11.149	0.551	0.062		_	1	•	1	- I.713	13	1	0.773	0.027	0.305	1	0.043	1	23.660
2 3	Codialoge manimum	Cont chapta			T	r	r	0.159		0.271	1		1	1	1	0.118	0.164	0.279	8.878	0.483	165.541
101		NECOL			1	0.005	0.034	1	0.404		0.073	1	1	1	1	1	0.003	1	0.010	37.039	548.487
170		area.	0.036	0.051	r		1	_	_	0.038	1	1	1	- 0.959	0.119	0.142	0.347	1	0.213	1	21.170
*1	susait	Bele			1	•	0.111	0.035	2.100 2	2.716 2.7	2.790 3.8	3.803 1.480	05	- 0.288	0.055		0.017	1	0.605	0.585	78.153
044		Bele	1	1	1	100.0	ŗ	Т	1	Ţ	т	1	-	1	1	1	1	1	-1		
126	sis.	Bata	1	T	0.681	T	1	Т	Ţ	2	1	1	-	ा - 1	-		-	1	1	-	
922		Bata		1	Т	0.002	ł	т	1	1	1	-1	-	ा न			1	1		-	_
31		Khorsula	0.121	0.119	0.633	0.661	2.136	2204	0.079	1	0.225 0.660	09	-	- 0.247	0.823	1.235	1	0.077	1 214	1361	047.66
526		Bata	0.036	0.035	1	1	1	1	Т	1	-	T		- 0.274	1	0.038	0.105	1			1 800
163	bis baro	Kharu		1	1	1	1	1	T	1	- 0.586	86	- 0.878		,	0.081	1	-1	0.027	-	UD B S D
19		lintery	2.185	3.522	3.686	3.519	0.010	0.015 0.	0.0004		0.004	5.832	15 15 545	5 23.035	4.470	0.809	0.800	-1	100.0		000-01
51		Gbaura	1.467	2.817	20.647	3.965	0.491	0.354 0	0.010	-	-	161.7 -		_		3.609	6.477	0.476	-	2 000	100/717
136		Shillong	1	1	0.340		0.060	0.651	0.018 0.	0.100	-	1			1	'	165.0	1	1	1	12 588
0	erius.	Begbar	0.138	0.019	Т	0.389	t	1	1	t	-	T	- 0.542	0.284	1	1	0.650	0.035	1	-1	27 818
1		Kauma		1	T	0.096	1	1	-	,		- 0.094			0.029	3	0.016	1	-	1	101 W
18		Gang tengra	U.		T	1	T	ł	1	,		-	-	- 0.251	1	1	1	'	1	-	0.820
200	-	Gang tengra		1	1			1	T	1	1	Ţ		-	1	1	0.123	'	1	-1	3.607
. 331	IINOSS	Cang tengra	0.727	0.648	22576		0.791	0.020	т	,	1	,	- 7.249	2.643	0.142	0.574	2.416	0.020	0.025	0.016	108.357
		Lon	0.049		0.303	0.025	_	0.109	T	1	-	1	- 0.067	T	0.799	1	0.619	0.014	1	-1	26.659
550	Amblement memory	Belitar			-	1	0.082	1	1	1	1	1	1	-	1	1	1	1	-	-	'
Subtotal		m de m	D SAR	27142	111.12	1 101 10	1 414 64	0.004			-	-		-	1	1	1	1		-	-
7 Missan	Anouth hance buck	0-mint	1040	1111	TITLE				0.379 6.	5.7% 7.8	7.844 10.386	86 21.837	7 37.252	54.137	22.554	11.539	15.657	1.957	20.463	43.613 27	2742.791
	Acrichthys acr	Avre	0.014	0.014	- 11	1 11	1 600 1		1	1	1		_		1	1	-	T	3	T	T
135	schele	Guirm			101111		_		007.0		140.0	47 0.613	3 9,494	10.792	0.095	2.034	9.076	0.584	6.409	т Т	501.840
22		Tenera			57	1000	712.1		-	-		1			1	1	1	1.836	0.829	T	272.011
131		Golda tenera	0.050	-	0.018		1 1000	0 000			1	-,-	- 0.852		0.124	0.031	1.419	T	1		44.993
132		Kabashi	0.127	0.152	1.113	5.217		_		0.018 0.0	010 010 0	100 00	500m		0.072	0.017	0.556	0.389	2.162	0.494	83.706
134		Ghagle		1					_		_		-	-	5571	10.4	2.071	1.325	2.951	4.081	12.350
32		Cathe	11.265	8.994	2.162	1	-,	-1				2000		1	D.	0.241	Ľ	,	1	r	
47	Cirrbinus mrigela	Mfr gel	1.440	1.426	0.288	-	-1	1	- 1	- 0.009	8				1106	1	1 1 1 1		1	-	0.056 0.0003
48	Cirr binus reba	Ratk	1.187	1.043	0.386	4.404	0.360 0	0.423 0	0.394 2.0	2.021 0.144	44 0187	109 1 68	112.0	0.014	001-1	1 406	C#7.1		1	_	12.24
100	Labeo bata B.	Bata		Т	2.105		D.	<u></u>			_	_	_		1011	C60.1	7.77	0000	11.0	6.169 3	361.634
101	Labeo boga B	Bhangan	0.070	0.197	0.236		1	1	-	-1	_,	_				1./00	-	700.0	0.160		43.775
102		Kalbaus	0.493	0.936	-	0.948	1	,	-	-	-,	-			2				1		1
107		Rul	1.406	6.885	15.178	-	-1	-	-	-1	-	-,		0.018	0.651		5	C60.0	1		70.006
188		Katel	1.078	1.364	0.194	2.799	Т	0.416 0	0.454 1.	1.253 0.302	02	-7	0.585		0.163	1	0.005	0.008	004.0		2010
189	olu	Fulchek	1	0.254	0.588	0.526 4	4.763 0	0.582 1.	1.210 6.4		73 15.963	53 12.617		1.541	1.989	10.061	0.531		A ALA		07176
154		Chara chek	0.167	1	1	,	1	1	-	-	,	1			1	0.858	0.063	0.021	0.146	_	C101C
86		Chapila	0.461	0.448	0.143	1.376 4		0.261 0.	0.380 1.5	1.933 0.111	11 0.105	0.177	0.603	1	1	0.140	2.853	0.109	0.975	1.069	160 791
16		Bachs	0.454	0.961	0.604		0.075	,	,	-	- 0.067				8.142	1	2.636	-	-		151 351
109	us atherinoides	Betasi	0.355		0.998		0.101	1	0.061 0.3	0.313 0.131	31 0.048	80	- 0.502	1	0.136	2.645	0.428	0.159	0.121	-	90.618
Submet		DOW	0.645	0.760	4.823	0.687	-	-	1		1	1			1	6.780	32.687	63.722	0.860	0.930 45	4538.442 22.312
Involue			10 6341	2		ŝ								The second se							

Γ

4-

K.

Species Habkat	Specie	Species name			Year: 1992	32							Year: 1993	93					Y.	Year: 1994	(Mar'93	(Mar'93 - Feb'94)
Code Preference	Scientific	Bengall	Aug	Sep	p Oct	NON 1	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	April	May	June	July	Aug	Sep	Oct N	Nov E	Dec J	Jan F	Feb Kg	8
30		Bajari tengra	0.034		S	-		1		1	-	1	1	1	1	,	- 0.	0.040	1	т	- 1.172	2
137 Resident	Mystus vittatus	Tengra	1.419	0.932	52 0.109	9 0.926	1		0.189	0.009	0.186	0.188	1	0.014	0.058	_		0.274 0.3	0.380 1.122	22 0.158	-	-
	Colisa fasciarus	Khalikha	0.453	0.463	5	1	-	T	Ľ.	T	Т	0.046	T	1	1		0.179	1	- 0.3	0.318	- 9.538	
211	Colisa labiosus	Khalbba			T	T	1	t	,	1	T	1	U	0.841	1	0.419	т	1	1	1	+ 5.574	
56	Colisa la fa	Lal khalisha	0.014	0.014	4	1	1	1	Ľ	£	1	T.	Ţ	1		0.577 0	. 990.0	1	Ţ	1	- 6.972	2 0.034
57	Colisa sota	Khalkha					5		1	1	1	1	ŗ								_	
210	Xenentodon cancila	Kalkka	0.632	0.626	172.0 0.571	1 0.476	1	0.065	0.196	1.784	7.320	2.436	1	573	0.209	0.564	1.291 0.		0.172 3.881	81 1.687	~	-2024
187	Osteodrama cotio cotio	Ketl	0.682	0.675	75 0.006	5	4	1		ł	1	1	ł	1	1	r	0	0.013	T	T	- 0.382	
175	Puntius conchoutus	Canchan putl	0.062	0.063	3.438	4.314	3.969	12.905	17.047	165.09	59.686	21.616	3.494	0.289	0.014	_		<u></u>		9.435 9.609	r,	
176	Puntius gelius	Giliputi			-	1	-		1	T	1	0.008	1	1			0.323 0.0	0.050 0.0	0.007	1	- 11.739	2
178	Puntius phutunio	Phutani puti			1	- 0.039	-T	0.119	0.359	3.	-	1	1	1	0.005	0.802	-	1	,		- 7.699	3
180	Puntius sophore	Puch	0.352	0.370	3.482	2 1.446	0.710	1.002	1.205	1.673	2.675	0.194	0.291	10.573	0.494	6.133 8	8.922 0.3	0.390 1.3	1.340 3.3	3.368 1.104	4 520.424	14 2.558
181	Puntius ter io	Teel punti		0.037	0.716	200	0.120	T	'	T	-	1	1	-1	T	1	Т	-	1	,	,	,
212	Puntius ticto	The put	0.141	0.139	6	-	0.005	0.019	15.125	1	0.005	-	0.634	-	0.052	0.486 0	0.292 0.	0.284 0.0	0.033	1	- 23.684	14 0.116
	AmbAmbarmeodon mola	Mola	0.268		7	-	1		'	0.417	-1	-	-	2.320				0.010	i i i	-	- 77.241	0.380
60	Brachedonie zalo	4-4-		_		-				1	-	-	7					,	-1	- 1	- 0.555	
0	Profe download	almost all	0.046		1000	1000				6.7		0.057	10.033		-	_	1 468 01	0.007	0.096 0.2	0 239 0 029		
00	CIERTIO DE MALIO	in the second se	1000									1000		9766	2 366	EUS U			_			
0	Esourus dapricus	CORK ILLS		_		-					-	NAN'N			_		_	210				-
182	Rasbora daniconius	Derkins	0.062							t I	1			_	_	_	_	_				_
83	Glouogobius giurus	Ballin	1.372	0.717		4.159		4.027	16,463	065.11	616.11	29522	10.208	10.962	2.177	2114			2.3/1 2.4	170"	Ŧ	_
43	Chels cachius	Chep chek			- 0.051	-	0.005	1	,	T	1	0.045	1	1	ï	I	0.169 0.1	0.010	0.0	610'0	4.833	
601	Lepidocephalus berdmore!	Pulya		,			1	1	,	đ	1	0.046	0.249	1	,	1	-	1	,	T	- 1.439	_
011	Lepidocephalus guntea	Gutum	0.120	0.070	0.035	5 0.573	1	0.816	0.003	0.013	0.010	1	0.834	2.341	1	Ţ		0.023	0.2	0.248	- 26.168	2
217	Lepidocephalus thermalk	Puba	,		1	1	1-	1	1	T	1	0.046	1	1	1	T	060.0	1	-	1	1 2216	
39	Channa marulius	Gujar			T	_	1	1		T	1	0.141	1	1	1	T	_		_		_	-
41	Channa punctatus	Taki	3.356	2.613	3 1.619	1.102	0.063	0.124	0.583	0.053	0.449	0.647	0.032	1317	1.583	0.417	3.056 4.	4.622 1.1	1.123 2.4	2.433 0.020	8	_
42	Channa striatus	Shol			n	15		C.			0.150	1	1		1	i.	r	1	1		814	
50	Clarias gariepinus	African magur	*		T	1		1	1 and	Ľ.	1	1	L.	1/10'0	1	r.	1	1		U)	- 0.131	100'0 1
88	Heteropneustes fossilis	Shlugi			1			1.306	0.002	1	1	1	1	T	1	ŗ	T	r	r	r		
121	Macrogoalbus aculeatus	Tara Delut	0.175							1	1	1	0.499			_		-	_	_	_	
123	Macrognathus pancalus	Guebl	0.559			_			0.135	0.207	1.699	3,620	2.269	0.189		_	_					
771	Mastacembeaus at matus	Daral Dalo	+10.0	0.008	101.0	160.16 1	0/ 560	160.6	1700	060'0	076-1	41.C.U	+ CU.1	_	1.369		1.010 10.	1001 /0001	600'11 079'01	900 T 1000	112010	auc., a
2 5	Dadis Dadis	to the second		_			2100			1	100.0	+000	00010	7000		10.0	170.0	2	200	0.760	C33 46	
1+1		Vali peode	1/1-0	e m			017.0	100.0	2000		-	-		-	1		770'0	3		8	j	
140	Outpox percut	Company pages	0.003		100			1070	8000						-		N DOK	1			1001	0.010
145	Notooter us notopterus	Fall					1	100	1	-1	- 1	-1	0.047	1	1	1		1	10.7	0.241	- 3.780	
203	Terradon cutcuta	Potka	1		- 0.007	-	-	T		1	- 1	1	-	-1		1	- 1	1	-	- 1	1	
33	Chaca chaca	Cheka	10.634	8.368		~	T	T	1	1	-	1	-	-	1		-	1	-	,		
35	Chanda bacults	Chanda	T		_	- 0.001	r	T		Ţ	-	-	Т	-	T	T	-	1	-	Ţ		-
36	Chanda nama	Nause chanda	0.006	0.007	01010	0 0.121	0.313	0.097	0.560	1.080	0.223	1.589	0.339	1.054	0.014	1.836 (0.879 0.	0.263 0.0	0.026 1.3	1.367 1.290	0 126.242	12 0.621
37	Chanda ranga	Lafchanda	0.062	0.063	0.023	3 0.164	0.005	T	0.302	1	1	0.015	1	0.924	0.046	2.950	2.322 0.	0.067 0.0	0.023 0.0	0.080	- 85.475	75 0.420
Subtotal			20.739	16.386	36 14.198	8 46.061	67.848	23.778	\$5.695	77.113	\$5.711	53.757	20.348	39.299 1	12.897 5	53.254 4	47.592 19.	19.695 28.	28.314 42.042	M2 23.735	55 8680.285	12.673
998 Others	Unidentified fish		1		1	T	0.010			1	T	,	T	Т	1	1	4	1		1	-	,
611	Macrobrachium malcolmsoull	Chingel chotka	40.785	32.085	35 8.291				1	1	T	1	1	7	i.	1	1	1	1	1		
120	Macrobrachium rosenbergll	Golde						1		1	0.155	1	1050		T							
166	Prawn spp.	Chinget/Icha	9.273	5.204	3.425	9.289	3.669	51.348	30.848	2.071	3.489	18.359	32.751	6.674 1	17.799	7.165	9.683 8.	8.529 0.	0.402 12.	12.428 11.150	1430.384	1,032
946	Turtle	Dur kasim		- 11	1.12	1	10100	0.005	-12		-		-	_	1000					18	- 16	
Subrotal			20.05																			2
			000.00	11.289	59 11./10	6 9,330	3.679	51.353	30.871	2.071	3.645	18.359	33.252	6.705 1	17.799	8,003	9.063 6.	8.640 0.	0.402 12.428	-	1.170 1448.038	1117 00

Subtotal Grand total - denotes zero catch

Note:

18

3	Scientific name	name		Y	Year: 1992					200		Y	Year: 1993		1017171 JA				Year: 1994	1994	(Mar'93 - Fen'94)	Fen '94
Code Preference	Scientific	Bengali	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar /	April 1	May Ju	June Ju	July A	Aug. Se	Sep Oct	a Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	kg	80
133 Riverine	Mystus gulio	Nuna tengra	0.149	1	0.020	T	-	1	T	-1	1				1	1	-	Ĺ	_	1		
00	Acriticatia face	NUR Diali	200.0	1	0.488	I.	2.120	1	1	1	1	0.302 0.1	0.166 0.1	0.113 0.1	0.148	0.001	-	0.003	0.015	0.032	26.879	0.056
11	Acridonaria monar	Piali	706.0	0.018	0.015	0.476	1020	- 222 4	C C 13	- wear	100.9	_		l vor	_			-10				
50	Croscocheilus latius	Kalabata		014-0	c10.0							0.04.0	_		2000 C0000	00C1 00				29.651	2512.810	5.231
139	Nemacheilus botia	Ralichata	8. 1						_			0.424 0.0		5000 0 0110			_			0.4.55	IN C.CCC	1.157
28	Rotia dario	Rani	-	0 275	0.078		1010		0.003	10110				<u> </u>		_	-			5770	20.100	0.133
80	Hitesilischa	Thich	35.601	1 570		1 100.95		1 1432		140M	AT TST &		770'0				_			1	26.943	0.056
58	Corica soborna	Kachki	TANIA	10-10	_	-				_		_	_		17177 160	000171 17	प	8/0.02	017:07	14.909	222.6/021	28.269
193	Setimina phasa	Phace	1			10044	0 376				-		500.0		1000 0000	1			1	1	3.132	100.07
10	Aroutines hato	Chirine					2		(m		-	1	3		-	5	17070			1	660.64	0.094
OF	Branch with a state of the stat	Winnehollin											1		-				_	0.028	1385	0.003
	Distant potents munus	Nutraceute Bore	1	1	1	1	0 6600	0.140	0.138	1.396	2.03/	1	100	_	10	-		0.020	0.209	0.061	98.287	0.205
185	Dhimmini mente	T'hamila	OLE O	Jan at				-	_	-	_			_			_		1	1	23.573	0.049
001		PLUCINUM	2/20	10.700	4000	000.0	£ .	1	1 55010	/.201 14	14.062 4.	4.183 0.0	0.004 15.349		0.003 0.297	97 9.206	_		0.494	0.016	2154,005	4,484
3 (Stream upi cascasia	DHIB DHIB	ľ	U.	75070	0601					20 								4	Т	1.233	0.003
17	Autra coula	Kajuli	4,872	1	r	0.865		0.309 0	_		5	.646 1.5				26 0.086	6 12.754	0.809	0.899	1.794	1644.192	3.423
51	Clupisoma parua	Ghaura	3.361	15.238	5.863	1551	1.521	1	0.142 0	0.970 3	_		0.547 2.555		6.876 10.339	99 2.992	2 8.945	1.136	4.794	4.429	2164.528	4.506
196	Silona silonda	Shillong	1	1	1	3.742	1	1	1	T	0.978 0.	0.128	- 0.352	52 0.690	90 0.177	77 0.570	0 2.314		0.018	1	154.129	0.321
16	Bagarius bagarius	Baghair	0.243	0.613	1	7,848	1	r	Т	1	1	0.024	- 0.909	80	1	- 3.750	-	166.1	0.265	1	312078	0.650
27	Gagata cenia	Кация	Ţ	0.536	0.121	r	0.908	r.	1	0.023 0	0.055	1.0	0.052 0.610		0.186 0.069	59 0.010	0.031	0.071	0.020	0.102	53.481	0.111
79	Gagata nangra	Gangtengra	T	L	1		T	t,	,	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	T	0.607	10.029	6.870	599,343	1.248
18	Gagata youssoufi	Gangtengra	0.100	0.920	0.023	0.145 1	17.319 7.	7.651 5	5313 9	9.250 38	38.524 2.	2.301 0.0	0.010 2.095	95 3.547	47 0.393	0.022	2 0.327	0.205	4.227	2.438	1462.218	3.044
197	Sisor rhabdophorus	Sisor	1	1	1		1	ł	1	1	1	1	1		Т	1	- 0.016		0.015	0.004	0.930	0.002
155	Pama pama	Poa	1	1	1	1.083 (0.028	1	0.079	1	1	0.122	- 0.018	18 2.227	12	1	T		1	T	50,881	0.106
	Ambweeps man cois	Magur	1	-	+				-	1	-		-				-	-	1	0.008	165.0	0.001
			48.635	69.001			61.352 33.	33.240 13	13.026 55		71.863 32.	32.148 96.901		0	90 19.403	D9712	82.311	37.263	55.145	61,015	25534.701	53.156
130 Migratory	Aprichthys Bor	Ayre	8.505	1	0.0003	5.220	1	,		0.143	T	0.102 0.1	0.147 2.104	04 2.828	28 0.488	\$2	0.230		0.740	2.374	360.816	0.751
111	Mustic Marker	Coloha ran and	1770	111-0		1		1	7.900	17	1	1	1	1	_		_		1	6.843	334,858	0.697
LEI	Mustic minorite	Unsula 1 capa		100	1000		1 100	1		1 49	1	_	3	1.1					1	0.027	113.462	0.236
10	Curle currents	Carla		101.0	170/0	0+0*0	AC#'0	-	n	700'0	1	0 0 070 00770	'n	8/0.0 875		160.1	0.308	0.103	0.069	0.062	474.007	0.987
47	Circhinic milasla	Writed			-	0		r -		1	1	1	970'D	1	109.0	1	1		1	1	81.260	0.169
18	Curching and	Duite	0 OV	-	2000	-		-	-		-	1	1	1 0.069			1		1	1	1.900	0.004
04	Curratius / con	Kaik.	0.000	1 401 0	C9070		5.415	1	1	0.698	1	1		- 0.026					0.120	T.	145,350	0.303
101	T alter been	Deta	1	C61'0	7100		10./30	1	-	1	1	1	1	- 0.035	35 17.625	5 0.214	0.187	1.995	1	ľ,	1847.174	3.845
10	Falco colta		1	1	r	050.0	1	r	1	1	Ľ	T.	1	1	T		1	1	1	r	1	
107	LAIDEO CAUDESU	haithus	T	1	r.	r	r	T	T	1	T	T	60000	_		8 0.055		1	1	1	96.298	0.200
	Charle Portina	Nut	r		1	1	-	1	1-	ı	1	1	- 0.0/4	0.104	04 0.014	_			1	Т	7.100	0.015
t a		NAME ADAIN A	0400	70000	_		1 000	1				1				_			T	Ţ	8.424	0.018
001	Sauros orna cacaria	Natau7	000.0	0.010	14.01		0.650	1	6CL.0	1	1			_	_	215		0.012	0.259	0306	1102.321	2.295
		Function	100	1	1		6/0-1	t		ı.	1	0.004 0.014		78 0.117			0.332	0.006	0.037	0.102	145,880	0.304
+CT	Securicita pora	Chora chera	10000	L	2000		1 .00	1	0.092	1	r	1	- 0.240	0	- 0.191				060.0	1	42.793	0.089
00		C. Calpina	1000	1	141.0	_	16970	1	0.014		1	-		1	- 0.007	7 0.172			0.019	1	43.731	0.091
0/0	Eutrophications vacha	DACTR	0.700	1	1		0.893	1		1	T	0.027		_	_			0.292	3.346	0.008	97.509	0.203
107	Pseudeutropus athennoides	that ast	110.1	14.235	0.513	0.007	0.089	-	0.014 0.	0.018	T	1	- 0.008	00001		7 0.252	29250	0.057	0.008	1	33.032	0.069
***	warage and	DON	000.0	1	1	r	r	t	l.	t.	T.	T		2	- 0.079	0.	3.959	54.883	16.813	1	2710.114	5.642
	woroherus amwa	LURAI		+		- 8	1	T		1	T							1	T	T	4.753	0.010
Sutrat.			10.000	24.003	12.021	17.780 24	24.501	1 3	3.182 1.	1.540	0	0.374 0.472	72 13.146	4.746	2	1 6.956	7.953	58.445	21.499	9.723	7650.812	15.927
130 Floodplain	Mystus Icingara	Bajari tengra	1	1	1	-	1	1	1	-		11170	1						1	T	4.691	0.010
1010 Kesident	D	1 cuga	T	1	1	1	0.118	1	10070	T	0.100	r	- 0.056	56 0.002	3.117	7 0.253	0.114	0.029	1¢	0.006	332255	0.692
t v	Coline Sections	I'h alleha	1910	5	1	-	3		-	1	l.	r	1	1 :	1	1	-	T.	1.	T	1	
100	CULTURE INCOMENTS	TALIAL AND A	1101-1			ī	1										1					N NO

Sa

58

T

Contraction of the second s																					PF	Total annual catch
Snecies Habitat	Scientifi	Scientific name		*	Year: 1992								Year: 1993	8						Year: 1994		(Mar'93 - Fen'94)
Code Preference	Scientific	Benzuli	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	April	May	June	Ank	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	kg
C	T	Kaikka		T	T	0.229	1	T	T	T	0.026	T	1	T	0.293	0.306	0.255	K	0.063	т	t.	52.180
187	Osteodrama cotio cetio	Keti	'	1	1	1	1	1	0.001	1	च	0.003	1	1	1	0.105	0.071 0	160.0	0.005	0.009	1	15.094
175	Puntius conchonius	Canchan puti	1	-1	-	1	0.092	T	0.550	3.510	4.455	47.814	0.210	0.193	0.014	0.940 14	14.205	0.250	0.217	1	0.037 20	2002.356
176	Puntius selius	Giliouri		-1	1		1	T	-	-	Т	T	T	Т	Т	T	-	900.0	0.005	U	1	0.343
178	Puntius churunio	Phutani puti		T	0.021	J.	1	T	-	T	Т		0.014	0.022	T	T	0.121	Ţ	U	T	1	167.7
170	Puntius sarana	Sarputi	a	1	1	7	1	1	-	-	Т	1	1	1	1	1	0.580	t	Ľ	1	T	28.343
180	Puntiue conduce	Puti	1.070	1.803	0.157	0.074	0.269	1	960.0	1	0.324	0.094	1	0.035	0.563 1	1.550 1:	15.661	1.633	0.182	1	0.017 25	2578.871
212	Puntius tiero	Tit out		0.242	0.258	0.462	0.030	T	0.008	1	т	T	1	T	1	0.228	0.075	T	0.006	T	Ţ	26.577
	Ambivoharmexica mola	Mola	'	1	1	Т	1	-1	-	1	-	T	1	0.120	1	0.714	T	T	1	T	1	76.559
68	Danio devario	Chebli	0.174	1	1	1	0.209	1	-	-	-	-L	1	1	1	Ţ	Ľ	Ŀ	0.006	1	ţ	0.255
75	Feomus danricus	Darkina		1	0.021	7	1	1	-	1	1	0.079	0.042	0.030	165.0	1.031	5.210	T	T	1	T	371.005
83	Glossocobius piurus	Bailla	22.894	0.359	0.017	0.034	1.101	52.657	75.874	222.003	6.174	5.120	0.842	4.111	0.415	5.718	2267 0	0.138	0.037	0.861	7.005 21	2116.449
43	Chela cachius	Chep chela	'	0.156	0.148	1	1.090	1	T	1	1	1	1	1	1	0.530	0.086	0.020	1	0.004	0.068	1ZT.08
110	Lepidocephalus puntea	Gutum	-1	1	T	T	r	1	0.012	1	-1	1	1	0.055	0.0003	1.142	0.206	T	0.008	T	1	126.475
6	Aplocheilus punchax	Kanpona	1	1	1	T	1	1	T	r	T	1	1	1	T	0.024		1	1	T	1	2.376
41	Channa punctatus	Taki	3	0.826	0.451	0.058	ų	1	1	Ì	1	1	Ţ	0.921	0.561	2.476	3.214 (0.393	0.017	r	1	467.987
42	Channa strist us	Shol	1	0.515	0.080	T	1	1	T	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	0.353	ł	1	1	1	17.239
88	Heteromentes fossilis	Shing		T	T	-	1	1	1	1	1	T	1	1	T	ų	0.046	ł	T	1	1	2.249
121	Macrounathus aculeatus	Tara buim	0.919	1	T	-	1	1	Т	1	1	T	1	0.384	0.002	0.348	1	1	T	T	1	52.436
123	Macrognathus pancalus	Guchi	3	0.078	0.0000	1	1	1	0.004	0.010	Т	0.975	0.084	0.189	0.638	6353	2.077 (0.142	Ŀ	1	Т	184367
122	Mast acembelus armatus	Baral baim	4366	1	0.132	0.167	0.019	1	0.062	0.852	1	0.181	1	I	0.001		0.752	2.655	0.653	1	0.007	229.276
203	Tetraodon cutcutia	Potka	1	1	T	0.172	1	1	1	1	T	1	1	1	1	0.053	T	T	1	1	-	5.231
35	Chanda baculis	Chanda	1	1	L)	-	T	1	1	1	1	1	1	0.033	1	11101	1111	Т	0.002	1	Т	86,180
36	Срында плипа	Nama chanda	T	-1	1	0.043	0.239	Ŀ	0.003	0.089	T	0.002	1	0.542	0.215	1379	2.134 (0.212	0.016	0.002	T	279.306
37	Chanda ranga	Lal chanda	Т	-1	0.085	0.011	Ţ	1	-	Ţ	1	T	0.014	0.011	0.007	1.764	1231	-	-	0.004	T	237,014
Subtotal			29.574	3.979	1.371	1.249	3.422	52.657	76.610	26.464	11.079	54.379	1.206	6.804	3.100	45.900 4	49.906	5.593	1.248	0.880	7,138 100	10071.478
998 Others	Unidemified fish		3.146	1	3	0.067	2.814	3	1	T	T	Т	T	1	T							r
931	Prawn spp.	Chingri/Icha	2.580	2.356	5.755	1317	7.909	14.103	7.182	16.494	17.058	13.098	1.420		28.263						\sim	4780.210
Subtotal			5.725	2.356	5.755	1.383	10.723	14.103	7.182	16:494	17.058	13.098	1.420	4.254	28.263	4.552 1	11.526	4.141	3.043	22.475 2	22.123 4	4780.210
			100																			

Note: - demotes zero catch

Species Habitat		Species name			Year: 1992							Year: 1003	50						Van- 1004		Total annual catch
Code Preference	Scientific		Benzali	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Amil	Mav	lune	Inho	Alle	Con	3	Navl	Par	Tam 197	442	121 - 56
186 Riverine			Rita	0.272	T	T	J	1	1	1	1	1	-	and	3	3	-	B	live	N 021	20
13	Aspidoparia morar	TOTAL	Piali	Т		ľ	1	1	-1	-1	1	0.038	1	1	1		_			1	2000
59	Crossocheilus latius	latius	Kalabata	12.081	0.114	T	1	-1	7	1	1	1	1	1	1	112.0					
139	Nemacheilus botia	xolia	Ralichata	0.180	1	1	1510	1	0.084	_	1	0 660	0.660			117-0				I.	
28	Rotia dario		Pani	3 100	0000	i i		ŋ (tonin			norn	00000	-	1			1	1	1	
00	LTILS IIIch-		Tell	N.1.0	0.040				1	-	1	-	1	T	1	0.289	1	1	Ţ	i.	
10				1-/1/	1	I	r	1	1	Ľ	1	0.027	1	T	1	Į.	ł	T	T	1	
R	Brachygobius nunus	snunu	Nunabailla	1	1	T	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	0.043	1	1	T	1	0.119 0	0.250	1.717 0.017
128	Liza parsia		Bata	1	T	T	1	1	1	0.574	1	Ţ	1	Т	1	Ľ	1	1	Ţ	1	1.254 0.013
1	Ailia coila		Kajuli	0.793	0.003	T	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	T	1	0.139	2	1	1	1	_
81	Gagata youssouli	Aufi	Gang tengra	1	1	T	1	1	1	Т	1	1	1	1	0.002	0.109		1	Т	-	
87	Hara hara		Kutakanti	0.129	T	T	Ţ	1	1	T	1	1	T	1	1	Ţ	1	1	Ţ	- 1	
93	Ichthyocampus caroe	s caroe	Kumirer khil	1	1	T	1	0.299	T	1	1	Т	Т	Ţ	ľ	ŗ	1	Т	-	-1	1
Subtotal	al			18.362	0.136	T	0.154	0.299	0.084	0.574	1	0.625	0.560	0.043	0.002	0.747	-	T	0.110 0	N 1050	BUE O LET UE
130 Migratory	tory Aorichthys aor		Ayre	T	1	T	T	T	1	1	T	1	3.083	0.940	1.095	1	+	1	1	1	
131	Mystus bleekeri	.c	Golsha tengra	T	3.422	1.340	I.	0.557	0.113	0.843	1.374	3.015	2.073	1.411	0.096	2.062	1.000	-1		0 567 11/	_
132	Mystus cavasius	R	Kabashi	3.209	0.427	T	0.307	1	2 473	1	1	- 10 s	11 213				1 358		0.36.0		_
32	Catla catla		Catla	1		-		T		1	1	<u></u>		4 760		1000	0/7*1	-	000		_
47	Circhinus mrieala	ala	Mriael						1 023	1	1 8	1000			10101	100-	1		-	8	
48	Circhinus raha		Daile	2112	1210				704.01	-	1			0				1	r	1	_
	Takaa hata		VIIV	10110	5+0	1			707.01	1	T	1	0110	09950	_		3.090	T	0.979	1	
3 3	Labeo Data		Data	H.	110.0	1	1	T	1	1	Т	1	I	1	0.888 1		0.017	Т	1	4	413.340 4.140
101	Labeo boga		Bhangan	T	T	1	1	L	T	I.	T	t	T	T			t	T	Ţ	T	4.838 0.048
701	Labeo calbasu		Kalbaus	1	T	I	T	T	1	1	Т	1	T	1	_		5.984 5	5.385	1	8	904.605 9.062
107	Labeorohita		Rui	0.399	1	T	1	1	7.726	1	T	Т	T	T	46.134	5.580	Ţ	Т	t	- 1075	075.260 10.771
188	Salmostoma bacaila	~	Katari	0.375	0.042	ľ	1	T	0.063	1	Т	T	Т	1	T	1	1	Т	Ó	0.502 1	1.553 0.016
189	Salmostoma phulo		Fulchela	0.030	1	1	1	Т	1	0.241	1.057	1	Т	4.051	0.004	2.411	I.	1	2.082 1.	1.988 115	115.497 1.157
86	Gudusia chapra	100 B 100	Chapila	Ţ	r	Ţ	Ľ	T	T	1	Т	0.027	Т	1	Т	1	1	Ţ	1	1	0.156 0.002
169	Pseudeutropiu	Pseudeutropaus athermoides Batasi	Batasi	1	1	1	1	T	0.084	1	T	1	0.331	1	Т	0.008	1	t	Ŀ	-	1.201 0.012
209	Wallagu attu		Boal	Ţ	r	3.170	29.164	T	28.759	4.871	Ţ	1	0.441	1	6.576	3.425 0	0.020	1	24.934	1	540.788 5.417
<u></u>	Notopterus chitala	tala	Chital	J.	T	1	1	1	1	1	Т	1	Т	1	Т	12.772	-	Ţ	r	- 387	
216	Nemacheihus zonalternans	onalternans		1	T	1	1	_	1	T	2.115	0.397	Т	1	т	1	T	Т	т	1	4.553 0.046
Subtotal				10.171	4.335	4.510	29.471	0.557	59.381	5.955	4.545	5.633 1	17.251 1	12.431 9	92.044 7	801	11.568 5	5.385 28	28.364 3.	3.057 4907.489	489 49.159
		keus	Kai	1	1	1	T	न्	T	Ľ	t	1	Ţ	T	T	0.048	1	T	Т	Т	1.469 0.015
136 Resident			Bajari tengra	Ţ	I	I	0.102	1	1	1	0.423	0.019		0.489	1	Т	0.023	ų.	1	т Т	3.783 0.038
137	Mystus vittatus		Tengra	1.472	21.491	5.819	1.634	1.549	0.261	3.517	2.115	1.443	3.925	T	0.041	0.148 2	2.474 0.	0.257 1.	1.499 3.	3.864 95	95.502 0.957
55	Colisa fasciatus	2	Khalisha	0.892	0.005	1.064	0.950	0.574	1	T	0.362	4.816	1.018	8.171	0.367	0.144 5	5.526 21.	21.257 2.	2.990 1.	1.793 280	- share
211	Colisa labiosus		Khalisha	3	a	1	T	T	Т	T	0.022	0.748	0.306	0.317	0.010	-		_			
56	Colisa lalia		Lal Khalisha	1	T	0.046	1	Ţ	T	-	T	T	1	1	1	1	7	1	1	1	
57	Colisa sota	210	Khalisha	0.594	0.106	0.679	0.640	0.067	Т	Т	0.318	T	0.110	0.836		0.018		2.460 0.	0.396 0.0	0.092 17	17.360 0.174
210	Xenent odon cancila		Kaikka	0.739	T	1	1.522	1	Т	0.539	Ţ	0.312	0.441		0.083	- 0.28	2.631		6.8		
175	Puntius conchonius		Carochan puti	1	1	13.266	23.495	19.374	0.486	0.843	2.008	1.870	_					7.196 1.			
1.5 2.7	いたうたいというときがたいと言う															_					

					1000 CO.															I otal annual catch	al catch
Species Habitat	Species name			Year: 1992							Year: 1993	666						Year: 1994	1994	Mar'93 -	- Feb'94)
Code Preference	Scientific	Bengali	oet	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	April	May	June	July	Aug	Sep	8t	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Kg	0%
E	Puntius guganio	Mola puti	1	T	T	T	Т	1	T	Т	Т	1	1	Т	Т	T	3	T	0.661	1.697	0.017
178	Puntius phutunio	Phutani puti	1	1	T	1	1	T	1	0.022	0.806	0.110	3.137	0.021	0.053	0.910	0.926	0.075	1	42.181	0.423
180	Puntius sophore	Puti	4.764	12.945	2.982	8.992	10.642	0.918	1.576	3.731	3.683	13.060	11.663	172.0	2.843	12.970	10.580	15.797	4.212	595.959	5.970
212	Puntius ticto	Tit puti	15.498	10.166	0.419	0.387	T	1	T	0.211	0.166	L	T	T	0.008	0.103	1	1.717	3.452	24.445	0.245
s	Ambhyharygodon mola	Mola	1	1	1	1	0.100	0.056	a.	1	1	T	ų	1	1	0.015	1	0.119	0.662	3.045	0.031
69	Brachydanio rerio	Anju	T	Ţ	1	T	-	1	1	1	-	T	0.172	Т	1	E	T	Т	T	0.873	0.009
75	Esomus danricus	Darkina	1		0.046	0.148	1	Ţ	0.573	1.163	0.424	0.331	1.249	Т	0.141	0.624	1.511	0.103	0.833	35.119	0.352
83	Glossogobius giurus	Bailla	3.228	1.884	1.795	10.709	26.328	2.312	1.655	9.540	14.936	14.083	606.9	0.029	0.319	4.776	0.514	2.338	6.207	297.582	2.981
43	Chela cachius	Chep Chela	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	Т	T	1	1	0.018	1	1	1	1	0.532	0.005
110	Lepidocephalus guntea	Gutum	3.742	10.513	7.287	7.454	10.397	7.639	4.006	2.537	0.598	2.173	0.647	Т	0.013	6.550	2.518	2.226	5.612	205.245	2.056
6	Aplocheilus panchax	Kanpona	1	1	0.253	T	T	0.062	T	0.318	1	0.331	0.086	0.005	T	0.442	0.257	1	1	10.150	0.102
39	Channa marulius	Gajar	1	Ţ	T	T	1	T	1	T		1	1	т	1	T	1	Т	2.656	6.820	0.068
40	Channa orientalis	Cheng	1	1	T	1	T	1	1	1	T	T	1	1	r	L	I	0.212	1	1.530	0.015
41	Channa punctatus	Taki	2.496	5.211	13.552	5.317	13.394	1.377	14.220	1.057	4.678	4.142	16.607	2.654	3.580	2.641	6.629	5.170	14.236	458.733	4.595
49	Clarias batrachus	Magur	1	1	0.034	ľ	T	t	1	1	T	1	T	1	1	1	Ţ	1	1)	ŕ	
88	Heteropheustes fossilis	Shingi	1.859	3.535	2.764	0.756	3.942	2.379	42.443	1.113	-1-	0.662	1	1	1	0.348	3.849	1.719	1.347	140.856	1.411
121	Macrognathus aculeatus	Tara baim	0.129	1	T	1	0.371	T	T	4.785	17.010	4.346	0.317	1	0.285	0.636	0.494	0.253	1.352	140.965	1.412
123	Macrognathus pancalus	Guchi	9.323	7.932	4.511	3.676	4.877	17.275	18.982	52.861	25.402	13.920	4.949	1.043	0.542	16.353	1.113	1.670	8.291	719.754	7.210
122	Mastacembelus armatus	Baral baim	1.876	7.032	2.462	1.050	0.351	0.016	0.899	4.334	1	0.221	4.703	0.206	0.032	3.185	T	13.239	3.106	193.196	1.935
138	Nandus nandus	Bheda	0.060	Ţ	T	1	1	1	3	1	T	T	1	T	1	1.002	1	0.961	1	23.907	0.239
15	Badis badis	Napit koi	2.695	1/20	0.554	0.437	0.154	0.028	T	0.172	4.936	0.221	0.471	0.005	1	0.675	0.680	160.0	0.416	47.817	0.479
147	Ompok bimaculatus	Kani pabda	0.032	T	1	1	T	T	1	T	T	1	Ţ	T	1	T	T	T	1	T	
145	Notopterus notopterus	Foli	3.887	1	1	1	1	6.318	T	1	0.079	1	1	T	3.671	T	1	0.352	1	140.835	1.411
203	Tetraodon cutcutia	Potka	1	1	T	1	T	0.056	T	1	1	T	0.258	T	0.031	T	1.284	T	0.070	7.355	0.074
35	Chanda baculis	Chanda	4.360	0.002	0.381	1	1	1	T	0.423	0.318	0221	1	0.002	0.134	1	1	T	1	6.804	0.068
36	Chanda nama	Nama Chanda	3.617	0.007	T	1	0.040	105.0	0.540	2.705	0.609	1.189	0.302	0.006	2.794	0.019	0.846	0.814	1.059	110.228	1.104
37	Chanda ranga	Lal chanda	0.010	1	0.253	0.387	T	0.028	0.060	0.297	3.311	0.662	4.841	0.052	1.357	0.273	2.349	0.587	2.582	111.934	1.121
Subtotal			61.273	81.399	58.165	67.655	92.161	39.711	89.854	90.516	86.218	67.392	79.018	6.268	20.315	68.700	64.947	61.651	76.811	4265.357	42.727
120 Others	Macrobrachium rosenbergii	Golda	2.494	T	1	1	T	3	1	1	T	1	1	1	1	T	1	1	1	T	
931	Prawn spp.	Chingri Acha	7.700	10.313	37.325	2.719	6.981	0.822	3.617	4.939	7.524	14.796	8.508	1.686	11711	19.732	29.667	9.866	19.881	779.353	7.807
168	Potamon	Kakra	1	3.816	1	1	1	T	T	1	1	1	1	1	T	1	1	T	T	Т	
Subtotal			10.194	14.129	37.325	2.719	6.981	0.822	3.617	4.939	7.524	14.796	8.508	1.686	1.711	19.732	29.667	9.866	19.881	779.353	7.807
Grandtotal		Statistics and statistics	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	9982.926	100

61

 \mathcal{H}

Table 5.17 Monthly catch composition (% by weight) from the Karatova River: inside BRF (site NWIS)

6

				1081:1992							C661 1881	566	1000 C 10000	11 0 80 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90				Year: 1994	E6.JWW)	03 - Feb'94)
Code Preference	T	Bengali	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	April	May	June	yuk	Aug	Sep	04	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb Kg	8
186 Riverine	Riterite	Rita	1	100				1	1	1	1	1	0.675	0.206	1	0.309	1	1	ř	30.238 0.116
51	Aspidoparia morar	Piali	0.676	1.796	0.041	0.056	1	0.023	0.111	1.417	1	1	1	1	0.060	Т	0.037			19.890 0.076
20	Rainnas bola	Bhol			1110					1000	6650	1	1 7		1	1	1	0.067 0.	0.109	
59	Crossocheilus latius	Kelabeta	1.018	0 766		0 267	0.106			100.0				0.018	1 010	1000	0.006	1	1	
139	Nemacheilus botia	Balichata	0.265	0.184	_		0.818	1.224	0.869	1011	0.110	1		1	0121	1000		0 000	100	010 010 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000
198	Sam the pres gongota	Gharpoia	0.008		1.341	0.814	0.456	0.117	0.601	2.287	ľ	5	0.315	1	. 1	1				
28	Botia dario	Rapi	0.085	'	0.003				1		J	0.130	0.928	0.442	0.536	0.053			_	
29	Botia jobschata	Purul	1				1	1	1	1	1	T	-1	0.028	1	T	-	_		
68	Hibs lisbs	likh	1		0.003			5.805	0.504	9.626	5.168	48.333	20.631	4.994	0.439	0.029		-1	- 1197	
8	Hilss toll	Chandana	1	21.5	Ì		1	1	1	1	Ţ	0.319	1	1	1	1	T	1	-	4.677 0.018
8	Gonia kota manmina	Goni chapila	1				1	L	Т	1	1	1	1	Ţ	0.050	0.229	-	-	10	
58	Corka soborna	Kachki	2.315	0.232	0.729	0.021	1)	0.321	0.077	1	0.295	0.186	0.370	4.983	0.210	4.848	0.324 0	0.212 0.	0.934 441	
661	Settphing phase	Phase	Ţ		1		1		1	1	0.252	1	0.037	T	0.013	т	1	-	T	2.855 0.011
952	Awaous grammepomus	Nonda beila			70) 		1	Ŀ	Ľ	1	1	1	0.068	t	ł	Т	1		1	0.692 0.003
14	Awaous stanineus	Bele	<u>1</u>		AC.		1	E.		1	0.044	1	1	T	1	1	1	1	т	0.332 0.001
05	Brachygobius nunus	Nupa be libe	10	12	70		1	ı.	1	0.454	1	Ţ	1	T	0.009	0.003	-1-	-	1	4.658 0.018
971	Liza parsia	Bata	1				1	E.	1	1	0.425	1	1	1	ł	1	1	1	n T	3.196 0.012
185	Rhinomugil corsula	Khorsula	0.127	0.050	Ċ		I	1	1.038	0.816	0.149	0.125	1	0.307	0.071	0.004	-	1	4	42.20M 0.162
676	Skamugil cascasta	Bata	ĩ	1				1	1	1	1	0.053	0.277	0.181	0.013	0.040	-	T	а Т	9.727 0.037
10	Platycephalus indicus	Mur beille	1		1		1	1	1	1	1	1	Т	1	1	T	-	1		
4 3	Alla cola	Najut	9.737	0.696	3.353		1	1	1	0150	20.349	8.717	17.952	10.626	4.103	0.148	1	1		833.737 3.204
10	Chipsona garua	ODAUTA	\$79.6	4.396	3.037	0.277	5.730	0.040	0.049	1	4.837	4.993	9.112	4.801	1.682	1.995	1.384		1.178 540	540.860 2.079
70	Culpsons paziri	MULI Decta	1850	1	,			,	1	-	1.369	Ţ	1	1	0.037	0.282	1	1	92 T	
24	Strong a short of	gaoniac	1/7.0	110'0				1.0	1	1	1	1	1	1	0.137	0.395	1	0.914	22	
14	Frathietas magazina	Kurabarel	74110	717.6	• 10		001.0	1.13						658.0	1	1.00	D D D	-	1	
77	Gapata centa	Kauma	1				0.04.0	210.0	0.060				1220			600.0		160.0	о : т	_
80	Gagata viridescens	Gane tenera	-1			0.106	0.067				10.670	0.078	0.010	0 136	101.0		/100	1000		
81	Gagata youssouff	Gang tengra	1.031	1	4.460		0.542			0.770	4.775	1 677	510.0	1 988	0.660	1.1.1	5 0		000 - 1000	_
84	Gyptothorax tekhitta	Tekbitta	1	1				1	1		1 T	-	0.730	1.045	0.364		_			166:0 01:00F
958	Ghptothorarsp	Lal moins	1	-					-	-	1	1	-	0.087	1	1	-	-	-	
87	Hara hara	Kutakanti	1	0.804	0.003			-	-	-	-	-1	1	1	-	1	1	T	-1	_
5	Johnius coltor	Koitor	1		6		1	1	0.013	1	1	1	1	T	-	Ţ	ł	1	-	0.300 0.001
171	Psilorhynchus belitora	Baltions	1		**	10	£.	T.	1	T	1	1	1	0.062	1	1		2	-	2
158	Pangasius pangasius	Panças	1	1		1			-	1	1	1	T	T	1	0.027		1		1.711 0.007
Subtotal			26.079	18.214	14.971	2.602	8.230	7.576	3.322	17.053	51.224	64.555	53.320	30.743	10.541			10	~	-
List Migrand	Activity act	AUTO	77 CO	0.936	1.426	14.3(D	2-066	0.058	0.180	,	T	0.470	1.957	1.323	0.181			_	5.051 286.851	_
24	-	Tenora			107-0	10170		0+0'0	1000					60.0	0.036	0.983	0.138 0.	0.067	E11.111	
131	Mystus bleckeri	Gobba tenera	3.457	2.746	10.731	0.598	172.1	6 738	4.637	8.677	0.070	1 647	1 011	3 157	1 050			_	1	
132	Mystus cavasius	Kabashi	1.639	2.170	8 202	41.723	21.122	18.7.78	306 61	2575	1 674	0 784	353 1	LIL U			71 10 10 10	96771	1000711 0000	100 4.331
32	Carla carla	Cath	1							1	1	5		5.428	3.017	-				
48	Chrhinus reba	Raik	2.146	2.223	4.816	0.164	0.955	166.0	1	3	1	1	2.596	6.950	1.874	0650	0.151 0.	0.258 2.9	2.960 307.268	-
100	Labeo bata	Bata	0.426	3.868	0.088	0.562	0.017	1	1	1	1	1	,	0.048	0.826		_		_	
02	Labeo calbasu	Kalbaus	'	1.104	0.588		,	1	1.644	1	Т	0.076	1	0.055	3.942	2.580	1.485 12.		8.123 1448.282	
107	Labeo robita	Ruf	1	1			1	1	1	1	1	T	Ţ	3.675	0.016	1	-	-	_	
188	Sa intestentia bacalla	Kath	0.387	0.469	0.008		1	3.483	L	1	T	1	1	T	1			0.191	- 33.	33.949 0.130
0	Salmostoma phulo	Fuktela	0.317	0.616	2.041	2.071	Ţ	2.113	4.545	1	1.016	0.053	0.920	1.057	0.469	1.925	1.267 3.	3.676 0.9	0.936 431.452	62 1.658
154	Securicula gora	Chora chela	1		0.015		E		T	1	0.295	Т,	Ţ	1	T.			0.879 0.163		
76	Cudusta chapta Futroniichtdvx vacha	Cospia Recha	1:00.1	1.433		0.187		1,334	0.188	0.013	0.244	0.785	1 3 1 0	3.272	1.786	0.817	0.167	- 0.054	19120	903
169	Pseudevtrophus atherinoides	Butasi	1.348	1.794	0.006		0.764	1.370	0.146	0.477		0.049	oter	760'0	0120	0921	0 101 0	118.6 70.80	11 718 063	127 0.424 K1 0.838
209	Wallagu anu	Boal	1.797	0.091	24.734	7.223	3.616		0.620	1	1	0.536	-,	2 548	4 074					0.04
144	Notopterus chitala	Chinal	1					-	1	-	-1	1	1		1.675		1		3	
142	Nemacheilus scaturigina	Duri	1	X		T.	1	1	-	-	7-	Т	Ţ	1	-	T	0.020	,	ю Т	
216	Nemacheilus zonahernans		1	1	1	1	1	T	1	1	т	T					+	-	ю Т	1
Columnated .	0.00 0.0000000000000000000000000000000		1	10 0.43	- C1 D1C	210.22	1011.01					the second s	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		and the second s		COLUMN TO THE PARTY OF THE PARTY.			

ŗ

Species H	Habkat	Species name	atta		Year: 1992							Year: 1993	566						Year: 1994		(Mar'93 - Feb'94	- Feb'94
Code P	Preference	Scientific	Beugah	00	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	April	May	June	July	Aug	Sep	00	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Kg	25
136 F	Floodplain	Mystus tengara	Bajari tengra	0.754	1	0.240		0.146	0.065	T	T	T	T	T	0.087	T	0.005	0.055	0.213	0.291	11.717	0.045
	Resident	Mystus vittarus	Tougra	1.723	2.699	2.866	0.814	0.345	1.054	1.187	1.903	T	0.065	0.460	1	0.453	2.625	2.257	7.215	5.517	538.432	2.069
55		Colisa fasciatus	Kha lisha	1	1	0.030		J	Т	1	1	1	T	1	0.005	0.090	0.050	T	1	1	7.239	0.028
211		Colisa labiosus	Kha lisha	1	1		T	1.	Ľ	1	1	1	0.042	1	1	0.015	T	T	1	T	1.286	0.005
57		Colisa sota	K7halisha	0.023	0.003	0.011			T	1	0.027	-L	T.	-	1	0.516	г	T	1	T	22.802	0.088
210		Xenentodon cancila	Ka Bka	8.860	3.494	2.478	0.575	0.473	0.818	3.552	1	1	8	1	0.233	1.698	3.574	0.753	2.301	1.315	484.583	1.863
60		Crenopharyngodon idellus	Gheso carp	T	L			1	-	Т	1	1	1	Т	Ľ	1.457	1	T	T	r	63.703	0.245
187		Osteobrama cotio cotio	Ketl	0.013	2.807	0.437	0.415	7750	0.171	0.138	0.335	1	0.159	0.105	1	0.117	0.438	0.406	0.343	3.274	96.635	0.371
174		Puntius chola	Chala puti	1	T		-	L	T	1	1	1	1	1	T	T	1	T	0.143	T	3.303	0.013
175		Puntius conchonius	Canchan puti	1	5.483	1.245	2.183	1.184	4.671	8.415	8.821	0.788	0.030	0.102	0.023	3.209	4.170	0.265	0.077	0.065	728.747	2.801
176		Puntius gellus	Giliputi	1	1			1	1	1	1	1	ľ	1	T	0.018	1	1	T	0.393	4.596	0.018
177		Puntius guganio	Mola puti	ï	1	.*	0.031	0.383	0.142	0.138	1	1	1	-1	1	1	0.004	T	1	1	4.303	0.017
178		Puntius phutunio	Phutani puti	1	1		0.021	1	1	1	1	1	1	-1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	
180		Punthus sophore	Puti	4.730	2.023	0.512	0.497	0.849	2.448	0.860	1.287	0.490	0.607	0.021	0.144	9.625	4.495	1.563	1.810	6.233	925.504	3.557
181		Puptius terio	Teri punti	0.052	1	ľ	-	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	T	
212		Puntius tkto	The put!	4.811	0.588		0.030	0.004	0.011	1	1	1	3	a.	1	a.	0.074	1	Ì	1	4.835	0.019
~		Ambhpharyngodon mola	Mola	1	1		0.123	1	0.009	1	1	1	1	0.307	0.070	4.524	1	1	1	3	202.125	0.777
68		Danio devario	Chebli	1	1	0.002		3	Т	0.148	1	1	1	0.655	0.388	0.106	-1	1	-1	0.023	21.289	0.082
75		Esomus danrkus	Darkina	1	1	0.002	1.277	1	I.	1	T	0.044	1	1	0.019	0.039	0.018	T	1	1	3.517	0.014
182		Rasbora dankonius	Darkina	0.132	0.009			1	1	1	-1	1	1		T	1		1	1	1	J	
83		Glossogobius giurus	Ballla	5.820	3.720	5.155	3,404	13.461	11.356	19.976	16.437	8.663	6.637	5.503	1.910	6.651	2.702	1.751	0.904	1.861	484.894	5.707
110		Lepidocophalus guntea	Gutum	2.028	0.276	1.305	0.488	0.578	2.527	1.625	0520	0.225	0.236	T	17	0.427	0.560	0.228	0.009	0.645	131.991	0.507
0		Aplocheilus punchux	Kanpona	0.017	0.004			Ľ	1	1	1	1	Ţ	17	E	0.027	Т	T	1	1	1.195	0.005
39		Chama marulhus	Gajar	0.027	0.014			1	1	1	1	1	1	1	-	ľ	0.093	1	T	1	6.000	0.023
7		Chama punctatus	Taki	0.382	0.045	0.614	1	ľ	0.409	0.291	0.013	0.121	0.397	-1-	0.281	0.005	4.154	0.423	0.043	0.064	304.282	1.170
88		Heteropneustes fossilis	Shingl	0.279	0.011	*/		1	1	0.061	-	1	L	1	1	•	0.079	0.369	1	1	18.300	0.070
5		Macrognathus aculeatus	Tara baim	0.020	1		-	1	1	0.474	0.217	1	1	0.988	T	0.932	0.214	T	0.065	0.624	84.798	0.326
2		Macrognathus pancalus	Guchi	2.976	0.170		0.017	1.662	5.909	4.365	10.344	1.195	0.132	0.153	0.708	0.338	3.320	1.980	0.974	5.822	626.397	2.408
53		Mastacembehis armatus	Baral baim	3.819	23.695	2.394		168.0	0.697	1.383	9.869	1	0.141	1	199.6	6.521	14.202	19.946	0.973	9.429	2239.127	8.606
2		Badis budis	Napit koi	ſ		0.002	- CE	0.038	0.043	T	1	1	I	1	1	0.281	0.003	T	1	1	12.731	0.049
147		Ompok bimaculatus	Kani pabda	ľ	0.018	×.	0.266	1.675	1	1	1	1	0.309	T	1	0.865	1	1.300	1	0.649	90.113	0.346
10		Ompok pabda	Madhu pabda	1	1		-	1	T	T	T	Ţ	1	0.094	1	1	1.787	1.369	1	1	160.060	0.615
2		Notopterus notopterus	Foll	0.115	4.043	1		1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1.907	0.167	2.425	0.076	1.151	184.484	0.709
203		Tetraodon cutcutia	Potka	Ţ	1	0.876	0.614	0.879	0.131	T	0.094	T	ł	1	0.089	1.468	0.366	0.332	0.015	•	101.970	0.392
33		Chanda beculis	Chapda	1.386	3.160	0.002	0.634	0.041	0.009	1	0.586	1	1	1.380	0.350	0.855	0.117	0.698	0.383	1.180	112.604	0.433
36		Chapda nama	Nama chanda	2.932	0.720	0.505		0.038	1,709	0.273	0.183	1.579	0.484	1.064	0.982	0.935	165.0	0.490	0.333	0.322	170.962	0.657
37		Chanda ranga	Lal chanda	0.447	1	0.292	0.250	1	0.171	1	0.052	0.151	0.047	1.881	0.383	4.657	2.133	0.048	0.130	3.759	410.956	1580
	Subtotal			41.345	52.983	21.069	18.491	23.23	32.351	42.884	50.698	13.256	9.286	12.714	15.332	47.737	45.944	36.657	16.006	42.616 9	9265,480	35.612
0 866	Others	Unidentified fish			1			0.038		T	T	U	1	-1	1	т	1	1	Ţ	1	ſ	1
110		Macrotrachum rosenbergil Pram.mm	Croids	100 11	0000	11 046	_		2017				1 10		-	0.626	1	1	1	-	27.383	0.105
+	tutant.	Adde mast a	CHERRYLEAR	100.71	106.6	11.040		065.05	74.900	10.440	460.01	0.1.12	71.000	E	21200	17.8/3	0.000	÷		-	410& 685	15.792
1	INICIAL			17.064	0966	11.0-0	11.869	38.436	24.900	28.4401	15.399	27.75	21.665	21	21.566	18.499	6,666			-	4136.068	15.897
-	The state of the s			1001	1557	501		の「「「「「」」		1000		1001		1001		1000	1001				一、四日 日子子之子	1001

20.

 Finderation Preference Riverine Rive	Scientific speces name Scientific speces name Rin rina Rua Rua Aspidoparin morar Pinit Crosscobe ilus latitus Rua Nemachellus botia Rua Batidanio Radi Ruin Anio Rua Rua Scienta Rua Batohygobius nunus Phas Lian pursia Rua Lian pursia Rua	name Bengeli Rita Fiati Kitabuta Kani Kani	Aug	Sep 100	1 Car: 1992	Nav	Dec Jan	n Feb	h Mar	line -	And the second second	1 C41 . 1793	1992								Old - Laboration
Rivertine	ic prin morar bellus botia ario isin sisin soborna cobrus numus rea gil cusonsia gil cusonsia xia	Benguli Ruta Kalabuta Rutabuta Ruta'	Aug	28D	000	-					-		The second second	1						1	nor- c
Rivertine	a paria morar beilus latius beilus botia ario soborna an phasa soborna an phasa soborna an phasa phasa raia raia raia raia raia raia raia r	Rita Piali Kilabata Balichata Rani		Villandor and a second second		100						June	July	Aug	Sep	og	NON	Dec	Jan	I-ch kg	46
Aspidop Aspidop Crosses Retribute Bandyg Bandyg Bandyg Bandyg Lian pu Lian pu Lian pu Lian pu Rhinon Sionnug Sionnug	paria morar beilus larius beilus boria ario soborna na phasa phasa phasa phasa nagi corsula gil cusonsia gil cusonsia	Piali Kalabuta Belicheta Rani	T	0.688	0.577 (0.017 7.8	7,823 0.116	6 0.074	4 0.436	6 2.218	8 0.712	9.405	1	0.661	1.008	1.120	1	т	1	1	317.949 0.895
Crossed Nemethon of the second Relia III Brachys Brachys Lian pri Lian pri Lian pri Lian pri Sionnuy Sionnuy Sionnuy Sionnuy	the ilus latius beilus botia ario idan soborna na phasa na pha na phasa na pha na phasa na pha na pha n	Kalabata Balichata Rani	0.115	0.859	0.876	0.323 1.3	1.250 3.129	9 50.152	2 19.078	8 9.203	8,646	0.346	28.804	0.791	2.897	1.831	3.752	20.188 3.	15,990 6.	6.574 370	3702.267 10.420
Nemach Bocia da Hilisa ili Borichas Seriptim Barchys Lian pr Lian pr Stianung Stianung Atilia co Atilia co Chrysto	beilus bocia ario iste soborna soborna sobus nunus rsia rsia rugil consula gil cuscusia gil cuscusia sia	Balichata Rati	1	T	Ţ	1	1.913 10.306	9	Т	T	1	1	0.324	3.837	1.075	3.430	2.328	2769	3.966 1.	1.734 63	636.722 1.763
Bocia da Hilisa liti Corica s Rentprar Branchyg Branchyg Lita pu Lita pu Rhinom Sionnug Adila co Odrpiso	urio isim soborna soborna soborna sobus numus reia rugil consula gil cuscusia xia	Rani	1	T	ł	-	-	- 0.060	0	1	- 0.123	0.295	0.109	0.055	T	0.0001	0.067	0.135	0.115 0.	0.268 3	38.723 0.109
Hilse Ill Corica s Retipium Banchyg Banchyg Lia pr Nilla co Ailla co Ailla co Cupiso	icin soborna soborna phasa sobus nunus rsia rugil corsula gil cusonsia xia		1	T	0.024	-1	2704 0.877		3 1.305	5 0.938			0.032	0.441	0.180	0.021	0.062	-0	0.292 0.	0.019 5	58.213 0.164
Cercica s Retiform Brachyg Brachyg Lian pr Lian sp Stormug Atilia co Clupiso	tedeorma na pohasa pobrius numus rsai ruugil corosula gil cuscusaia Xia	11150	72.388	42.342		38.039 2.		10.55	61	4 8.964	1 2841	17.166	1.833	T	19.690	4.105	0.578	11.529	4.7% 10	0.192 282	828.553 7.961
Setiptim Brachyg Lian pur Lian pur Lian pur Rhinom Sionnuy Alin co Olyriso	ua phasa vo brus nunus rsta rugil corsula gil cuscusia xia	Kachki	1	_	<u> </u>	-	-	- 0.053	10	Т	- 0.439	T	T	T	T	Т	-	Т	т	-	14.871 0.042
Brachyg Lian par Lian sp Rhinom Sionnug Alia co Alipiso	obius numus rsia nugil corsula gil cascasia xia	Phrea	1	0.521	0.110	1.523 0.0	0.048	-1	- 0.399	0			1	Т	0.066	0.670	0.019	1	0.00%	1	
Lian pro Lian ap Rhinorn Sionrug Allia co Clupiso Clupiso	rsa uugil consula gil cascasia xia	Nurseheilla	1	1			10.561	1 2.705		9 1.945	5 0.280	T	0.349	0.127	1	Т	1	0.189	_	1.758 19	
Lias pu Rhinour Sionung Ailia co Cupiso	rau rugil corsula gil cuscusia Xia	D.11		0000				_	_		_					1	,		_	_	
Liza sp Rhinom Siaamug Ailia co Culpiso	nugil corsula gil cascasia xila	12412	1	7000		1	-		-				0.000		0.600	0000					_
Rhinom Siamug Aila co Clupiso	rugil corsula gil cascasia xila	Bata	1	Т	_	T	-	1	_	_	_	_	71610	1	00000	00770		_	_	_	
Siamug Aila co Clupiso	gil cascasia xia	Khorsula	0.552	1.730		0.170	1	- 1.107	0.740	0 1.714	1.250	0.354	4.074	0.991	12,803	0.670	0.077			0.648 85	
Aila co Clupiso	xia	Bata	Ì	T	0.171	0.103	- 0.113	9	-	Т	1		T	1	1	3.341	0.850	0.415	0.015	1	151.264 0.426
Clupiso		Kajuli	T	T	1	0.370 14.9	4,996 3,630	0 0.074	4 10.158	8 1.398	4.877	13.005	4.462	3.654	2643	1.022	1.482	4.201	3.528 13.	13.133 190	905.533 5.363
Cilmin .	enta carua	Ghaura	0.230	3.740	15.734 4	44.800 4.9	4,980 1.072	24	- 3.460	0 2.393	3 2166	36.091	8.473	7.054	10.915	34.096	54.631	16.857 2	24.891 10	10.758 720	7201.643 20.270
V MINING	Silonia silondia	Shillone	1	1		0.633 0.5	0.233	-1	- 0.153	3 0.962	2 2855	1.612	1.092	0.217	0.045	0.132	1.574	T	1.653	- 32	321.204 0.904
Bacarius	Racerius becenius	Rachair	20.236	1			23.681	- 0.909					0.413	30.143	1	0.275	1	T	1	18	
Carata main	cineria	Kanta	0.046	200	0500	1 1100	1 177 0.058	00459				0.077	0.279	2.333	0.335	0.132	0.024	Ţ	0.025 0	0.254 10	1211
Contraction of the second		Cano tenora		0 385									1		1	1	1	1	_		_
and	and a state of the	and the street		20010		-									1	1		1671	1 874	31 5201	120 005 075
- HERE	Construction of the second	Cance ten and	-	1 330		0 528 11	ALCAC TAC TI	N D GI	5 0 500	0 14 010	1000	2047	2.104	0.652	2.428	028.8	3.664				
CHUNCH CHUNCH	1	Carlo Kulpa	H	0001		<u> </u>	<u>.</u>	_		_							-	_			
TIL DOIC	orser transmother	2000					F	900	Tax c a							20000		-1			
A million		1.01				1										0.044		-			
- COLORED	unitable to markets	maken		-				1	100 00 V		76100	en en en e	024.63	ENNEE	161.63	0000	00100	0 107 17	01 COU 61	-uve	1
Suttotal			100.56	102.10			14.0.24 /1.493	ACCO C		1000	1		007.00	0677	TIONE	20.977		1	1.	4	
130 Migratory Aonchinysaor	thys acr	AVIO	1	1		7000	1	1	-		otom	14-474	6017	6000	070.1	17570	Imn	100-1		. 3	
Aonchi	Aorichthys seenghala	Guiza	0.068	6.098	0.361	2.364	ŗ	U	1	1	1		1	L		1 1000	1 500	1 950 0	C 147		
r sniskiw	Mystus beeken	Goisha tengra	1	0.039	_	8		_		_	1		1		1	0000	10070				
Mystus .	Mystus ava sus	Kabashi	1	T	0.008	0.230	3.280 1.789	0.156	6 0.787	7 0.285			1.278	2632	1.036	1.302	0.360	116.2	0.327 0	17 5750	_
Catla catla	a t la	Catla	Т	T	1	1	1	,	-	-		6000	1.000	166.6	1	1	1	1		1	
Cirrhint	Cirrhinus mrigala	Mrigel	1	I		1	1	1	_	1	1	-	1	T	0.403	T		_	_	-	
Cirrhinus reba	us reba	Raik	T	Ľ	0.065	0.064	Ŀ	1.811	1 0.085	~	1		0.595	T	0.318	0.940	1.322			1.071 20	5001
Labeo bata	ET R.	Bata	1	Т	0.459	0.157 0.1	0.117 2.855	S	1	1	1		1	1.678	13.987	2429	0.303	1.383	3,180	1	836.119 2.353
Labeo calbasu	nlbasu	Kalbaus	1	T	1	1	3.450	- 0.501	0.466	2	1	,	0.081	0.508	1	T.	1.341	T	Ţ	1	89.395 0.252
Labeo rohita	ohita	Rui	1	0.158	J.	1	1	T	1	1		1	1.631	1	1	T	1	T	J.	т Т	52.756 0.148
Chela laubuca	nubuan	Kash khaira	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	- 0.057	-		,	1	0.015	0.006	0.011	T	1	ī	1.992 0.006
Selmosti	Selmostome becalle	Katari	1	0.047	5.876	1.034 0.	0.175 0.169	99 0.370	0 0.102	2 2120	-	- 1.103	13.279	0.784	6.001	4,035	7.082	3.173	5.151 &	8.776 194	944.236 5.472
Salmosti	Salmostoma phulo	Fulchela	1	T	0.098	T	т	- 0.017	1	Т	- 0.082	0.059	1.344	0.004	0.271	0.239	0.313	0.010	0.023	1	83.127 0.234
Securior	Securicula cora	Chora chela	3.125	9.629	0.451	-	-1	-	1.5%	v	,		0.340	T	0.332	0.046	1	т	1	0.339 6	63.276 0.178
Guduxia	Gudusia cherra	Chamia	1	0.079		0.045	-1	1.234	-1	- 7,885	10		0.155	Ľ	1	0.066	2.068	0.141	0.115 0	0.721 23	237.386 0.668
Eutropi	Eutromichthys vacha	Bacha	7	1	1	0.173	1	1	-	-	1	0.267	1.247	1	T	0.166	0.251	T	0.738 0.	0.842 13	137.204 0.386
Pseudeu	Pseudeutropius atherinoides	Batas	2,068	12.955	1.644	0.248	7	T	- 0.015	\$	- 0.059	0.099	0.037	л	0.015	0.053	0.008	1	0.017	1	8.399 0.024
Wallagu attu	a attu	Bowl	Т	T		1	1	1	1	1	1	1	0.044	1	1	12.820	109'6	6.291	1	- 95	950.598 2.676
Cultered			CACA	20.000	C 783	7 537 71	1007 4814	23UF	3 152	2 10 248	81 0158	15761	23,210	16181	202.08	22.457	22,749	15.112 1	12.350 12	12.327 508	5982127 16.837

Species Habitat	Species	Species name		-	Year: 1992								Year: 1993						>	Vent 1004	Totalan	Total annuel catch
Code Preference	Scientific	Bengeli	AUE	80	00	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Anil	Mav	Turne	Inh	Aug	en o	N	C Now	1	Tan Tan		and
136 Floodphin	Mystus tengara	Bajari tengra			1	0.040	T	1	0.220	1	1		1								34	P
137 Resident	Mystus vittatus	Tengra	4	1	T	1	1	1	T	0,060	1	-1	1	-	1	- 0.2	0.228 0.1	0.104	1	400	17 501	0.050
55	Colise fasciatus	Khalishe	1	1	-1-	1	Т	1	1	J	1	0.123	1	1.251 0	0.199 0.	0.187		1	1	1		
57	Colise sota	Khalisha	0.023	0.102	0.024	T	-	T	T	1	1	0.082	1		_	Т	-	_		_	1874	
210	Xerentodon cancila	Kaikka	0	T	-	0.481	-	T	0.106	r	T	-	-		0.038 0.	0.015 0.0	0.005 0.4	0.416 0.310	10	-1	31 800	
187	Osteobrama corio corio	Keti	1	0.347	0.049	1	Т	T	T	1	1	T	Т	_		11940				CC10 -		
175	Puntius conchonius	Canchan puti	-1	1	1	1	0.073	1	1.269	1.112 1	17.044 2	27.195	0.122		0.064 0.	-			190 00	30.3	+	
176	Puntius gelius	Giliputi	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	Т	1	1					6	_	_	193	0.0
178	Puntius phurunio	Phutani puti	ſ	1	1	1	1	T	1	T	1	1	1	0.015	1	1		-1		1	015 7	
081	Puntius sophore	Puni	G	1	1.367	1.474	-	0.113	0.078	T	T	0.100	-	10270	0.563 1.	1.175 0.7	_	0.129 0.092	92	- 0.234	51	
212	Puntius ricto	Tit puti	C.	0,118	0.421	0.354	1	T.	T	ŗ	T	1	ī	-	1	1 0.0	0.002 0.008	08 0.029	52	Т		
S	Ambiyplaryngodon mola	Mola	1.	1	I	ł	1	Ţ	J	1	1	1	1	0.022	1	Т	1	-	1	1	0.716	0.002
75	Esomus danricus	Darkina	Ĩ.	1	0.012	i	1	1	1	1	T	0.157 0	0.255 1	560 0	0.661 0.	0.145 0.2	0.263 0.002	02 0.044	4	Т	91.587	
83	Glossogobius giurus	Bailla	1°	0.607	1.420	0.424	0.700		18.732	2992	7.398	2.925	0.577 0	1969 0	0.923 0.	0.454 2.6			31 0.618	4.216	0	0.000
43	Chela achius	Chep chela	1-	1	0.146	0.120	1	0.056	1	r	0.033	0.082	1	0 0100	0.064 0.	0.326 0.1:	0.134 0.282	82 0.010	10 0.025	52	43.130	
110	Lepidox phalus guntea	Gutum	1.	1	0.016	0.017	т	E	0.035	ţ	T	1	1	0,104 0	0.008	- 0.237	37 0.003	03 0.043	43 0.025	ກ	12.292	- 22
0	Aplocheilus panchar	Kanpona	10	T	Ţ	-	T	T	T	Ľ	T	1	1	0.015	1	J.	T	1	1	1	0.477	
41	Chantra pundatus	Taki	1	10	0.075	0.054	1	1	Т	1	1	0.393 0	0.352	2.205 7	7.874 0.	0.838 0.682	82 0.000	00 0.084	72	1	342.709	
40	Clarias batrachus	Magur	1	1	1	1	1	1	T	1	T	1	1	080	T	1	т	т	1	-	2863	3 0.008
121	Macrognathus aculeatus	Tarn baim	1	1	1	1	1	Ĩ	T	1	0.358	1	1	0.280	Т	1	Т	1	1	_	12.468	
123	Macrognathus panalus	Guchi		0.111	0.057	0.002	1	1	0.121	T	T	3.384	1	0.147 0.	0.042 0.	0.077 0.223	23 0.015	15	T	-	131.365	
122	Mastacembelus armatus	Baral haim	1	0.197	0.039	0.010	0.265	0.070	1.431	T	T	0.064	1	0.022 0.	0.165 0.	0.015 1.165	65 3.687	87 2.858	58 0.257	0.513	298,849	- 20
15	Badis badis	Napit koi	T	T		1	Ľ	T	T	IJ	U	I	r	1	T	- 0.144	3	1	-1	-	4427	0.000
147	Omposk birmsculatus	Kani pabda	1	T.	1	r	1	T	T	ŗ	1	1	T	T	T	1	- 0.444	4	1	- 0.007	23.272	
148	Ompost pabda	Madhu pabda	T	T	Ţ	1	2.063	T	T	T	T	1	1	,	1	1	1	1	T	1		
203	Tetra odon cutcutia	Porka	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	T	0.082	1	1	T	T	T	1	T	-	2776	0.008
35	Chanda baculis	Chanda	ŗ	1	1	1	1	1	Т	1	1	1	1	0.176 0.	0.008	- 0.279	79 0.005	05	-	-	14766	
36	Chanda nama	Nama chanda	1	1	3	1	0.088	1	1	T	T	0.409 0	0.020 0	0.428 0.	0.076 0.	0.452 0.209	09 0.298	98 0.108	0.022	5	72.342	
37	Chanda ranga	Lal chanda	T	0.016	0.030	0.006	1	-	-	R	T	0.041 0	0.059 0	0.454 0.	0.114 0.	0.101 0.177	_			-1	29.628	_
Subtotal			0.023	1.498	3.692	7867	3.189	4.063 2	21.991	4164 2	24,833 3.	35.036 1	.384 10	0.886 10.	0.799 4.	4.187 8.983	5.941	41 5.170	1 212	2 5 517	ETA CACE	
998 Others	Unidentified fish	Contract Contract	0.046	0.220	0.050	0.438	1	T	T	T	т	r	,	,						1.		1,
166	Prawn spa	Chingri/Icha	1.103	17.424	15.879	2.514	14.965 1	19.628	8.390 10	10.446 10	16.205 35	39.621 2	2462 12	12.635 22	22.065 10.9	0.935 9.109	09 0.536	36 12116	16 2.699	27.724	5190.397	14,609
16	Kachuga tectum	Kori kuiya	1	T	1	ĩ	1	1	1	1	T	1	T	1	т	1	-	T	- 2140			
207	Thonyx gangeticus	Kachhim	T	J	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	-	-	-	-	- 1.665	53	T	-1	85.868	
Subtotal			1.148	17.644	15.929	2.952	14.965 1	19.628	8.390 1(10.446 10	16.205 35	39.621 2	2462 12	12.635 22	22.065 10.9	10.935 9,109	09 2202	02 12116	6 4.838	8 27.724	5348.564	
													and		and a state of the			Ì				

Otes Lero Catch

P LIBRARY.

65

5.5.1 The unregulated Northern Dhaleswari

The numbers of riverine species were lowest from December 1992 to March 1993 (Fig. 5.9). A sharp rise in numbers was seen in May and after some fluctuation between June and July numbers stabilised until well into the flood drawdown in October. Numbers declined fairly rapidly in November and December to reach low levels again in January and February 1994 when most species returned to larger rivers such as the Dhaleswari and Jamuna.

Numbers of migratory species followed a somewhat different pattern. Again, lowest numbers were observed between December 1992 and April 1993. However, there was no sharp rise in May but rather a gradual progressive increase in numbers from May onwards to reach a peak in October and November after which numbers declined rapidly to a stable lower level between December 1993 and February 1994.

Numbers of floodplain resident species followed a different pattern again. Lowest numbers were recorded in February and March but rapidly increased in April to reach an initial peak in May after which numbers declined until August. In September numbers rose sharply to reach a second peak stable level until February 1994. This pattern suggests that there were two influxes of floodplain residents into the river, the first during the pre-monsoon when rainfall runoff drained from floodplains to river and the second during the drawdown again when floodplain runoff entered the river.

In February and March 1993, no riverine or migratory species were present in the Northern Dhaleswari but in May, when rainfall runoff substantially increased river flows, an influx of 8 riverine and 3 migratory species was recorded. These species must have migrated upstream from the Dhaleswari River since the connection with the Jamuna was not yet made due to a low earthen road leading to a ferry ghat at its offtake point which acted as a submersible embankment. The 11 species arriving in May, together with 3 others which appeared in April, comprised 10% of the total monthly catch (Fig. 5.10). The most abundant of these species were *piali* (4%), *bele* (2%) and *fulchela* (2%), but others which gained in abundance later in the season included *kajuli*, *gang tengra* and *golsha tengra*.

In mid-June, Jamuna floodwaters entered the Northern Dhaleswari and adjacent floodplains. Three riverine species, *ghaura*, *baghair* and *kauwa* and one migratory species, *chapila* appeared in catches which increased considerably due mainly to the increased abundance of *kajuli* which accounted for 18% of the catch. In July, there was a further major influx of fish

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

1

×.







Figure 5.10 Percentage total monthly catch of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident groups of fish from the Northern Dhaleswari River

T



with the arrival of 6 riverine and 3 migratory species. The most abundant of these were two *Barilius* species (*barni*, *koksa*) which provided 30% of the monthly catch. These species together with *sisor* were found in the Dhaleswari but not in the Jamuna and therefore probably moved upstream from the Dhaleswari whilst the remaining species may have migrated from both the Jamuna and Dhaleswari rivers. While no new riverine species appeared in August, the catch contribution by this group of fish reached a peak (62%) mainly due to the abundance of *kajuli* and *kauwa*. Three migratory species appeared in this month, *guizza*, *mrigel* and *katari*. *Mrigel* was the most abundant species forming 6% of the monthly catch. Data on average weight per individual (58 g) suggested that these were juveniles of the year and probably hatched in May or June⁹.

During the drawdown in September and October, 4 new riverine and 5 migratory species appeared but all in relatively low abundance and none forming more than 2% of the monthly catch. Later in the year most riverine species migrated out of the river but several migratory species remained; the most notable were two large catfish species, *boal* and *ayre* captured by *katha*.

5.5.2 The regulated Old Hurasagar

Numbers of riverine species remained low throughout the year with two small peaks in June and October coinciding with the first restricted entry of floodwaters from the Jamuna and with the drawdown later in the year (Fig. 5.11).

Numbers of migratory species followed a different seasonal pattern. Numbers were lowest between December and February, temporarily increased in March but declined to low levels in April and May. In June and July there were slight increases in numbers and these stabilised in August before increasing more sharply during the drawdown in September to reach a peak in October. Numbers dropped equally rapidly in November to low levels from December onwards.

Numbers of floodplain resident species remained fairly stable throughout the year with slight reductions in April, September and December.

In February 1993, only 1 riverine and 1 migratory species were recorded in the Old Hurasagar but in the following month 7 migratory species appeared in catch, not by migration since the river was by this time divided into a series of disconnected pools, but









Notes: 1. See text for definition of different categories of fish based on habitat preference (Section 5.4.1) 2. Dominant species are shown for peak relative abundances of riverine and migratory fish

from *katha* fishing. The most abundant species by weight were *boal*, *raik* and *rui* which together accounted for 55% of the monthly catch (Fig. 5.12). Between April and May only 1 riverine and 3 migratory species were recorded in any one month. This contrasted with the situation on the unregulated Northern Dhaleswari where there was a large influx of riverine species in May.

In June, 3 new riverine and 2 migratory species appeared in very low abundance in the catch. Of these, *catla*, *chapila* and *ilish* probably entered from the Jamuna through the partially open gates of Bauitara regulator since all were fry with average individual weights of 1 g or less. The other two species, *balichata* and *piali*, were adult fish which may have entered from either the Jamuna or Karatoya or both. No new riverine species was recorded in July but 3 new migratory species appeared, *ayre*, *raik* and *batasi*. *Ayre* were small juveniles (55 g/indv.) while the others were fry of 1 g or less. Contributions to the monthly catch by riverine species remained very low (<1%) but migratory species accounted for 17%, a rise from the previous month's contribution of 6%. In August there were only two new arrivals, 1 riverine species, *nunabailla* fry averaging 1 g and 1 migratory species declined slightly in August to 12% while riverine species made a negligible contribution (<0.1%). This pattern again differed greatly from that in the Northern Dhaleswari where riverine species made a peak catch contribution of 62% in August while migratory species provided a further 14%.

During the flood drawdown in September and October, 4 new riverine and 5 migratory species appeared. Riverine species were uncommon, providing less than 1% of monthly catches, but migratory species accounted for a very large share of the catch, ranging from 92% in September to 77% in October when a peak monthly catch for the year was recorded. This contrasted sharply with the pattern of catch from the unregulated Northern Dhaleswari where no major increase in percentage catches of migratory species was observed during the drawdown when they comprised 12%-14% of catches. At the same time the catch contributions of riverine species declined considerably from peaks in July and August to between 10% to 13% of catches during the drawdown. On the Old Hurasagar predominant species during the drawdown included the major carps, *kalbaus*, *rui* and *mrigel* and others such as *chital* and *bata*. Information on average weights per individual fish indicated that all major carps were juveniles of the year ranging in size from 30 to 247 g. Catch compositions from the Jamuna showed that these species were uncommon at this time of year. On the Karatoya, *rui*, *kalbaus* and *bata* were present but they were not particularly abundant while

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

pl.

chital was very rare and mrigel was not recorded at all on this river. The catch distributions suggest that these species originated internally within the Old Hurasagar catchment after entering possibly as hatchlings from the Jamuna. However, as will be shown later in this report (Section 7.5.2), these species were not abundant in the sampled areas and therefore must have originated from elsewhere in the lower catchment. Catches from *urani jal* set on the gates and walls of Bauitara regulator in September and October included juvenile *rui*, *kalbaus*, *raik*, *bata*, *kalabata*, *katari* and *taki*. These fish were captured as they migrated upstream towards the Jamuna River. The regulator effectively blocked those movements and concentrated the fish in the immediate downstream area where they were also captured by *dharma* and *deal* traps. Similar blockage to movements of upstream migrating fish was recorded by FAP 17 in a separate study of Charghat regulation on the Baral River¹⁰.

In November, the percentage catch contribution of migratory species declined considerably to generally low levels which prevailed throughout the winter with the exception of a temporary slight increase in January due largely to a good catch of *boal* from *katha* fishing.



K

6 CANAL FISHERIES

6.1 <u>Total Catch</u>

6.1.1 Pattern of catch

Catches from the unregulated Anahula *Khal* and regulated Nandina *Khal* followed a broadly similar seasonal pattern (Fig. 6.1). On Anahula *Khal*, catches remained very low between December and June, rising slightly in July to reach a peak in August. During the drawdown catches were relatively high but not as high as in August. In November catches decreased considerably. On Nandina *Khal*, catches were lowest from December to July, rising slightly in August and reaching a peak in September. This differed from the pattern seen on the unregulated canal where catches began to increase in July and peak in August. A further difference between sites was seen in November when catches remained relatively higher on Nandina *Khal* before decreasing to almost zero levels from December onwards.

6.1.2 Size of catch

Between March 1993 and February 1994, a total annual catch of 1461 kg/km was recorded from Anahula *Khal* compared with 434 kg/km from the regulated Nandina *Khal*, a reduction of 70% in catch (Table 6.1). In terms of catch per unit area, the catch from Anahula was 1,115 kg/ha compared with 523 kg/ha from Nandina, a reduction of 53%.

Table 6.1	Annual	catch	from	canal	inside	and	outside	the	BRE,	March	1993	-
	Februar	y 1994	1									

0.1		Inside/	Catch per unit a	rea
Site Code	Site name	Outside BRE	kg/km	kg/ha
NC07	Anahula Khal	Outside	1461	1115
NW20	Nandina Khal	Inside	434	523

Note: Values of catch are rounded to nearest whole number

Statistical comparisons of catch rates of dominant gears used in these canals revealed no significant difference in underlying fish densities and that the substantially higher catch from the free-flooding canal resulted from the increased fishing effort by dominant gears (see Section 6.3).



20

0

Oct

Nov

1992

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May



Jun

1993

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

60

Feb

1994

Jan

ľ

6.1.3 Comparison of catch between years

Comparisons of canal catches between 1992/93 and 1993/94 were made at sites inside and outside the BRE following the procedure outlined in Section 5.1.3. In both the regulated and unregulated canals, catches were considerably lower in the drier year of 1992/93 (Table 6.2). A similar result was found in rivers (Table 5.2). The total catch from each year was then divided into different groups of fish based on habitat preference: riverine, migratory and floodplain resident species (see Section 5.4.1 for definitions). Catches of floodplain resident species were lower in both canals during the drier year but reductions in catch were higher in the regulated canal (Table 6.3). Lower catches of floodplain resident species from rivers were also found in the drier year but catch differences between years were greater in the unregulated river. No riverine or migratory species were found in Nandina *Khal* during the periods when comparisons were made between years (October - February). On the unregulated Anahula *Khal*, catches of riverine species were higher in the drier year, a result also seen in rivers, but migratory species were less abundant. The results agree with patterns predicted on the basis of inter-annual changes in flood magnitude and extent and their impact on floodplain dependent species (see Section 5.1.3 for more detailed discussion).

 Table 6.2
 Comparison of the total catch (kg/km) from canals inside and outside the BRE between different years

		Inside/Outside	Cat	ch	% Reduction
Site code	Site name	BRE	1992-1993	1993-1994	in catch in 92/93
NC07	Anahula	Outside	767	1265	39
NW20	Nandina	Inside	55	248	78

Note: Katha catches were excluded from analyses (see Section 5.1.3)

Table 6.3Comparison of the total catch (kg/km) of riverine, migratory and
floodplain resident fish from canals inside and outside the BRE between
different years

				Riverir CPUA			Migrato CPUA	-	Flo	odplain F CPU	
Site code	Site name	Inside/ Outside BRE	1992- 1993	1993- 1994	% change in 92/93	1992- 1993	1993- 1994	% change in 92/93	1992- 1993	1993- 1994	% change in 92/93
NC07	Anahula	Outside	69	11	+ 471	196	547	- 64	499	548	- 9
NW20	Nandina	Inside	-	-	-		-		54	223	- 76

Note: Katha catches were excluded from the analyses (see Section 5.1.3)

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

June, 1994

6.2 Pattern of Fishing

6.2.1 Catch by gear

DGR

Percentage contributions made by dominant gears to annual catches from regulated and unregulated canals are presented in Table 6.4. More detailed information on monthly catches from all observed gears is given in Tables 6.5 and 6.6.

February 1994		
	Inside FCD	Outside FCD
Gear	Site NW20	Site NC07
Thella jal	40.8	14.9
Dharma jal	24.6	52.9
Veshal	11.7	
Jhaki jal	7.5	4.8
Urani	5.5	
Ber jal		7.8
Current jal (Stationary)	2	2.5
Sip	2	3.2
Hand fishing	-	4.5

Table 6.4 Percentage contribution (by weight) to the total annual catch made by dominant¹ gears in canals inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994

Notes: 1. Dominant gears are defined as those gears which, when ranked in order of abundance, comprised at least 90% of the total annual catch

2. - denotes gear present but not dominant, blank denotes gear absent

A total of 14 different gear types was recorded on Anahula *Khal* compared with 12 on Nandina. Only 7 gears were common to both sites and 2 of these, *thella jal* and *dharma jal* comprised the most important gears at each site. *Thella jal* accounted for 41% of the annual catch on Nandina but only 15% on Anahula while *dharma* took 53% of the catch from this canal and 25% on Nandina. *Veshal* provided a further 12% of the Nandina catch but this type of lift net was not used on Anahula *Khal*. *Jhaki jal* was a fairly important gear at both sites while *urani jal* was exclusive to Nandina *Khal* where it accounted for about 6% of the catch and *ber jal* was exclusive to Anahula providing 8% of the catch. Other small seines such as *dhor jal* and *kathi jal* and the drag net, *moi jal*, were used also exclusively on Anahula *Khal*

Table 6.5 Percentage monthly catch from Anahula Khal by gear type: outside BRE (site NC07)

Gear			X	Year: 1992								Year: 1993	1993						Vesr. 1001	FU.	Fotal annual catch	al catch
Code Ge	Gear name	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Anril	Mav	June	Inly	Ano	Sen	Ort	Now	Dar	Tan	1.4	- CK ININ	LCD 34
105 DA	105 Dharma ial	6.472	A2 245	50.051	24103	20 600	115.02					and a state		9	1	3	ADAT	PAG -	tipr	40.1	Kg	20
THE PART		0/1-0	C+C+C+	106.60	2	000.40	P10.00	T	T	T	1	961.77	23.146	198.77	48.609	40.261	59.620	35.141	37.641	1	3691.778	52.867
255 Thella jal	tella jal	4.370	0.456	1.550	3.187	6.348	T.	T	4.973	100.000	43.533	5.328	3.834	0.478	21.948	30.516	7323	33.307	18.775	28.766	1037.786	14 861
45 Ber jal	'r jal	72.317	30.886	3	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	T	46.789	6.088	9.557	1	1	-	1		CFC IFS	134 1
164 Jhaki jal	aki jal	0.063	2.628	8.776	22.711	33.972	37,810	1	1	1	28.234	-1	1.421	7.815	1.899	5.219	1	1.503	-1	FLC 12	7177122	LUB F
307 Ha	307 Hand fishing	1	Ĩ	a.	1	a.	1	1	24.592	Ľ	28.234	T	T	1	1.666	8.867	17.258	T	_		211 676	1001
30 Sip		1.461	2.201	10.381	T	1	11.876	1	1	1	1	11.445	0.248	1.009	5,348	3 675	3 865	12 067	42 584		C70/110	210 0
88 Cu	Current jal (Stationary)	3.825	0.146	5.001	1	1	T	t	Т	1	1	6.031	7 187	7 187		2 KING	-	1 DOVINT	toret		100077	9.24
89 Dh	Dhor jal	1.965	0.448	T	1	1	1	T	T	1	1	1	16.060		1 561	000 1	107.0				017.1/1	0007
200 000	121	1											10.00%	U.	1007	070.1	120'7	I	T	T	158.903	2.276
IN TOT JAI	or Jar	T	L	1	L.	1	I.	T	Т	T	1	1	T	1	6.936	1.808	1	17.981	1	1	144.641	2.071
95 Dc	95 Doiar trap	7.874	19.892	10.873	1	3	1	1	T	1	1	1	4.362	0.683	1.131	2.537	3.033	ł	j	1	AL6 A11	1 675
272 Daun	uni	1.647	1	1	T	Ľ	T	T	1	1	Ţ	1	1 044	3 870	1355	0.401						C1011
175 Kathi jal	thi jal	T	T	3.468	1	1	1	1	70.435					100		174-0				T	160711	1.01
otte Katha	the								Potentia I	Ŋ,	ŝ	C	E	5	ľ	1	1	r	Ţ	T	104.403	1.495
))	17	1	ļ	r	r	1	T	ŗ	1	1	Г	T	T	T	6.220	1	13	T	23.730	0.340
314 BO	514 Boal Katha	1	T	T	1	T	J	100.000	T	1	T	T.	Т	T	T	1	T	1	ł	1	1	
		1000	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	1001	1004	01 2003	100

												Total annual catch	al catch
Gear			Year: 1992				~	Year: 1993				(Mar'93 - Feb'94)	Feb'94)
ope	Code Gear name	Oct	Nov	Dec	June	July	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Kg	<i>%</i>
255	255 Thella jal	9.568	10.256	100.000	62.264	1	56.764	1.577	56.017	72.019	100.000	372.016	40.838
105	105 Dharma jal	56.692	23.885	Т	-1-	1	T	39.346	29.517	5.510	1	223.803	24.568
266	266 Veshal	1	1	I	1	ľ	6.565	31.949	-1	I		106.328	11.672
164	164 Jhaki jal	26.453	64.916	1	T	1	1	8.945	4.230	11.843	1	68.423	7.511
291	291 Urani	Ŀ	-1	1	T	L	1	15.586	1	1	1	50.400	5.533
30	30 Sip	7.288	0.943	1	37.736	100.000	36.671	1	7.297	Ĩ	I	48.571	5.332
88	88 Current jal (Stationary)	1	1	1	1	1	1	2.598	2.939	Ĩ	1	16.742	1.838
70	97 By hand/Dewatering	1	1	1	T	I	T	1	T	3.515	1	8.160	0.896
307	307 Hand fishing	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	2.865	1	6.651	0.730
95	95 Doiar trap	1	T	Ţ	Т	T	1	Ľ		1.654		3.840	0.422
286	286 Dcal trap	1	1	1	1	1	Ţ	1	1	1.587	1	3.684	0.404
296	296 Tukri	1	1	T	Т	Т	1	Т	T	1.008	1	2.340	0.257
		100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	910.958	100

Notes: 1. No fishing activities were observed from January to May 1993, and January to February 1994 2. - denotes zero catch

80

K.

T.

but were not dominant gears. Small-scale gears common to both sites and used primarily for subsistence fishing included *current jal*, *sip* and fishing by hand. These gears together provided 10% of the catch from Anahula and, although not listed as dominant gears on Nandina, still provided 8% of its annual catch.

6.2.2 Catch by gear by month

On Anahula *Khal* very few gears operated during the pre-monsoon months from March to June 1993 and prevailing monthly catches were extremely low. In March a *kathi jal* fishing in the few remaining isolated pools took most of the catch while hand fishing and *thella jal* accounted for the remainder. In April only *thella jal* were observed fishing but as water depths increased in May and rainfall runoff flowed into the Northern Dhaleswari, *jhaki jal* fishing started alongside *thella jal* and hand fishing (Fig. 6.2). In June, *dharma jal* were established to take advantage of increasing flows at a time when river floodwaters first entered the floodplains via feeder canals. At this time they accounted for 77% of the monthly catch.

As water levels continued to rise in July, fishing activities increased and the number of different types of gear deployed increased from 4 to 9. *Ber jal* and *dharma jal* took the largest share of the catch and the smaller, two-man *dhor jal* appeared for the first time and provided 16% of the catch. Gear diversity remained high during August, when a peak catch was recorded, and during the drawdown in September and October. *Dharma jal* predominated during this period, providing between 40% to 77% of monthly catches. *Thella jal* was also important during the drawdown when it accounted for 22% to 31% of catches. Other important gears included *ber jal* and *moi jal* which operated chiefly during the early drawdown in September and hand fishing which was employed later in October when water levels had decreased sufficiently to allow this fishing method. The peak catches recorded between August and October were due principally to the very high levels of fishing effort by dominant gears, particularly *dharma jal* and *thella jal* (Fig. 6.3) and, to a lesser extent, high catch rates of some of these gears (Fig. 6.4). Later in the year, *dharma jal* continued to provide the largest share of monthly catches until December after which *sip, jhaki jal* and *thella jal* predominated.

On the regulated Old Hurasagar River, no fishing activities were observed between January and May 1993. In June two gears were recorded, *thella jal* and *sip*, which captured 62% and 38% of the very low monthly catch (Fig. 6.5). Fishing activities and catches remained at

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6




Coco



Figure 6.3 Total monthly fishing effort per kilometre of canal by dominant gears: site NC07 (outside BRE)





L.

Note: Scaled CPUE are values of CPUE expressed as a proportion (decimal) of the maximum monthly value recorded



Figure 6.5 Percentage of total monthly catch taken by dominant gears: site NW20 (inside BRE)



Figure 6.6 Total monthly fishing effort per kilometre of canal by dominant gears: site NW20 (inside BRE)

9⁰0

86

4

T

Y



Figure 6.7 Scaled CPUE of dominant gears: site NW20 (inside BRE)

Note: Scaled CPUE are values of CPUE expressed as a proportion (decimal) of the maximum monthly value recorded

87

very low levels during July and August when again *sip* and/or *thella* predominated. In September catches increased sharply and remained high until November. The number of different types of fishing gear also increased slightly from 3 in August to 5 or 6 in September and October then to a maximum of 8 in November. Three gears predominated during this period, lift nets *dharma jal* and *veshal* which together took 71% of the catch in September, and *thella jal* which accounted for 65% and 72% of catches in October and November. *Veshal* were used for only one month but *dharma jal* continued to provide an important share of the catch (29%) in October. The high catches recorded between September and November were a function of peak fishing effort by dominant gears (Fig. 6.6) and peak catch rates (Fig. 6.7). In December 1993, only one gear, *thella jal* remained active, providing a very low monthly catch from the remaining disconnected pools in the canal. No fishing activities were observed in January and February 1994.

6.3 Statistical Comparison of Catch Rates from Canals Inside and Outside the BRE

Statistical analyses of seasonally pooled catch rates of dominant gears used in canals inside and outside the BRE were carried out. The underlying assumption of the method was that differences in catch rates of a particular gear type reflected differences in fish densities and abundance inside and outside the BRE.

There were only three gears which were dominant on both canals: *dharma jal, thella jal* and *jhaki jal*. These gears accounted for 73% of the annual catch from both Anahula *Khal* and Nandina *Khal*. Mean catch rates of each of the three gears from the two canals were compared, where data were available, for each of five seasons and for all seasons combined between March 1993 and February 1994 (Table 6.7 and Fig. 6.8). The non-parametric Mann-Whitney U-test was used since catch rate data were not normally distributed. However, the parametric student t-test on logarithmic transformed data produced essentially the same results as those shown in Table 6.7.

Of the 9 gear/season combinations examined statistically, a significant (p < 0.05) difference in catch rates was found in only one case. This was for *thella jal*, where catch rates were significantly higher on Nandina *Khal* during the drawdown. It is concluded from these results therefore that there was no strong statistical evidence for significant differences in catch rates, and therefore fish densities, between canals.

27 (

		Inside	BRE	Outsid	e BRE	A Trade and the second s	metric Ma test on C	nn-Whitney PUE
Gear	Season	Sample size	Mean CPUE	Sample size	Mean CPUE	Z- value	P- value	Comment
Thella jal	3	5	0.058	9	0.084	-0.20	0.841	NS
	4	6	0.261	10	0.133	-2.17	0.030	SIG
	All seasons	13	0.163	30	0.114	-1.19	0.234	NS
Dharma jal	3	5	0.041	25	0.120	-1.25	0.210	NS
	4	4	0.108	18	0.103	-0.26	0.798	NS
	All seasons	9	0.071	52	0.111	-1.10	0.272	NS

Table 6.7Statistical comparison of catch rates (kg/hr) of dominant gears used inside
and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994

Notes: 1. NS - Not significant, SIG - Significant at 5% level

2. Seasons: 1. March-April, 2. May-June, 3. July-September, 4. October-November and 5. December-February

The higher catch from the unregulated Anahula *Khal* was therefore due to the higher amount of fishing effort expended by dominant gears (Table 6.8). The annual fishing effort per kilometre of canal was four times higher by *dharma jal* and twice as high by *thella jal* in the unregulated Anahula *Khal*.

Table 6.8	Comparison of annual fishing effort by dominant gears in canals inside
	and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994

Gear	Anahula Khal (site NC07)	Nandina <i>Khal</i> (site NW20)	% change compared with NC07
Thella jal	1,982	875	- 65
Dharma jal	7,323	1,821	- 75
Jhaki jal	350	273	- 22

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6



Figure 6.8 Comparison of mean monthly catch rates (kg/hr) of dominant gears from canals inside and outside the BRE

6.4 Biodiversity and Catch Composition

6.4.1 Species richness

Between March 1993 and February 1994, 59 species of fish were recorded from the unregulated Anahula *Khal* compared with 34 species from the regulated Nandina *Khal*, a reduction in species diversity of 42%. When these species were divided into different groups based on habitat preference: riverine, migratory and floodplain residents (see Section 5.4.1 for definitions), clear differences emerged between the regulated and unregulated canal (Table 6.9). Clearly, there was a more severe impact of flood control on species which moved between rivers and floodplains. The numbers of riverine species were reduced by 82% in Nandina *Khal* and migratory species by 69% compared with numbers in Anahula *Khal*. Floodplain resident species were less adversely affected, but still showed a reduction of 16%.

Table 6.9Total annual number of fish species, classified by habitat preference,
recorded from canals inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February
1994

Fish group	Anahula <i>Khal</i> (site NC07)	Nandina <i>Khal</i> (site NW20)	% reduction in NW20
Riverine species	11	2	82
Migratory species	16	5	69
Floodplain resident species	32	27	16
Total species	59	34	42

6.4.2 Catch composition

Percentage contributions made by riverine, migratory and floodplain resident species to annual catches from canals are presented in Table 6.10. Riverine species made negligible contributions to catches from both canals while migratory species accounted for 41% of the catch from the unregulated Anahula *Khal* compared with only 7% from Nandina *Khal*. These catch compositions differ markedly from those seen on adjacent rivers where migratory species, mainly carps, accounted for 49% of the catch from the Old Hurasagar while riverine and migratory species each comprised 15% of the catch from the Northern Dhaleswari.

221-

Table 6.10Percentage contribution of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident
species to annual catches from canals inside and outside the BRE, March
1993 - February 1994

7222000		Inside/	% Tot	al annual catch	
Site Code	Site name	Outside BRE	Riverine	Migratory	Floodplain resident
NC07	Anahula Khal	Outside	<1	41.0	46.4
NW20	Nandina Khal	Inside	<.1	6.7	85.4

Percentage contributions of individual dominant species showed that four major carps, *mrigel, catla, rui* and *kalbaus* together comprised 37% of the catch from Anahula *Khal* and the smaller carp, *raik* provided a further 2% (Table 6.11). In contrast, on Nandina *Khal* only 3 dominant migratory species were found, one major carp, *rui* and two minor carps, *raik* and *bata* together comprising 6% of the annual catch. With such a high proportion of the unregulated canal catch provided by major carps, it is surprising that they did not account for a greater share of the river catch.

A total of 14 dominant floodplain resident species provided 82% of the Nandina catch which was almost the total catch (85%) provided by this group of fish. In comparison, 10 dominant floodplain resident species were found on Anahula *Khal* and comprised 41% of the catch; again these few dominant species accounted for most of the catch (46%) of this group. There were 9 species found on both canals. Of the remainder which were not dominant on Anahula *Khal* only two were abundant, *kaikka* and *shol*, which each comprised about 6% of the Nandina catch. On both canals *puti* predominated, forming 25% of the catch at Nandina and 16% at Anahula. *Taki* was the second most abundant species by weight on both canals while *guchi baim, khalisha, darkina* and *canchan puti* were proportionately more abundant on Nandina *Khal*. Prawns were important at both sites, forming 8% and 12% of catches from Nandina and Anahula respectively.

6.5 Fish Migrations

Seasonal fish movements were identified from changes in monthly catch compositions (Tables 6.12 and 6.13), temporal changes in the distributions of important individual species and changes in monthly species numbers and catch contributions of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident groups of fish.

June, 1994

1.

RD

Habitat	Species nar	ne	Anahula Khal	Nandina Kha
Preference	Scientific	Bengali	Outside BRE (site NC07)	Inside BRE (site NW20
Migratory	Catla catla	Catla	12.1	
	Cirrhinus mrigala	Mrigel	13.2	
	Cirrhinus reba	Raik	1.7	1.1
	Labeo bata	Bata	_	1.9
	Labeo calbasu	Kalbaus	2.4	
	Labeo rohita	Rui	9.5	2.
Subtotal			38.9	5.9
Floodplain	Mystus vittatus	Tengra	1.8	1.1
Resident	Colisa fasciatus	Khalisha	1.4	5.:
	Xenentodon cancila	Kaikka	-	б.
	Puntius conchonius	Canchan puti	2.3	4.
	Puntius sophore	Puti	15.8	25.
	Puntius ticto	Tit puti	1.5	
	Amblypharyngodon mola	Mola		1.
	Esomus danricus	Darkina	2.7	5
	Glossogobius giurus	Bailla	3.9	2.1
	Lepidocephalus guntea	Gutum	2.1	3.5
	Channa punctatus	Taki	5.9	11.
	Channa striatus	Shol	_	5.:
	Macrognathus pancalus	Guchi	3.2	6.3
	Badis badis	Napit koi	_	1.0
	Chanda ranga	Lal chanda		1.0
Subtotal			40.6	82.1
Other	Prawn spp.	Chingri/Icha	11.5	7.5
Subtotal			11.5	7.5
Grand total			91.0	95.9

Table 6.11 Percentage contribution (by weight) to the total annual catch by dominant species from canals inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 – February 1994

Notes: 1. Dominant species are those species contributing 1% or more by weight to the total annual catch

2. Shaded values highlight the most important species (>4%)

3. See text for definitions of habitat preference categories (Section 5.4.1)

Specter Hathat Code Preference Sci 13 Rivertine Mo 139 Rivertine Mo 25 Be Be 23 Be Be 24 LLL LL 127 LL LL 128 LL LL 163 Be Be 81 Sci Sci 81 Sci Cr 133 Migratory Ar 134 Migratory Ar	Scientific operation annue Mystus guilo Wua Aspidoparia morar Pai Crossochelus latius Kali Neumethellus botia Bali Bali Scimiletes sourota Gala	aure Bengall	1 aug		Del Del							and the second se	Contraction of the second s								Man - CC THW
8	tilo tria morar ibis botia se son potia	ITEXTAC	「「「「「「「「」」」」	Sen		Nov	Dec	Jan Feb	b Mar	April	May	June	July	Aug	Sep	Oct Nov	v Dec	Jan	Feb	kg	t.
6	morar Slatkis botia		AUC	dae							1	1	1	-		,		T	T	T	
Subtotal Migratory	<u>8_3.707</u>	Nuns tengra		0,053		r.	1					-1	-,	0.587	-,	,		1	T	13.138	0.188
Subtotal Migratory	<u></u>	Piall	T			0		_		1	3	- 1	1	0.117	1	,	-	- T	1	2.628	0.038
Subtotal Migratory		Ania Cata	0.405	0.070	-		,	-	ा	T	1	- 1	9		0.044 0	210'0	,		¥.	0.833	0.012
Subrotal Migratory		Delicoste	0.170	1	,	-	-	-	т Т	1	1	Т	1	Т	0.257	,	-	1	Ţ	3.542	0.051
Subrotal Migratory		Custome Desi	0.008	0.001	-,	-1	-1	-	-	1	1	-	0.351		0.069 0	0.005	,	1	1	8.982	0.129
Subtotal Migatory		Putul	-	-	- 1	1	-	-	-T	T	1	1	1		0.037 0	0.002	1	-	1	2.284	0.033
Subtotal Migratory	0 a 0	Bala	15.296	6533	1	1	T	-	1	T	1	-	U	1	T	r	1	1	1	1	
Subicital Migratory	Amatura ap	Bata	1	0.088	1	1	1	-	1	1	1	T	r	1	r	1		10	T	1	
Subtotal Migratory		Rate	0.004		0.005	0.010	11	-	1	1	1	1	1	r	t	t		5	1	T	
Subtotal Migratory		Rata		_		1	1	1	1	3	1	1	0.040	1	1	,	1	1. L	T	0.233	0.003
Subtotal Migratory		L'ALL AND A		1	-	-	-1	1		1	3	T	0.279	1	•	,	1		1	1.628	0.023
Subtotal Migratory	DIS DOTO	NOME U		- 1	-	-	-		-1	1	9	1	1	1	0.011		T	1	-	0.147	0.002
Subtotal Migratory		undary .			-	-1	-	-,	- 1	1	3	1	7	1	0.285	-	1	1	1	3.936	0.056
Subtotal Migratory		Coanta	ce 1 0	0.063	-		_	-	-	1	1	1	1	1	1	,	-	1	T	1	
Subtotal Migratory		Dagnar.	77110	1	-1	-1	-,	-	-	-	-	-	1	0.727	0.316 0	0.003	-	1	1	20,704	0.296
Migratory	(ragata youssoutt	Cardy touges	16 006	K 707	D OOK	0.010	1	1	1	1	T	1	0.670	1.771	L018 0	0.021	1	-	т	58.055	0.831
Migratory			00000	0,171		- ATAN		,		1	T	1	0.201	0.192	-	-	-	-	T	5.483	0.079
		A)10	7000	-			-,	-	_	1	-1	T	0.017	-			-	- -	1	0.101	0.001
	60m1#			1	113 6	-10	- 1			1	-	1	ţ	t	0.075 0	0.632		- 13.174	1	19.269	0.276
		Croisba fengra		-		0 174 0	207.0	-1		1	-	-1	0.017	0.557	0.137 0	0.087			-	16.150	0.231
	asjus.	Kabashi	1 116	10000			2	_	-	1	T	1	_		18.856		-	,	1	843.947	12.086
		Catla	7 t a t	_	10.873		-	_	-	N	1	1	247		9.556	-	-	- -	-	918.910	13.159
	ala	Mrgel	#/0"/	-	C/0'01					1	ा	1		0.440	_	1.745 0.007	10	1	1	118.244	1.693
	and.	Kalk Park	0.306	104-0	1 140 2	- 1	,	_	1	1	-1	1	1	1	-	•	-		T	1	
	Labed bata	Bhunown	2010	1	-	1	-	-	-	1	1	1	1	0.507	0.222	1	1	'	1	14.407	0.206
		Kalbaur	0.253	0.301	1	-	,	-	-	-	T	1	0.319	2.867	7.446	- 0.009	2	1	1	168.903	2.419
101		Goal		1	1	1	-	-1	-	1	1	1		0.298		T	1		1	6.676	0.096
	Laborrohite	Rul	0.189	2.967	0.820	1	1	-1	,	1	1	1		13.372	5.826	125.9	1	1	1	664.329	5126
	bacaila	Katari	0.018	0.090	1	1	1	-1	t	1	T	t	0.996	T	•	t	1	1	1	618.0	0.005
	Salmostoma phulo	Fulchet	8.566	3.657	0.015	0.031	1	1			1	,	3.746	0.694	0.444					11000	5
	Securicula gora	Chora chela	0.291	0.078	1	1	1	T			1		0.646	1111		-	_		1	11.001	0.158
86 0	Gudusia chapra	Chapila	0.192	0.078	1	1	1	1			,		0000	600.0	0.014	0.004	7	-	1	0.540	0.008
	Pseudeutropius atherinoides	Batasi	0.070	0.089			0				-1	1	0.120	0.587	2.054	-1	-1	-	1	42.191	0.604
	Walkgu attu	Boal	7007		10 010	U FUL U	0.407	-			100000		12	133	1.	11.786 0.020	50	- 13.174	1	2879,486	41.235
		Trad	00000					-	-	T	1	T	1.	-	+		- 1,442	1	1	1.309	0.019
Floodplain	Anabas testudineus	Reinel tenera	15 899	9.309	-1	1.204 1	1.801	-1	-			0.237	1	0.019	0.099	0120	1	1	1	11.925	0.171
Kesident	Mystus tengara	Tanon india	0.547	1 212	3776			8.049		1	T	8.578	1.049	1.014	1.686	2.865 0.950	Sec. 1		3.167	128.338	1.838
	Mystus vittatus	t engra	0.033	0.626		_			4.457	10.531	1	2.890	862.0	0.054	_	2447 2.676	76 4.484	1 0.652	7,390	94.912	1.359
	Contract and a second second	K-balkha	1	'	Т	,	Ţ	-1-	1		T	6.862	0.922	1	0.101		_		1	15.940	0.228
2 117	Collee le Ra	La khalisha	1	1	0.025	,	-1	-,-	1	1	1	9.054	0.080	0.018	Ţ	1.173 0.502	02 1.918	8 0.976	1	38.179	0.547
	Colisa sota	Khalibha	0.008	0.037	0.101	0.020	1		1	1	T	1	T	1		1	Ţ		1	000 10	036.0
	Xenentodon cancila	Katikka	0.191	0.133	1	1	6.373	1	,	1	1	1	1.116	0.469	660.0	122.0	7100	1.245		4.788	0.063
	Puntius choia	Chala puti	1	0.443	1		1		-	1		3.070		707.1	0100	1101 1011	3631 11	2 2 665	1 507	915 2316	2.339
175 P	Puntius conchonius	Canchan put!		1	1.941	2.247 26	26.950	r.	1		11/07	066-11	702.0				_	_	1	1	
	Puntius cosuatis	Kosuari			0100	0.020		-		-	r	0.919	0.159	1	-1	-1	,	1	1	2.027	0.029
176	Puttins goins	Uniput Phutani resti		-1		1	-	-	-	1		1	1	T	1	- 0.064	2	- 1.085		0.739	0.011
	Puntius souhore	Pud	3.969	16.650	40.237 6	65.601 33	33.714 47	47.614	- 4.465	1	14.391	36.508	9.849	5.796	5.224 2	29.823 46.338	38 20.852	2 35.819	23.399	1105.687	15.834
	Puntius ter io	Teri punti	1	1.738	1.085	1.504	1	1	1	1	1	1.378	T	r		-			T	1.645	0.024
	Puntius ticto	Tit puti	1.741	0.228	0.005	0.010	1.421	.		1	1	2312	0.908	0.688	1.213	0.0% 13.600	07-11	9171		6/0.0/1	0771
	Puntius sp.		11.013	4.704	1	1	1	0 0 10				8.272	2.232	-	0.422	0.528		-		38.915	0.557
5	Ambhpharyngodou mola	Mola	7/0.0	1607	-	-	-	1		-1	1		1	0.019		-	,	-	1	0.831	0.012

	ţ
	2
	2
	5
	2
	8
	ţ
	ŝ
	5
	-
	•
	1
	3
	÷
	2
	5
	1
	3
	4
	1
	ň
	3
	4
	4
	1
	*
	J.
	3
	f
	5
	2
	3
	2
	1
	ŝ,
	3
	2
	ŝ,
	1
	į.
	ä
	ź
	1
	ġ
	2
	,
	5

																					Tot	Total annual catch
Species Habitat	Speck	Species name			Year: 1992								Year: 1993	3						Year: 1994		(Mar'93 - Feb'94)
Code Preference	Scientific	Bengali	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Peb	Mar	April	May	June	July	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb 1	ka R
75	Esomus danricus	Darkina	7.942	3.176	3.163	0.061	r	1	T	64.277	20.000	7.049	0.577	6.871	0.169	0.502	1.428	0.291	3.702	0.869	5.904 18	85.090 2.651
182	Rasbora daniconius	Darkina	0.186	0.019	T	1	Т	T	1	T		T	T	-	1	-	•	T	-	T		1
83	Glossogoblus giurus	Ballh	3.779	2.218	0.942	6.697	0.655	7	16.279	T		3.767	0.473	4.134	4.835	4.725	3.061	0.618	10.113	1.748	1	70.340 3.871
16	Hypophthalmichthys molitrix	Silver curp	4	1	1	1	4	1	1	T	T	1	1	1	2.818	-1	1	1	1	1	,	63.113 0.904
43	Chela cachais	Chep chek	0.088	0.005	1	1	-1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	-	-	1	1	1	Т	,	1
110	Lepidocephalus guntea	Gutum	0.254	0.436	2.593	6.582	4.486	5.642	30.233	11.206	1	1.689	0.355	1.277	0.237	2.049	3.902	0.744	9.896	-	1.236 14	47.084 2.106
6	Aplochellus penchex	Kanpona		1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	0.017	0.244	0.057	0.023	1	1	1	1	6.778 0.097
41	Channa punctatus	Taki	0.490	2.009	11.833	6.739	6.118	35.213	46.512	12.752	65.260	T	5.196	1.931	1.380	4.627	9.796 1	6.299	11.509	20.311 1	12.137 4(08.355 5.848
42	Channa striatus	Shol	1	-		1	-	1	T	-	T	1	T	1	1	1	T	0.092	1	-1	-	0.350 0.005
88	Heteropneustes fossilis	Shingl	0.209	0.159	0.866	-	-	2.553	1	0.812	-	1	1			0.430	0.104	0.047	-	-	5.232	10.001 0.143
121	Macrognathus aculeatus	Tara baim	0.247	0.617	4.604	1	-	1	1	-	-1	Ţ	1.	0.280	0.450	0.074	0.412	1	-	T	-	20.701 0.296
123	Macrognathus pancalus	Guchi	22595	1.023	2.886	0.061	4.925	1	T.	1.320	1	40.186	0.237	4.409	1.167	4.627	3.571	3.628	3.247	1.066	8.970 22	226.366 3.242
122	Mastacembelus armatus	Baral baim	0.609	0.108	1	1	-1-	T	T.	T	Ľ	t	ł	0.080	0.021	2.061	0.252	4.049	1		1	49.716 0.712
15	Badis badis	Napit kol	,	1	1	1	-1-	ĩ	T	1	4.208	1	1	1	0.005	0.456	1	1	0.601	0.976	T	7.700 0.110
203	Tetraodon cutcutia	Potka	1	-	1	1	Т	Ţ	ł	T	T	T	Ţ	T	,	1	0.155	0.072	-1-	,	,	3.262 0.047
33	Chaca chaca	Cheka	0.013	0.001	1	1	-1-	1	1	T	Ţ	Ţ	1	7	1	-1	1	1	1.439	T	1	1.116 0.016
36	Chanda nama	Nama chanda	0.635	0.282	0.459	0.214	1	1	1	1	1	1	0.059	3.696	1.035	0.254	0.237	0.657	1.039	0.543	1	56.475 0.809
37	Chanda ranga	Lal chanda	1.365	0.881	0.689	0.356	1	7	T	1	1	1	0.459	1.375	0.371	1.165	0.298	1.217	0.840	2.713	1	45.246 0.648
Subtotal			56.883	48,110	79.796	99.410	665'66	100.000	93.024	99,695	666.66	93.798	99.541 4	47.285 2	22.302 3	31.432 6	63.088 9	96.018	94.234	81.184 8	87,033 324	3241.487 46.419
114 Others	Machrobrachium lammariel	Kunchu ichs	1	T	0.133	1	1	1	T	T	1	1	T		1	1	1	T	т	Т	1	•
117	Machrobrachium stylferus	Gura Icha	1		0.099	0.204	-1-	1	T	-	1	1	1	1	1	-	1	1	-	T	1	T
166	Prawn spp.	Chingel/Icha	1.575	0.391	0.057	0.071	T	1	6.977	0.304	-	6.203	0.459	7.032	0.286 1	17.643 2	25.104	3.961	5.766	5.643	12.966 8(804.073 11.515
Subtotal			1.575	0.391	0.288	0.275	т	1	6.977	0.304	7	6.203	0.459	7.032	0.286 1	17.643 2	25.104	3.961	5.766	5.643	12.966 8(804.073 11.515
Grand total			1001	1001	100	TOOL	1001	1001	1001	1001	1001	1001	1001	NON N	1001	1001	1001	1000			100	101 101 101

6	
2	
3	
z	
e	
sit	
-	
de BRE (
×	
qe	
· 12	
: inside	
Kha	
2	
) from Nandina Khal: inside BRE (site NV	
.8	
Vandi	
틞	
Z	
-	
8	
4	
-	
Ā	
5	
ve	
5	
Ā	
20	
5	
F	
ij	
SI	
0	
in	
0	
0	
C-	
at	
C	
Ly l	
t	
font	
Ň	
Table 6.13 Monthly	
Table 6.13	
5	
0	
19	
3	
-	

and a	Habitat	Species name	e	~	Year: 1992				X	Year: 1993				(Mar'93 - Feb'94)	Feb'94)
Code	Preference	Scientific	Bengali	Oct	Nov	Dec	June	July	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Kg	₩0
139	Riverine	Nemacheilus botia	Balichata	1	1	1	1	1	1	0.098		T	1	0.317	0.035
58		Corica soborna	Kachki	Ŀ	T	T	1.132	1	Т	1	1	1	T	0.180	0.020
	Subtotal			T	T	T	1.132	T	1	0.098	Т	1	1	0.497	0.055
131	Migratory	Mystus bleekeri	Golsha tengra	1	1	1	1	1	1	0.245	1	T	T	0.793	0.087
48		Cirrhinus reta	Raik	1	1	1	1	1	1	2.994	1	1	1	9.682	1.063
100		Labeo bata	Bata	8	1	1	ľ.	T	1	5.391	1	T	1	17.433	1.914
102		Labeo calbasu	Kalbaus	1	1	9	1	1	1	1.962	1	Т	1	6.343	0.696
107		Labeo rohita	Rui	1	Т	Т	1	Т	1	8.249	1	T	T	26.674	2.928
	Subtotal			T	1	T	Т	Т	Т	18.841	Т	Т	Т	60.925	6.688
136	Floodphin	Mystus tengara	Bajari tengra	Т	т	T	1	т	1	Т	1	0.560	T	1.300	0.143
137	Resident	Mystus vittatus	Tengra	3.213	8.417	10.525	5.283	35.101	2.722	1	0.275	2.209	1	9.754	1.071
55		Colisa fasciatus	Khalisha	1.348	2.949	6.524	11.321	1	1.655	2.778	10.406	3.876	1	50.080	5.497
211		Colisa labiosus	Khalisha	1	1.7	1	1	1	0.289	0.171	1	1	1	0.686	0.075
57		Colisa sota	Khalisha	4.212	6.503	2.262	1	7	0.146	0.432	1	1.383	19.737	5.605	0.615
210		Xenentodon cancila	Kaikka	1	Ĩ	-1	1	T	2.881	1.079	17.569	1.253	1	57.591	6.322
175		Puntius conchonius	Canchan puti	1	1	T	3.396	T	3.620	6.147	6.174	1.623	T.	43.375	4.761
176		Puntius gelius	Giliputi	1	1	1	1	T	0.581	9	1	0.198	1	0.727	0.080
178		Puntius phutunio	Phutani puti	ř	1	1	1	T	1.013	T	1	T	1	0.466	0.051
180		Puntius sophore	Puti	49.699	46.145	2.001	T	4.263	5.793	20.335	26.391	35.993	26.316	228.344	25.066
212		Puntius ticto	Tit puti	10.196	8.653	6.524	1	1	1	0.221	3	T	1	0.714	0.078
3		Amblypharygodon mola	Mola	0.037	1	1	1	T	Ţ	3.079	0.082	Т	1	10.190	1.119
75		Esomus danricus	Darkina	0.510	0.565	5.509	2.264	T	1	T	0.012	20.970	2.632	49.203	5.401
83		Glossogobius giurus	Bailla	1.519	0.464	4.523	9.811	6.384	36.669	0.428	0.250	1.610	1	24.575	2.698
110		Lepidocephalus guntea	Gutum	0.542	1.779	11.772	2.264	1	1	0.070	3.210	9.706	1	32.230	3.538
6		Aplocheilus panchax	Kanpona	0.364	0.464	4.523	1.132	1	0.870	T	0.317	0.543	2.632	2.864	0.314
40		Channa orientalis	Cheng	1	0.642	6.263	3	1	1	1	1	1	Ĵ	1	1
41		Channa punctatus	Taki	11.944	9.526	31.342	31.698	34.040	2.607	9.774	16.764	7.503	44.737	106.658	11.708
42		Channa striatus	Shol	Ţ	E	1	1	1	1,	15.586	10	T	1	50.400	5.533
88		Heteropneustes fossilis	Shingi	4.240	6.061	3.508	1	1	1	з	1	1.827	1	4.241	0.466
121		Macrograthus aculeatus	Tara baim	1.471	3.609	1	1	T	I	0.613	0.064	Ţ	1	2.165	0.238
123		Macrognathus pancalus	Guchi	6.880	1.902	1	2.264	20.212	12.598	13.206	3.334	0.874	T	61.358	6.735
122		Mastacembelus armatus	Baral baim	0.254	1	1	1	1	0.289	1	1	1	1	0.133	0.015
138		Nandus nandus	Bheda	1.034	1.453	T	T	T	T	1	T	I	T	I	
15		Badis badis	Napit koi	1.164	0.025	0.232	9.057	E.	3.910	0.024	1.585	0.570	3.947	9.327	1.024
203		Tetraodon cutcutia	Potka	1	1	1	1	1	1	0.589	1	1	1	1.903	0.209
35		Chanda baculis	Chanda	0.155	0.384	T	1	1	0.435	0.981	0.285	T	1	4.180	0.459
36		Chanda nama	Nama Chanda	1	Т	1	T	L	0.900	1.419	1	1	T	5.001	0.549
37		Chanda ranga	Lal chanda	0.254	0.025	0.232	1	J	0.435	2.667	1.585	0.642	Т	14.816	1.626
	Subtotal			99.035	99.564	95.738	78.491	666.66	77.412	79.598	88.304	91.338	100.001	777,886	85.391
931	Other .	Prawn spp.	Chingri/Icha	0.964	0.436	4.262	20.377	Т	22.588	1.462	11.696	8.662	T	71.664	7.867
	Subtotal			0.964	0.436	4.262	20.377	Т	22.588	1.462	11.696	8.662		71.664	7.867
	Grand total			100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	910.972	100

T

ŕ

1.

¥

£

6.5.1 Unregulated Anahula Khal

Between January and June 1993 no riverine or migratory species were recorded in Anahula *Khal* despite the first entry of river floodwaters in mid-June (Fig. 6.9). In July numbers of riverine species increased only slightly but there was a substantial increase of migratory species. During August and September, riverine species numbers continued to rise to a peak in September while numbers of migratory species stabilised at a peak level in August and decreased slightly in September. During the flood drawdown in October, all riverine species returned to rivers and none remained in the canal by November. The migration out of the canal by migratory species was rather more gradual but most had left by October and all by December.

Numbers of floodplain resident species followed a different pattern. Numbers remained at their lowest between January and May 1993 but increased sharply in June and more gradually in July and August to a stable peak which was maintained until October. From November to January there was a slow decline followed by a more rapid decrease in February 1994.

Data from monthly catch compositions showed that in July, 3 riverine species entered the canal in low abundance together with 13 migratory species which moved upstream from the Northern Dhaleswari River. These species accounted for 45% of the monthly catch (Fig. 6.10) and the most abundant individual species included the major carps *catla* (18%), *rui* (18%) and *mrigel* (3%) and others such as *fulchela* (4%), *katari* (1%) and *chapila* (0.6%). All major carps entered as fry with individual average weights ranging from 3-4 g. *Katari* entered as adults (6 g) while *fulchela* and *chapila* were juveniles of 2-3 g per individual. In August, 4 new riverine and 2 migratory species appeared in catches but none was abundant. The catch contribution of migratory fish reached a peak of 76% in August due mainly to *mrigel* (34%), *catla* (21%) and *rui* (13%). These were all juveniles of the year averaging in size from 56 g to 85 g for *catla*, 27 g for *mrigel* and 19 g for *rui*. In September, 4 new riverine species appeared in low abundance together with 1 migratory species. The catch contribution by migratory species decreased slightly to 50%, the bulk of which was provided by juvenile *catla* (126 g/indiv), *mrigel* (37 g), *kalbaus* (130 g) and *rui* (45 g).

Catch contributions made by floodplain resident species ranged from 93% to 100% from January to June 1993. The sharp increase in numbers of species from 6 in May to 19 in June probably resulted from a migration from the Northern Dhaleswari River where 9 of these



3ª



1

ſ







species were recorded in April and May while on adjacent floodplains very few species were found during the same period (see Section 7.5.1).

6.5.2 Regulated Nandina Khal

No fishing was observed in the regulated Nandina *Khal* between January and May 1993 and between January and February 1994. During the rest of the year, migrations into the canal by riverine and migratory species were greatly reduced compared with those on the unregulated canal (Figs 6.11 and 6.12). Only 2 riverine species were recorded, *kachki* in June and *balichata* in September and their contributions to catches were very low (1% or less). Migratory species were only found in September when 5 species, *rui*, *kalbaus*, *bata*, *raik* and *golsha tengra* accounted for 19% of the peak monthly catch. The four species of carp entered as juveniles while *golsha tengra* were small adults.

Numbers of floodplain resident species increased moderately in June and decreased in July before rising sharply again in August to a peak level of diversity which was maintained until November, after which numbers declined rapidly to zero in January 1994. Catch compositions from the Old Hurasagar River and Nandina floodplain/*beel* indicated that while only 1 to 3 species were recorded on Nandina *Beel* in May and June, all 10 species which entered the canal in June were present in the Old Hurasagar in May and June. It seems highly likely therefore that these species entered the canal by upstream migration from the river.

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

100

ſ



Figure 6.11 Seasonal variation in the number of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident fish species in Nandina *Khal* (site NW20, inside BRE)



pa



Notes: 1. See text for definition of different categories of fish based on habitat preference (Section 5.4.1)

2. Dominant species are shown for peak relative abundances of riverine and migratory fish

3. Note differences in percentage scales

7 FLOODPLAIN FISHERIES

7.1 Total Catch

7.1.1 Pattern of catch

On the unregulated Anahula floodplains/beel no fishing activities were observed from November 1992 to April 1993 and from January to February 1994 (Fig. 7.1). The earlier end to fishing activities in 1992 resulted from the lower flood in that year compared with 1993. In May and June 1993, fishing effort and catch remained extremely low despite rainfall inundation of the *beel* in May and entry of river floodwaters in mid-June. The catch peaked sharply in July but dropped equally rapidly in August before rising to a secondary peak during the drawdown in September and October. In November and December catches again decreased to very low levels.

On the regulated Nandina floodplains/*beel*, monthly catches remained very low (<3 kg/ha) throughout the year making it difficult to identify clear seasonal patterns. Catches were lowest between April and July 1993 and in February 1994. A peak catch was observed in November 1993 but catches during the drawdown of September and October did not exceed those seen earlier in the year, between February and March 1993. The differences in winter catches between years resulted from *kua* harvesting which was carried out in 1993 but not during the survey period in 1994.

7.1.2 Size of catch

Between March 1993 and February 1994, the annual catch from Anahula was 43 kg/ha compared with only 8 kg/ha from Nandina, a reduction of 81% (Table 7.1). Statistical comparisons of fish densities between sites were inconclusive since they were limited by the fact that there was only one dominant gear common to both sites and that this gear accounted for only a minor proportion of the total catch from the unregulated Anahula *Beel* (see Section 7.3). The higher catch at Anahula could be explained more clearly in terms of the higher fishing effort expended by the two most dominant gears, *thella jal* and *ber jal*, which together accounted for 72% and 68% of the catch from unregulated and regulated sites respectively.





Figure 7.1 Seasonal variation in the catch per unit area from floodplains/beel inside and outside the BRE

T

L

269

Note: 1. At site NC08+NC09, no fishing activities were observed from Nov-Dec 1992, Jan-April 1993 and Jan-Feb 1994 At site NW21 no fishing activities were observed in April 1993

2(2)

Site Code	Site Name	Inside/Outside BRE	Catch per unit area (kg/ha)
NC08+NC09	Anahula	Outside	43
NW21	Nandina	Inside	8
NC04	Gazaria	Outside	108
NC18+NC19	Mailjani	Outside	105
NW17+NW18	Potajia	Inside	84

Note: Values of catch are rounded to nearest whole number

Table 7.1

The annual fish yields from Anahula and Nandina floodplains/*beel* were considerably lower than those from adjacent lower-lying areas in the North Central and North West regions (Table 7.1). The catch differences were attributed to differences in flooding patterns between high and lower-elevation sites within each region.

7.1.3 Comparisons of catches between different years

Survey periods of 17 and 19 months in the North West and North Central regions respectively provided an opportunity to examine inter-annual changes in catch through two flood recessions and winters. In the North West Region, total catches for the period October 1992 - February 1993 were compared with those for the same period in 1993/94. A similar comparison was made in the North Central Region for the months August to February 1992/93 and 1993/94. Catches from *kua* fishing were excluded from the analyses since these were harvested in the winter of 1993 but not during the survey period up to February 1994. It is not known whether they were harvested in March or April 1994.

Catches were lower in the drier year of 1992/93 from both regulated and unregulated floodplains (Table 7.2). Results from studies elsewhere in the world have demonstrated that yields of floodplain fisheries are directly positively related to the magnitude and extent of flooding¹³. Lower catches would therefore be expected in the relative drought year of 1992/93 than in 1993/94 when flooding increased (see Fig. 3.3).

		Inside/Outside	Cat	ch	% reduction
Site Code	Site Name	BRE	1992-1993	1993-1994	in catch in 92/93
NC08 + NC09	Anahula	Outside	15	25	40
NW21	Nandina	Inside	2.8	3.8	26

Table 7.2Comparison of catches (kg/ha) from floodplains/beel inside and outside the
BRE between different years

Note: Kua catches were excluded from the analyses (see text for details)

0°°

The total catch for each survey period was then divided into three groups of fish based on habitat preference: riverine, migratory and floodplain resident species (see Section 5.4.1 for definitions). At Anahula, the catch of floodplain residents was more greatly reduced (39%) than that of riverine species (9%) during the drier year. However, the catches of the latter were so small (<0.2 kg/ha) that percentage values were highly sensitive to small changes in catch (Table 7.3). Catches of migratory species were also small (≤ 5 kg/ha) but these increased slightly during the drier year of 1992/93. The results generally agree with patterns predicted on the basis of inter-annual changes in flood extent and their impact on floodplain dependent species (see Section 5.1.3 for more detailed discussion). At Nandina, riverine and migratory species were very rare and therefore the total catch reduction of 26% in the drier year was due solely to a lower catch of floodplain resident species. The greater reduction in floodplain resident species seen on the unregulated site agrees with the patterns found on adjacent rivers and suggests that the flood extent was more greatly reduced during the dry year on unregulated floodplains than on regulated areas. However, as mentioned in Section 5.1.3, while no direct hydrological data were available to examine differences in inter-annual flooding patterns, hydrographs for the Dhaleswari and Baral rivers indicated almost identical inter-annual changes in flood magnitude and duration between 1992/93 and 1993/94 (see Fig. 3.3).

June, 1994

T

Table 7.3Comparison of catches1 (kg/ha) of riverine, migratory and floodplain
resident fish species from floodplains/beel inside and outside the BRE
between different years

				Riverine CPUA	ł		Migrator CPUA	Y	Flo	odplain Re CPUA	sident
Site code	Site Name	Inside/ Outside BRE	1992- 1993	1993- 1994	% change in 92/93	1992- 1993	1993- 1994	% change in 92/93	1992- 1993	1993- 1994	% change in 92/93
NC08 +NC09	Anahula	Outside	0.150	0.164	- 9	5.0	4.2	+ 19	9.5	15.5	- 39
NW21	Nandina	Inside	0.07	Via Via	2	1	12	2	2.8	3.8	- 26

Notes: 1. *Kua* catches were excluded from the analyses (see text for details) 2. + and - denote increase and decrease in catch respectively

7.2 Pattern of Fishing

7.2.1 Catch by gear

Percentage contributions made by dominant gears to the total annual catch from floodplains/ beel are presented in Table 7.4. More detailed data on percentage monthly and annual catches of all observed gears are given in Tables 7.5 and 7.6.

Table 7.4Percentage contribution (by weight) to the total annual catch made by
dominant¹ gears on floodplains/beel inside and outside the BRE, March
1993 - February 1994

Gear	Anahula (site NC08+NC09), outside BRE	Nandina (site NW21), inside BRE
Ber jal	47.9	-
Thella jal	24.3	60.7
Dharma jal	10.6	
Hand fishing	8.8	
Kua		18.1
Current jal (Stationary)	-	13.0

Notes: 1. Dominant gears are defined as those gears which, when ranked in order of abundance, comprised at least 90% of the total annual catch

2. - denotes gear present but not dominant; blank denotes gear absent

													Total an	Total annual catch
Gear			Year : 1992			States and S		Year : 1993	993				(Mar'93	(Mar'93 – Feb'94)
Code	Gear name	Aug	Sep	Oct	May	June	July	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Kg	%
45	45 Berjal	48.296	85.559	1	1	T	80.873	1	50.557	12.017	-1	1	1890.636	47.881
255	255 Thella jal	51.704	6.850	32.606	100.000	100.000	13.923	73.381	21.687	32.597	26.604	11.594	960.394	24.322
105	105 Dharma jal	1	6.658	50.142	1	1	1	8.265	21.476	22.177	3.112	-1	418.123	10.589
307	307 Hand fishing	1	1	1	1	-1	1	1	-1	21.442	29.081	83.172	347.338	8.796
175	Kathi jal	1	1	1	T	ï	4.790	1.579	1	5.412	1	-1-	124.026	3.141
30	Sip	1	1	I	1	Ľ	0.320	3.119	1.294	2.858	3.218	1	51.669	1.309
272	272 Daun	I	1	1	T	l	0.085	9.131	2.359	0.176	T	1	48.008	1.216
88	88 Current jal (Stationary)	1	I	Т	1	T	0.009	3.268	2.306	0.341	3.575	_1	37.036	0.938
79	97 By hand/Dewatering	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	34.410	1	31.760	0.804
164	164 Jhakijal		0.933	17.252	T	1	1	1	0.322	2.809	1	1	26.106	0.661
89	89 Dhor jal	1	1	1	1	-1	T	1.258	1	T	1	5.234	12.152	0.308
278	Nol barsi	1	1	T	T	1	Т	T	ŀ	0.170	1 se	Т	1.381	0.035
		100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	3948.629	100

2. - denotes zero catch

108

T

ŕ

L

																		Total annual catch	al catch
Gear			Year: 1992						Year:1993	993						Year: 1994	1994	(Mar'93 - Feb'94)	Feb'94)
de G	Code Gear name	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	May	June	July	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Kg	%
255 T	255 Thella jal	83.659	83.659 57.407	93.753 100.000	100.000	23.503	2.502	100.000	100.000	34.026	31.694	18.252	82.153	96.559	97.967	100.000	100.000	830.641	60.661
302 Kua	(ua	1	1	T	1.	76.497	96.292	E.	T	1	T	Т	T	Т	1	Т	T	247.633	18.084
88 C	88 Current jal (Stationary)	3.906	42.593	5.935	Т	1	1	Т	Т	65.974	68.306	11.915	17.847	1	1	1	Т	178.506	13.036
45 B	45 Ber jal	T	Т	Ţ	Т	10	1	15	r	T	Ţ	69.833	Ţ	T	1	Т	Ţ	92.400	6.748
97 B	97 By hand/Dewatering	12.435	1	U	1	1	1	1	1	1	T	T	T	3.441	1	Т	T	15.823	1.156
307 H	307 Hand fishing	Т	1	Ú.	T	1	1.205	1	Ť	T	1	T	T	1	Т	T	1	3.100	0.226
30 Sip	dis	1	T	J.	Т	T	1	1	T	1	J	Т	1	Т	2.033	Т	1	1.213	0.089
314 B	314 Boat katha	1	1	0.312	T	Ű.	a	9	1	ų.	1	Т	Т	Ţ	Т	Т	T	T	
100		1001	1001	100	100	100	100	1001	100	100	100	100	100	100	1001	1001	1001	1360 316	100

Notes: 1. No fishing activities were observed in April 1993

2. - denotes zero catch

A total of 12 different types of gear was recorded at Anahula compared with 8 at Nandina. Data in Table 7.4 revealed marked differences in fishing patterns between sites. On the unregulated floodplain/*beel*, *ber jal* accounted for the highest share (48%) of the catch while on Nandina this gear took only 7%. *Thella jal* was the second most important gear at Anahula where it provided 24% of the catch but at Nandina this was the most important gear accounting for 61% of the annual catch. *Dharma jal* were used on Anahula *Beel* where water flowed between various canal systems and took 11% of the catch. In contrast, this gear was absent at Nandina. The third dominant gear at this site was *current jal* providing 13% of the catch compared with only 1% at Anahula. A further difference between sites was the presence of several small *kua* in Nandina *Beel* which took 18% of the annual catch while at Anahula, farmers made no attempt to construct *kua* in the small *beel* area. Instead, hand fishing in the shallow water and mud during the flood drawdown was more important at this site.

7.2.2 Catch by gear by month

At Anahula, no fishing activity was observed from November 1992 to April 1993. In May and June, despite rainfall inundation of the *beel* and ingress of river waters in mid-June, only one gear, *thella jal* was recorded which provided extremely low monthly catches (Fig. 7.2). The peak catch of the year was taken a month later in July, resulting principally from *ber jal* operations which captured 81% of the catch. *Thella jal* accounted for a further 14% and the remainder of the catch was shared by four new gears, *kathi jal, sip, daun* and *current jal*. The total catch decreased considerably in August possibly as a result of the *ber jal* moving out of the area and the bulk of the catch was taken by *thella jal*. However, a smaller seine net, *kathi jal* continued operations but provided less than 2% of the catch. Of the 5 other gear types used in August, *daun* and *dharma jal* provided the highest catch shares of 9% and 8% respectively.

During the drawdown in September and October, catches increased again to a secondary seasonal peak. During September, *ber jal* reappeared and took half the monthly catch while most of the remainder was taken equally by *thella jal* and *dharma jal*. In October, the share taken by *ber jal* dropped to 12% while that of *thella jal* increased to 33%. *Dharma jal* continued to provide an important part (22%) of the catch and hand fishing commenced, accounting for a further 21%.

110

t





R LISEARY.

The peak catch seen in July resulted mainly from the peak fishing effort (Fig. 7.3) and peak catch rate of *ber jal* (Fig. 7.4). Secondary catch peaks in September and October were largely a function of high (or sometimes peak) fishing effort and catch rate of three dominant gears, *ber jal*, *thella jal* and *dharma jal*. In November and December monthly catches decreased sharply and were provided almost exclusively by *thella jal* and hand fishing.

On the regulated Nandina floodplain/beel, catches were dominated for most of the year by *thella jal* which accounted for 80% to 100% of the catch in several months (Fig. 7.5). The months when it did not dominate included February and March 1993, when *kua* provided 76% to 96% of catches, and the monsoon period when *current jal* increased effort from August to October (Fig. 7.6) and *ber jal* appeared in September to take the largest share (70%) of the catch. The peak catch seen in November was a function more of a peak in fishing effort by *thella jal* than a peak in catch rate (Fig. 7.7).

7.3 <u>Statistical Comparison of Catch Rates from Floodplains/Beel Inside and Outside the</u> <u>BRE</u>

Statistical comparisons were undertaken of seasonally pooled catch rates of dominant gears used on Anahula and Nandina floodplains/*beel* following the method described in the Draft Final Report, Appendix 3. The underlying assumption of the method was that once differences in catchabilities between gears had been accounted for, any further differences in catch rates inside and outside the BRE were due solely to differences in fish densities.

On the regulated floodplains/beel at Nandina, more than 90% of the total annual catch per hectare, excluding *kua*, was taken by three gears. In descending order of contribution to the catch these were *thella jal*, *current jal* and *ber jal*. On the unregulated floodplains/*beel* at Anahula, 92% of the annual catch was taken by four gears. In descending order of contribution to the catch, they were *ber jal*, *thella jal*, *dharma jal* and hand fishing. *Ber jal* accounted for 48% and *thella jal* 24% of the catch.

Inspection of gear usage and catch rate trends revealed that there was relatively little fishing at Nandina. In particular, *ber jal* was recorded in use in only one month and *current jal* were used extensively in only one season. Neither was therefore a suitable gear on which to base comparisons of seasonal catch rates. With only one gear remaining (*thella jal*), statistical comparisons using the model could not be carried out.

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

90²

Ť



Figure 7.3 Total monthly fishing effort per hectare of floodplain by dominant gears: site NC08+NC09 (outside BRE)





Note: Scaled CPUE are values of CPUE expressed as a proportion (decimal) of the maximum monthly value recorded

zł.

T



Figure 7.5 Percentage of total monthly catch taken by dominant gears: site NW21 (inside BRE)

115



Figure 7.6 Total monthly fishing effort per hectare of floodplain by dominant gears: site NW21 (inside BRE)

T

T

L

1



Figure 7.7 Scaled CPUE of dominant gears: site NW21 (inside BRE)

Note: Scaled CPUE are values of CPUE expressed as a proportion (decimal) of the maximum monthly value recorded

2886
It was nevertheless considered useful to examine the differences in catch rate trends for *thella jal* which provided 61% of the Nandina catch. Mean catch rates of *thella jal* were compared for four seasons and for all seasons combined between March 1993 and February 1994 (Table 7.7 and Fig. 7.8). The non-parametric Mann-Whitney U-test was used since catch rates were not normally distributed. However, the parametric student t-test on logarithmic transformed catch rates produced essentially the same results as those presented in Table 7.7.

Gear	Season	Inside	BRE	Outsid	le BRE		rametric Ma J-test on C	nn-Whitney PUE
name	Scason	Sample size	Mean CPUE	Sample size	Mean CPUE	Z- Value	P- Value	Comment
Thella	2	7	0.114	5	0.066	-0.16	0.871	NS
jal	3	5	0.256	31	0.090	-1.33	0.185	NS
	4	12	0.171	16	0.086	-3.02	0.002	HS
	5	10	0.141	2	0.117	-0.21	0.830	NS
	All seasons	34	0.163	54	0.087	-3.13	0.002	HS

Table 7.7	Statistical comparison of catch rates (kg/hr) of dominant gears used inside
	and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994

Notes: 1. NS - Not significant, HG - Highly significant

Ba

2. Seasons: 1. March-April, 2. May-June, 3. July-September, 4. October-November and 5. December-February

No significant difference was detected in three of the four seasons examined. During the drawdown, however, a highly significant (p < 0.01) difference between sites was detected with a higher mean catch rate found on the regulated Nandina *Beel*. When seasonal data were combined a significantly (p < 0.01) higher mean annual catch rate was observed at Nandina. It can be concluded from these results that while there is some evidence of significantly higher catch rates and thus fish densities at Nandina, the gear on which this evidence was based accounted for only a small proportion (24%) of the total catch at Anahula. It can therefore not be stated conclusively that there were significant differences in fish abundances between sites.

The considerably higher catch from the unregulated site was due principally to the greater amount of fishing effort expended by the two most dominant gears, *thella jal* and *ber jal*. The annual effort per hectare of floodplain/*beel* at Anahula was fivefold and twelvefold greater for *thella jal* and *ber jal* respectively (Table 7.8). These two gears together accounted for 67% and 72% of annual catches from regulated and unregulated floodplains/*beel* respectively.

Figure 7.8 Comparison of mean monthly catch rates (kg/hr) of dominant gears from floodplains/*beel* inside and outside the BRE



Gear	Anahula (site NC08+NC09)	Nandina (site NW21)	% change compared at NW21
Thella jal	123	25	- 78
Ber jal	7	0.6	- 91
Current jal	25	41	+ 64

Table 7.8Comparison of annual fishing effort per hectare of floodplain/beel by
dominant gears inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994

Note: + and - denote increase and decrease in effort respectively

7.4 Biodiversity and Catch Composition

7.4.1 Species richness

Between March 1993 and February 1994, 50 species of fish were recorded from the unregulated Anahula *Beel* compared with 31 species from Nandina *Beel* during the same period, a reduction in species diversity of 38%. When species were divided into different groups based on habitat preference: riverine, migratory and floodplain residents (see Section 5.4.1 for definitions), clear differences emerged between unregulated and regulated sites (Table 7.9). The adverse impact of flood control by the BRE was considerably greater on those species which typically migrate between rivers and floodplains. No riverine species were found at Nandina compared with 8 species at Anahula. Similarly, only 1 migratory species occurred at Nandina compared with 15 at Anahula, a 93% reduction in diversity of migratory species on regulated floodplains/*beel*. In contrast the number of floodplain resident species was slightly higher (11%) at Nandina than at Anahula.

Table 7.9	Total annual number of fish species, classified by habitat preference,
	recorded from floodplains/beel inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 -
	February 1994

Fish group	Anahula (site NC08+ NC09, outside BRE)	Nandina (site NW21, inside BRE)	% change compared to NC08+NC09
Riverine species	8	0	
Migratory species	15	1	- 93
Floodplain resident species	27	30	+ 11
Total species	50	31	- 38

Note: + and - denote increase and decrease in diversity respectively

Table 7.10 summarises and compares the results from regulated and unregulated floodplains/ beel with those from canals and rivers. Species diversity was highest in rivers and lowest on floodplains both inside and outside the BRE due mainly to the higher numbers of migratory and riverine species. Compared with unregulated habitats in the North Central Region the reduction in species diversity on regulated floodplains was higher than that in rivers but slightly lower than that recorded in Nandina canal (Table, 7.11). Results in Table 7.11 revealed a clear difference in the impact of flood control on different groups of fish. Riverine species suffered the greatest reductions in diversity in all habitats, followed by migratory species again in all habitats, while floodplain resident species were slightly reduced in number in rivers, moderately in canals, but not at all on floodplains.

Table 7.10Total annual number of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident fish
species from different habitats inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 -
February 1994

			Hal	oitat		
		Outside	BRE		Inside	BRE
Fish group	River	Canal	Floodplain/ beel	River	Canal	Floodplain/ beel
Riverine species	23	11	8	9	2	0
Migratory species	20	16	15	17	5	1
Floodplain resident species	35	32	27	34	27	30
Total species	78	59	50	60	34	31

Table 7.11Percentage change in annual species diversity of different fish groups from
rivers, canals and floodplains/*beel* inside the BRE, March 1993 -February
1994

	23 	Habitat	
Fish group	River	Canal	Floodplain/beel
Riverine species	- 61	- 82	
Migratory species	- 15	- 69	- 93
Floodplain resident species	- 3	- 16	+ 11
All species	- 23	- 42	- 38

Notes: 1. - denotes absence of species on regulated site

2. + and - denote percentage increase and decrease in species numbers respectively

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

281-

7.4.2 Catch composition

Percentage contributions made by riverine, migratory and floodplain resident species to annual catches from floodplains/*beel* are shown in Table 7.12. Riverine species made a rather small contribution (5%) to the annual catch from Anahula but were completely absent from Nandina. Similarly, migratory species accounted for about 21% of the catch from Anahula but provided a negligible proportion (< 1%) of the catch from Nandina. Conversely, floodplain resident species comprised 93% of the catch at Nandina and 59% at Anahula. The results revealed that flood control caused by the BRE resulted not only in a serious harmful reduction in species diversity but also resulted in severe disruption to the fish community structure. This was caused principally by the loss of important seasonal components derived from migratory and riverine species.

Table 7.12Percentage contribution of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident
species to annual catches from floodplains/beel inside and outside the
BRE, March 1993 - February 1994

		Inside/	% T	otal annual catch	
Site Code	Site Name	Outside BRE	Riverine	Migratory	Floodplain resident
NC08 + NC09	Anahula	Outside	5	20.5	59.2
NW21	Nandina	Inside	-	< 1	92.9

Percentage contributions of different groups of fish to annual catches from different habitats inside and outside the BRE are shown in Table 7.13. The results again indicated that the impact of flood control varied not only between different groups of fish but also between habitats. Reductions in relative abundance were highest for riverine species followed by migratory species, excluding the river where they increased, while floodplain resident catch contributions increased on the regulated canals and floodplains. Between habitats, greatest reductions in riverine and migratory species were recorded on floodplains.

Table 7.13Percentage contributions of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident
fish species to annual catches from different habitats inside and outside
the BRE, March 1993 - February 1994

		Unreg	gulated		Regula	ted
Fish group	River	Canal	Floodplain/beel	River	Canal	Floodplain/beel
Riverine species	15	<1	5	<1	<1	0
Migratory species	15	41	21	49	7	<1
Floodplain resident	57	46	59	43	85	93

Percentage contributions of individual dominant species showed that from a total of 14 floodplain resident species, 5 species, *khalisha* (2 species), *taki*, *puti* and *shingi* accounted for 69% of the annual catch from Nandina (Table 7.14). In contrast, on the unregulated Anahula floodplains/*beel*, there was a more equitable distribution of dominant species which included one riverine species, *piali*; 5 migratory species which together accounted for 21% of the catch, and 15 floodplain resident species which provided a further 56% of the catch. Only 8 floodplain resident species occurred at both sites but the relative abundances of 4 of these species differed greatly between sites. *Khalisha* (*Colisa fasciatus*) and *taki* dominated the Nandina catch where they comprised 27% and 20% respectively compared with only 3% and 6% at Anahula. *Lal chanda* and *guchi baim* were more abundant on the unregulated floodplain where together they provided 13% of the catch. Of the 6 species recorded as dominant only at Nandina, 2 species, *shingi* and *khalisha* (*C. sota*) were most abundant and comprised 7% and 5% respectively. Of the 7 species found exclusively at Anahula, two species, *canchan puti* and *nama chanda*, were also particularly abundant forming 6% and 5% of the catch.

Prawns formed an important component of the catch at both sites but were relatively more abundant on unregulated floodplains. Unfortunately, because of taxonomic difficulties, prawns were rarely identified in the field but sub-samples were sent routinely to the University of Chittagong for identification. Results so far indicate that all species of prawn belong to the genus *Macrobrachium*. This genus is regarded as an estuarine spawner which makes migrations into freshwaters at the juvenile stage in its life cycle. However, FAP 17 studies of hatchling movements at Bauitara regulator and in several other areas of Bangladesh revealed that recently hatched prawns formed an important component of the drift which suggests that there is widespread breeding inland by some species⁹.

Habitat	February 1994 Species r	10000	Outside BRE	Inside BRE
Preference	Scientific	Bengali	Site NC08+NC09	Site NW21
Riverine	Aspidoparia morar	Piali	3.9	Dire it w2
Subtotal			3.9	
Migratory	Cirrhinus mrigala	Mrigel	1.5	
. .	Labeo rohita	Rui	3.7	
	Salmostoma phulo	Fulchela	7.5	
	Gudusia chapra	Chapila	1.7	
	Wallagu attu	Boal	1.7	
Subtotal			16.1	al des de la
Floodplain	Anabas testudineus	Koi		2.3
resident	Mystus vittatus	Tengra	1.1	14-120
	Colisa fasciatus	Khalisha	2.7	27.
	Colisa Ialia	Lal khalisha	2.7	
	Colisa sota	Khalisha	_	5.
	Puntius conchonius	Canchan puti	6.1	
	Puntius phutunio	Phutani puti	_	1.9
	Puntius sophore	Puti	10.7	10.
	Puntius ticto	Tit puti	1.1	
	Amblypharyngodon mola	Mola	1.0	1.:
	Esomus danricus	Darkina	1.7	1.2
	Glossogobius giurus	Bailla	2.6	
	Lepidocephalus guntea	Gutum	1.4	2.4
	Channa punctatus	Taki	5.5	19.0
	Channa striatus	Shol	_	2.4
	Clarias batrachus	Magur	-	1.9
	Heteropneustes fossilis	Shingi	_	7.1
	Macrognathus aculeatus	Tara baim	1.3	
	Macrognathus pancalus	Guchi	6.2	2.0
	Chanda nama	Nama chanda	4.6	
	Chanda ranga	Lal chanda	7.2	2.1
Subtotal			55.9	87.
Other	Prawn spp.	Chingri/Icha	15.3	7.1
Subtotal		1	15.3	7.0
Grand total			91.2	94.7

Table 7.14 Percentage contribution (by weight) to the annual catch by dominant species from floodplains/beel inside and outside the BRE, March 1993 – February 1994

T

T

4

4

Las

Notes: 1. Dominant species are defined as those species which comprised 1% or more of the total annual catch

2. Shaded values highlight the most abundant species (>4%)

3. See text for definations of habitat preference categories (Section 5.4.1)

The results from analyses of catch compositions revealed that the fish community structure in flood controlled areas has been disrupted not only by the loss of riverine and migratory species but also by major changes in the compositions of the remaining floodplain resident species. Such loss in species heterogeneity results in a less stable fish community dominated by a few very abundant species. Under these conditions disease outbreaks may be more frequent and damaging. This may account for the perception noted in some studies that the incidence and severity of the disease known as epizootic ulcerative syndrome is greater within flood controlled areas¹⁴.

7.5 Fish Migrations

Seasonal movements of fish were identified from changes in monthly catch compositions (Tables 7.15 and 7.16); temporal and spatial changes in the distributions of important individual species, and changes in monthly species numbers and catch contributions of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident fish. Where available, additional information on the average size (weight) of fish and their reproductive state (Table 7.17) was used to determine whether fish were adults or juveniles and whether movements were primarily for growth, breeding or both.

7.5.1 Unregulated Anahula floodplain/beel

No fishing was observed between November 1992 and April 1993 which accounts for much of the extended seasonal absence of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident species shown in Figure 7.9. No riverine or migratory species were found in the rainfall-flooded *beel* during May while in June, when river floodwaters first arrived, only one migratory species was recorded. In July however, the numbers of riverine and migratory species increased sharply, followed a month later by an equally rapid decrease in riverine species and a slight decline in the number of migratory species. In September, numbers of species in both groups peaked and then decreased rapidly in October and were gone by November.

The numbers of floodplain resident species increased slightly in May as the *beel* filled with rainwater and more rapidly in June and July. Following a small drop in August, species numbers increased again to reach peak levels during the drawdown in September and October. Numbers then dropped sharply in November and temporarily stabilised in December before fishing stopped and the site dried out in January and February.

S Habitat Specter name Year: 1992 13 Retrience Seintific Specter name Year: 1992 23 Preference Seintific Bengali Aug Sep 24 Crossochal Rahdra 0.182 Sep 1014 25 Rahdra Rahdra 0.182 Sep 1014 25 Rahora Rahdra 0.182 Sep 1014 26 Crossochal Robraulia Robraulia Robraulia 1014 25 Chajacon Rahdra 0.182 1014 26 Crossochal Robraulia Robraulia Robraulia 1014 26 Crossochal Robraulia Robraulia Robraulia 1018 21 Migratory Robraulia Robraulia Robraulia 1018 201 Copian ergan Caulia Caulia 1205 2213 21 Migratory Caulia Caulia 2213 45177																TOTAL UNDER CALCH	EI Calc
InterfereceScientificBenealtiAugSepOctMyJuncJulyNertificAppidyramentiRaidaba		itat	Spec	sies name	- -	fear : 1992	2	10 M			Year:	1993				(Mar'93 - Feb'94)	Feb'94
		erence		Bengali	Aug	Sep		May	June	July	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Kg	200
Cossocherike latieKalabaaaKalabaaKalabaaKalabaaK	12	stine	Aspidooaria morar	Piali	T			1	Ţ	9.519	T	0.199	T	<u>т</u>	T	153.413	3.885
Numericine hoisBairichanBairich			Crossocheilus latius	Kalabata		0.182	- I-	1	ļ	0.714	1	Ļ	0.066	T	E	11.895	0.301
Betin darioRanii <td>39</td> <td></td> <td>Nemacheilus botia</td> <td>Balichata</td> <td>I</td> <td>1.014</td> <td></td> <td>1</td> <td>Ţ</td> <td>Т</td> <td>1</td> <td>Т</td> <td>0.086</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>0.703</td> <td>0.018</td>	39		Nemacheilus botia	Balichata	I	1.014		1	Ţ	Т	1	Т	0.086	1	1	0.703	0.018
Corica sedormaKachki </td <td>28</td> <td></td> <td>Botia dario</td> <td>Rani</td> <td>T</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>Т</td> <td>0.434</td> <td>1.379</td> <td>0.076</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>)i</td> <td>10.915</td> <td>0.276</td>	28		Botia dario	Rani	T	1	1	1	Т	0.434	1.379	0.076	1	1)i	10.915	0.276
Rinormali consultRinormali consultKhoruta 0.182 0.182 0.182 0.040 Cange tengenCause tengen 0.133 0.040 0.040 Capsion agrantChantaChanta 0.133 0.040 KatotalCause tengenChanta 0.133 0.040 KatotalCause tengenChanta 0.133 0.040 KatotalCanta callaCause tengen 0.038 0.040 KatotalCartalCartal 0.036 0.036 0.036 Carthinus rebaBhangan 0.038 0.036 0.038 Carthinus rebaBhangan 0.038 0.038 0.038 Laboto hataBhanganCanta 0.036 0.046 KathausKathaus 0.038 0.038 0.038 Laboto hataBhangan 0.038 0.038 0.038 Laboto nataBhangan 0.038 0.038 0.038 Laboto nataBhangan 0.038 0.038 0.038 Sulmostoran bacallaKathaus 0.038 0.038 0.038 Laboto nataBhangan 0.038 0.038 0.038 Sulmostoran bacallaKathaus 0.038 0.038 0.038 Laboto nataBhan tengen 0.038 0.038 0.038 Sulmostoran bacallaCantal 0.038 0.038 0.038 Sulmostoran bacallaKathaus 0.038 0.038 0.038 Sulmostoran bacallaCantal 0.038 0.03	58		Corica soborna	Kachki		3	1	1	Ţ	1	1	0.066	Т	1	1	0.661	0.017
Atila coliaAtila coliaKajuliKajuliColo0000Gapta youssouffGapta youssouffGapta youssouff0.000990Gapta youssouffGapta youssouffGapta youssouff0.01420.03690MagatoryMystus brekeniGapta youssouffGapta youssouff0.01420.036MagatoryMystus brekeniGabta tengra12.0650.05690Cata cutaCata cutaCata cuta23.2040.37890Cata cutaRaixCata cuta23.2040.05691.439Cata cutaRaixCata23.2040.05691.439Labeo baaBanaganKahuus2.2130.05691.439Labeo baaBanaganConia2.2130.05691.439Labeo baaBanaganConia2.2130.05691.439Labeo poniaKahuusConia2.2130.0561.4391.439Sulmostora baculaKata2.2130.0561.4671.439Sulmostora baculaKata2.2130.0561.4671.439Sulmostora baculaKata2.2130.0561.4671.439Sulmostora baculaKata2.2134.1710.6641.467SulmostoraKata2.2134.1710.641.467SulmostoraKataConia2.2134.1710.641.467SulmostoraKata <td< td=""><td>85</td><td></td><td>Rhinomugil corsula</td><td>Khorsula</td><td>1</td><td>0.182</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>1.</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>T</td><td></td></td<>	85		Rhinomugil corsula	Khorsula	1	0.182	1	1	1	1	1	1.	1	1	1	T	
Cupisona garaGhaura <t< td=""><td>6</td><td></td><td>Ailia coila</td><td>Kajuli</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>Ţ</td><td>0.040</td><td>1</td><td>0.155</td><td>T</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>2.191</td><td>0.055</td></t<>	6		Ailia coila	Kajuli	1	1	1	1	Ţ	0.040	1	0.155	T	1	1	2.191	0.055
KatholalCargita youscouffCang tengraCan tengraCCCCCCMigratoryMystus carastusCalda tengraC1378C0.142MigratoryMystus carastusCalda tengraC1.20650.0560.142Carla cutaCarlaCarlaC0.138C0.143Carla cutaCarla cutaCarla cutaC0.1460.143Carla cutaCarla cutaCarla cutaC0.0560.0560.142Labeo basaRataRataC0.0560.0560.0660.056Labeo carbasRataCarla cutaC0.0560.0560.0660.056Labeo consuRataCaniaC0.0560.0560.0660.056Labeo consusRataCarla2.2130.0740.0600.0660.056Sumostora basaRata2.2132.2130.0740.0510.061Sumostora basaRataCarla2.2130.0740.0510.055Sumostora basaRataCarla2.2130.0740.0510.055Sumostora basaRataCarla2.2130.0560.0560.055Sumostora basaRataCarla2.2130.0560.0560.055Sumostora basaMystusCarlaCarla0.0560.0560.055Sumostora basaMystusCarlaCarla2.2134.51710.5641.673	51		Clupisoma garua	Ghaura	1	1	1	1	Ţ	1	T	0.554	1	1	1	5.544	0.140
Subtrant 1.378 1.378 1.431 MigratoryMystus bleckeriGolda tengra 1.431 1.431 MigratoryMystus bleckeriGolda tengra 0.024 0.024 Carthaus arrigalaMrigel 0.0056 0.056 0.026 Carthaus arrigalaMrigel 0.036 0.056 0.024 Carthaus relaBangan 0.036 0.056 0.066 0.024 Labeo begaBhangan 0.036 0.056 0.066 0.060 Labeo begaBhangan $Rui2.3040.0360.0660.066Labeo pointsRui2.3130.0360.0660.060Sulmostora phuloFlabela2.3130.0341.439Sulmostora phuloFlabela2.3300.3410.646Sulmostora phuloFlabela2.3310.0361.6732.323Sulmostora phuloFlabela2.3310.0361.6732.324Sulmostora phuloFlabela0.0360.0561.6732.324Sulmostora phuloFlabela0.0360.0360.0561.6732.324Sulmostora phuloFlabela0.0360.0360.0561.6732.324Sulmostora phuloFlabela0.0360.0360.0360.0561.6732.324Sulmostora phuloFlabela0.0360.0360.0360.0360.036Sulmostora photeColisa$	81		Gagata youssoufi	Gang tengra	1	1	1	T		0.725	10	-L	E	1	T	11.534	0.292
MigratoryMystus bleckeriGalsta tergeaGalsta tergea $ -$ <th< td=""><td>Subt</td><td>total</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>1.378</td><td>1</td><td>Т</td><td>Т</td><td>11.431</td><td>1.379</td><td>1.049</td><td>0.152</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>196.856</td><td>4.985</td></th<>	Subt	total				1.378	1	Т	Т	11.431	1.379	1.049	0.152	1	1	196.856	4.985
Mystus cavasitsKabastiKabasti (0.142) Catla catlaCatla (0.142) (0.142) (0.142) Catla catlaCatla (0.142) (0.142) (0.142) Catha catlaCatha catla (0.142) (0.142) (0.142) Catha catlaCatha catla (0.142) (0.142) (0.142) Catha catlaCatha catla (0.142) (0.23) (0.23) (0.23) Labco bagaBhanganRaix (0.142) (0.26) (0.26) (0.26) Labco cothaRain (0.142) (0.26) (0.26) (0.26) (0.26) Labco cothaRainRain (0.12) (0.26) (0.26) (0.26) Salmostoma bacalaRain (0.12) (0.26) (0.26) (0.26) Salmostoma bacalaRain (0.21) (0.26) (0.26) (0.26) Salmostoma bacalaRain (0.12) (0.26) (0.26) (0.26) Salmostoma bacalaRain (0.26) (0.26) (0.26) (0.26) Salmostoma bacalaRainRain (0.26) (0.26) (0.26) Salmostoma bacalaRainRain (0.26) (0.26) (0.26) Salmostoma baca		ratory	Mystus bleekeri	Golsha tengra	1	1	1	1	1	1	1.494	Ţ	1	1	1	3.534	0.089
Carla catlaCatla </td <td></td> <td></td> <td>Mystus cavasius</td> <td>Kabashi</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>T</td> <td>0.142</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>2.265</td> <td>0.057</td>			Mystus cavasius	Kabashi	1	1	1	1	T	0.142	1	1	1	1	1	2.265	0.057
Cirrhinus arrigalaMrigelMrigel 1206 0.056 0.056 -1 -1366 Laboco otataRaakRaak 23204 0.378 -1 -1366 -1366 Laboco otataBaraganBhangan 23204 0.378 -1 -1366 Laboco otataBaraganBhangan -1006 -0036 -1 -1366 Laboco otataBaraganEata 0.036 -1 -1366 -1366 Laboco otataRatari 2213 8.233 0.074 -1673 -1366 Laboco otataRatari 2213 8.233 0.074 -1673 -1366 Salmostora phuloFuichela 2213 45.177 0.564 -1673 -1366 Salmostora phuloChapliaRatari 2213 45.177 0.564 -1673 -1366 SalmostoraNoropterus chitalaChaplia -1640 -1633 -1633 -1633 SalmostoraMystus tregaraElajari tengra 2213 45.177 0.564 -1673 -26465 SalmostoraNoropterus chitalaChaplia -1640 -1673 -1673 -1633 SalmostoraMystus tengaraElajari tengra -1326 -1336 -1633 -1633 SalmostoraMystus tengaraElajari tengra -1334 -1633 -1633 -1633 Stato taMystus tengaraElajari tengra -1336 -1633 -1633 -1633 Stato taMystus ten	32		Catla catla	Catla	1	1	1	1	T	0.234	0.347	2.879	1	1	1	33.368	0.845
Cirrhins rebaiRaikPaik12.0650.056PaikPaikLabeo bataBataBataBataBata12.0650.056Paik13.66Labeo bataBhanganKahausCoin0.056Paik13.6613.66Labeo gonitsKahausCoinSalmostoran bataliaKain2.2139.056Paik14.99Labeo gonitsKainCoinSalmostoran bataliaKain2.2139.074Paik16.0314.93Sulmostoran bataliaKainCapita2.2139.074Paik16.0314.93Sulmostoran bataliaKainCapita2.2139.074Paik16.0314.93Sulmostoran bataliaKainCapita2.2139.074Paik16.0316.13Sulmostoran bataliaKain2.2139.014Paik16.9316.13Sulmostoran bataliaKainBoal1.1230.0561.0732.3731.33Sulmostoran bataliaKainRain2.2134.5170.5610.3560.356SuboulMytus vitatusKainBoal1.1230.0341.0732.3241.035SuboulMytus vitatusKainCoins hasout1.6400.0561.6732.3342.335SuboulMytus vitatusKainskaCoins hasout1.1230.0561.0560.465Coins hasoutKains vitatusCoins hasoutCoins hasout0.0560.0560.0	47		Cirrhinus mrizala	Mrigel	1	1		1	T	1	3.037	5.166	1	l	T	58.910	1.492
Laboco bataBata <td>48</td> <td></td> <td>Cirrhinus reba</td> <td>Raik</td> <td>1</td> <td>12.065</td> <td></td> <td>T</td> <td>Ţ</td> <td>1</td> <td>2.558</td> <td>2.708</td> <td>1</td> <td></td> <td>T</td> <td>33.171</td> <td>0.840</td>	48		Cirrhinus reba	Raik	1	12.065		T	Ţ	1	2.558	2.708	1		T	33.171	0.840
Laboo logaBhangan 0.056 0.056 0.056 0.056 1.356 Laboo carbasuKahaus $Goni$ 0.056 0.056 0.056 0.066 Laboo carbasuKahaus $Goni$ 0.036 0.036 0.036 0.066 Laboo carbasuKahaus $Rahaus$ $Goni$ 0.036 0.036 0.066 0.660 Laboo carbasuKahausRain 2.213 8.233 0.074 0.661 0.660 Sulmostora becalaKahauRain 2.213 8.233 0.074 0.661 0.660 Sulmostora becalaKahauChapia 2.213 8.233 0.074 0.661 0.661 Sulmostora becalaKahauChied 2.213 4.171 0.544 1.433 SubnostCulusia chapraBain tengra 2.330 1.133 0.074 0.376 SubnostKahaishaChied 0.181 0.003 2.744 1.673 2.334 SubnostKahaisha 1.123 0.003 2.744 1.673 2.6465 1.336 FoodplainMystus tengaraByjari tengra 2.330 1.133 0.003 2.744 1.673 2.334 FoodplainMystus tengaraByjari tengra 2.330 1.133 0.003 2.744 0.035 FoodplainMystus tengaraByjari tengra 2.330 1.133 0.003 2.744 0.003 Colisa labiosusKhalishaColisa labiosusKhalisha	8		Labeo bata	Bata	U	23.204		1	1	1	1	0.150	0.289	1	I	3.855	0.098
Laboo cafrastKafaatsKafaatsKafaats 0.006 0.006 0.006 0.006 Laboo gonitsGoniGoniRui 0.036 $ 0.048$ Laboo gonitsGoniKafari 2.213 8.233 0.074 $ 7.437$ Sulmostora phuloFichela 2.213 8.233 0.074 $ -$ Sulmostora phuloFichela 2.213 45.17 0.564 $ -$ Gudusia attuBaalChiapia 2.213 45.17 0.564 $ -$ Notopterus chialaChiapia 2.213 45.17 0.564 $ -$ <td< td=""><td>01</td><td></td><td>Labeo boga</td><td>Bhangan</td><td>a</td><td>8</td><td>0.056</td><td>1</td><td>T</td><td>1.356</td><td>1</td><td>0.576</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>1</td><td>27.339</td><td>0.692</td></td<>	01		Labeo boga	Bhangan	a	8	0.056	1	T	1.356	1	0.576	1	1	1	27.339	0.692
	02		Labeo calbasu	Kabaus	1	1	1	1	1	0.609	0.376	0.933	1.	1	1	19.928	0.505
Labeo rohitaRui 2.213 0.036 -1 -1.673 1.439 Salmostora bacailaKatari 2.213 -0.044 -1 -1.673 1.439 Salmostora bacailaFulchela 8.233 0.074 -1 -1.673 1.439 Salmostora phuloFulchela 2.213 4.540 -1 -1.673 1.439 Salmostora phuloChapliaBoal -1.640 -1.640 -1.673 2.445 1 Wallagu attuBoal -1.640 -1.640 -1.673 2.6465 1 Notopterus chitalaChital -1.233 0.035 0.187 0.641 -1.673 2.6465 1 ShotalMystus tengaraEloodplainMystus tengara -1.673 2.6465 1 1.356 SubotalMystus vitatusColisa labicusKhalisha -1.123 0.033 2.274 10.000 1.5354 2.323 ResidentMystus vitatusKhalisha -1.123 0.003 2.000 2.5093 0.741 Osita labicusLal khalisha -1.123 0.003 2.000 2.5093 0.741 Colisa labicusColisa labicusLal khalisha -1.123 0.003 2.000 2.5093 0.741 Colisa labicusColisa labicusLal khalisha -1.123 0.003 2.000 2.5093 0.741 Colisa labicusColisa labicusColisa labicusLal khalisha -1.123 0.003 2.000 2.5091	3		Labeo gonius	Goni	1	1	1	1	T	0.468	T	Т	1	U.	1	7.440	0.188
Salmostorma bacailaKatari $ZatariLoff1.6731.439Salmostorma bacailaFulchelaE talchela1.640 -Salmostorma phuloEudusia chapraClaudusia chapraC tapala -<$	07		Labeo rohita	Rui	J.	0.036	1	1	Т	7.627	1.720	2.049	1	T	Т	145.910	3.695
Sulmostorma phuloFutchelaFutchela 8.233 0.074 $ 10.611$ Gudusia chapraGudusia chapraChaplaChapla 1.640 $ 3.979$ Wallagu attuBoalChitalChital 2.313 45.177 0.564 $ 1.673$ 2.6465 $-$ Notopterus chitalaChital 2.330 1.313 45.177 0.564 $ 1.673$ 26.465 $-$ SubtotalMystus tengaraBajari tengra 2.330 1.313 0.018 $ -$	88		Salmostoma bacaila	Katari	2.213	5	1	1	1.673	1.439	T	1	1	1	1	23.494	0.595
	89		Salmostoma phulo	Fulchela		8.233		1	1	10.611	3	11.167	1.864	9	0.878	297.330	7.530
Wallagu attu Notopterus chitalaBoai Notopterus chitalaBoaiBoaiBoaiSubtotalNotopterus chitalaChital $ -$ <td>86</td> <td></td> <td>Gudusia chapra</td> <td>Chapila</td> <td>3</td> <td>1.640</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>3.979</td> <td>0.334</td> <td>0.119</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>65.275</td> <td>1.653</td>	86		Gudusia chapra	Chapila	3	1.640	1	1	1	3.979	0.334	0.119	1	1	1	65.275	1.653
Notopterus chitataChitatChitat $ -$ <	8		Wallagu attu	Boal	1	12	1	1	T	1	0.435	6.611	0.176	1	T	68.665	1.739
Std-total Std-total 5.4517 0.564 -1.673 26.465 1 Floodplain Mystus tengara Bajari tengra -0.182 0.187 -1.673 26.465 1 Resident Mystus vitatus Tengra 2.330 1.313 $ 0.035$ Resident Mystus vitatus Tengra 2.330 1.313 $ 0.035$ Colisa fasciatus Khalisha 1.123 0.003 2.274 10.000 15.354 2.323 Colisa labiosus Khalisha $ 1.356$ Colisa labiosus Khalisha $ 2.5910$ 0.539 Colisa labiosus Khalisha $ -$	4		Notopterus chitala	Chital	1	1	1	1	Т	T	T	1.993	T	T.	Т	19.956	0.505
FloodplainMystus tengaraBajari tengraBajari tengra0.1820.187 $ -$ 0.035ResidentMystus vittatusTengra2.3301.313 $ 0.035$ ResidentMystus vittatusTengra 2.330 1.313 $ 2.5910$ 0.539 Coliss fasciatusKhalisha 1.123 0.003 2.274 10.000 15.354 2.323 Coliss labiosusKhalisha 0.121 0.026 0.068 20.000 25.093 0.541 Coliss sotaKhalisha 0.121 0.025 0.003 2.5093 0.541 Coliss sotaKhalisha 0.121 0.026 0.1021 $ 0.107$ Nenotoon cancilaKatika 0.578 0.121 0.025 $ -$ Nettorodon cancilaKatika 0.578 0.121 $ -$ <	Sub	total			2.213	45.177		Т	1.673	26.465	10.302	34.351	2.329	1	0.878	810.440	20.525
ResidentMystus vittatusTengra 2.330 1.313 -1 -1 1.356 Coliss fasciatusKhalisha 1.123 0.003 2.274 10.000 15.354 2.323 Coliss labiosusKhalisha 1.123 0.003 2.274 10.000 15.354 2.323 Coliss labiosusKhalisha -1.123 0.003 2.274 10.000 15.354 2.323 Coliss labiosusLalkhalisha -1.123 0.003 2.274 10.000 25.093 0.541 Coliss sotaKhalisha -1.121 0.002 0.068 20.000 25.093 0.541 Coliss sotaKhalisha 0.121 0.002 0.068 20.000 25.093 0.541 Coliss sotaKhalisha 0.121 0.002 0.068 20.000 25.093 0.541 Coliss sotaKhalisha 0.121 0.002 0.068 20.000 25.093 0.541 Datentodon cancilaKaika 0.578 0.121 0.025 0.107 Puntius conchoniusCanchan puti 0.578 2.3846 -1 0.074 Puntius geliusFunturioPuntunio 0.056 -1 2.657 0.704 Puntius sophorePuntus 9.926 34.784 55.698 -1 -1 -1		odplain	Mystus tengara	Bajari tengra	1	0.182		T	1	0.035	0.360	2.548	0.215	T	1	28.684	0.726
Colise fasciatusKhalisha 1.123 0.003 2.274 10.000 15.354 2.323 Colise labiosusKhalisha 1.123 0.003 2.74 10.000 15.354 2.323 Colise labiosusKhalisha 1.121 0.008 20.000 25.093 0.541 Colise sotaKhalisha 1.121 0.008 20.000 25.093 0.541 Colise sotaKhalisha 0.121 0.095 $ -$ Colise sotaKhalisha 0.778 0.121 0.095 $ -$ Nenentodon cancilaKaikka 0.578 0.121 0.095 $ -$ Osteobrama octio octioKeti 0.578 $ -$ Puntius cholaChala puti $ -$ Puntius conchoniusGiliputi $ -$ Puntius sphutunioPuntius sophorePuntius sophorePuntius sophore $ -$		sident	Mystus vittatus	Tengra	2.330	1.313		1	T	1.356	0.782	0.928	1.183	1.497	1	43.735	1.108
Colise labiosusKhalisha $ 25.910$ 0.529 Colise laliaLal khalisha $ 0.002$ 0.068 20.000 25.093 0.541 Colise sotaKhalisha $ 0.121$ 0.095 $ -$ Colise sotaKhalisha $ 0.121$ 0.095 $ -$ Colise sotaKaikka 0.578 $ 0.121$ $ -$ Nenentodon cancilaKaik $ 0.121$ $ -$ Nentric colaCatedram puti $ 0.578$ $ -$ </td <td>55</td> <td></td> <td>Colisa fasciatus</td> <td>Khalisha</td> <td>1.123</td> <td>0.003</td> <td></td> <td>10.000</td> <td>15.354</td> <td>2.323</td> <td>0.435</td> <td>0.404</td> <td>3.962</td> <td>13.705</td> <td>7.261</td> <td>105.372</td> <td>2.669</td>	55		Colisa fasciatus	Khalisha	1.123	0.003		10.000	15.354	2.323	0.435	0.404	3.962	13.705	7.261	105.372	2.669
Colise latiaLal khalisha $ 0.002$ 0.068 20.000 25.093 0.541 Colise sotaKhalisha-0.121 0.095 Colise sotaKhalisha0.578-0.1210.095Nenentodon cancilaKaikka 0.578 0.1210.095Nutrius cholaChala puti0.5780.578Puntius cholaChala puti0.254Puntius conchoniusCanchan puti2.9582.3846Puntius conchoniusGiliputi0.0560.521 <td>111</td> <td></td> <td>Colisa labiosus</td> <td>Khalisha</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>25.910</td> <td>0.529</td> <td>0.261</td> <td>1.059</td> <td>0.641</td> <td>1</td> <td>1</td> <td>34.157</td> <td>0.865</td>	111		Colisa labiosus	Khalisha	1	1	1	1	25.910	0.529	0.261	1.059	0.641	1	1	34.157	0.865
Colisa sotaKhalisha $ 0.121$ 0.095 $ -$ Xenentodon cancilaKaikka $ 0.121$ $ -$ Nenentodon cancilaKaikka 0.578 0.121 $ -$ Puntius cholaChala puti 0.578 $ -$ Puntius cholaChala puti $ -$ Puntius conchoniusCanchan puti $ -$ Puntius geliusGiliputi $ -$ <	56		Colisa lalia	Lal khalisha	1	0.002		20.000	25.093	0.541	9.188	3.662	3.303	2.320	T	105.429	2.670
Xenentodon cancilaKaikka0.1210.107Ostedorama cotio cotioKeti0.578Puntius cholaChala puti0.5780.254Puntius conchoniusChala puti-2.95823.8469.507Puntius geliusGiliputi2.95823.846Puntius solutionPhutani puti0.551Puntius solutionPuntius solutionPuntius solution9.92634.78455.6984.200	57		Colisa sota	Khalisha	1	0.121		1	1	I.	1		T	T	Т	1	
Ostechrama cotio cotioKeti0.578Puntius cholaChala puti0.578Puntius conchoniusCanchan puti2.95823.8469.507Puntius geliusGiliputi2.95823.8469.507Puntius phutunioPhutani puti2.95823.8469.507Puntius sophorePuntius sophorePuti9.92634.78455.6984.200	10		Xenentodon cancila	Kaikka	1.	0.121	Ľ	1	Т	0.107	0.202	0.407	0.905	1	1	13.623	0.345
Puntius chola Chala puti - 0.254 - 9.507 Puntius conchonius Canchan puti - 2.958 23.846 - 9.507 Puntius gelius Giliputi - - 2.958 23.846 - 9.507 Puntius gelius Giliputi - - - - 0.521 - - Puntius gelius Phutani 9.926 34.784 55.698 - 4.200	.87		Osteobrama cotio cotio	Keti	0.578	U	1	1	T	1	1	ł	T	1	1	1	
Puntius conchonius Canchan puti - 2.958 23.846 - 9.507 Puntius gelius Giliputi - - - - - - 9.507 Puntius gelius Giliputi - - - - - 0.521 - Puntius phutunio Phutani puti - - 0.036 - 2.657 0.704 Puntius sophore Puti 9.926 34.784 55.698 - 4.200	174		Puntius chola	Chala puti	3		0.254	1	1	Т	1	T	1	1	1	1	
Puntius gelius Giliputi - - - 0.521 - Puntius phutunio Phutani puti - 0.036 - 2.657 0.704 Puntius sophore Puti 9.926 34.784 55.698 - 4.200	(75		Puntius conchonius	Canchan puti	<u>_</u> 1	2.958		1	1	9.507	0.511	0.271	9.035	10.398	0.545	239.311	6.061
Puntius phutunio Phutani puti - - 0.056 - 2.657 0.704 Puntius sophore Puti 9.926 34.784 55.698 - 4.200	176		Puntius gelius	Giliputi	1	1	1	1	0.521	1	1	0.280	1	1	1	2.988	0.076
Puntius sophare Puti 9.926 34.784 55.698 - 4.200	178		Puntius phutunio	Phutani puti	1			1	2.657	0.704	1.866	0.043	0.018	5	1	17.141	0.434
	081		Puntius sophore	Puti	9.926		22410	I	1	4.200	9.503	8.602	24.260	38.528	8.901	424.218	10.743
181 Puntius terio Teri punti 8.213 0.651 2.758 + + + +	181		Puntius terio	Teri punti	8.213			1	Т	Т	1	Т	T	T	1	1	
			the second secon	and have been a set of the set of	tion Taniantia Eshanari 1004	Cabarrent 10	04										(Cont.)

126

4

1

T

2. - denotes zero catch

Ja^O

Table 7.15 Monthly catch composition (% by weight) from Anahula floodplain/beel: outside BRE (site NC08+NC09)

Species Habitat	bitat	Spea	Species name		Year: 1992					Vear - 1003	1001				ALCON DEPARTMENT	ELENON
Code Pref	Preference	Scientific	Benzali	Allo	Cen	5	May	Tune	Tuhu	- VIII		10		4	- C6 1911	LCO
212		Punting ticto	Thema	0	dan	13	(THAT		line	and	dax	ž	Nov	Dec	Kg	%
v			und ur	0.240	0/70	0.430	ŗ	0.781	T	0.661	2.719	1.377	1.690	1.404	44.303	1.122
0		Ambiypharyngodon mola	Mola	1	0.742	0.292	T	1.673	T	1	3.882	0.215	1	0.096	41.397	1.048
75		Esomus danricus	Darkina	19.446	0.789	0.573	70.000	3.756	1.513	1.093	0.471	2717	C12 2	2 746	65 887	1 660
182		Rasbora daniconius	Darkina	1	1	0.019	1	1			-		1100	2	100.00	00.1
83		Glossogobius giurus	Bailla	0.983	0.770	1 114	1	2 862	0.780	1704	1 644	1 601	0107	1100	100000	
43		Chela cachius	Chep chela	24.035				10014	81.0	K ::	107	700.0	01010	00/.0	207.701	99077
109		I enidocenhalus herdmorei	Duina					1		1	r	T	1	Ľ	l,	
110		I arithmetication and an and	p (n r		1	T		1	0.054	1	T	1	1	1	0.852	0.022
ott		Lepitoxephaius guntea	Gutum	T	1.683	1.122	r	2.509	0.264	1	1.587	0.836	0.219	15.214	54.676	1.385
7		Aplochentus panchax	Kanpona	1	Т	0.019	T	0.259	0.035	0.435	T	0.054	0.102	T	2.217	0.056
41		Channa punctatus	Taki	2.913	0.596	3.193	1	0.836	0.447	8.617	0.193	19.323	16.520	8.834	217.864	5.517
8		Heteropheustes fossilis	Shingi	2.330	1	1	1	1	0.270	T	0.053	0.289	1	1	7.185	0.187
121		Macrognathus aculeatus	Tara baim	Ţ	0.389	0.453	1	1	3.172	0.376	0.192	-1	1	1	696 85	072 1
173		Macrognathus pancalus	Guchi	3.511	1.765	0.317	T	3.644	5.193	7.029	3.636	4 226	0.794	41 831	245 445	6716
122		Mastacembelus armatus	Baral baim	3	0.888	Т	-	1	0.483	0.761		0 1 00		TOOLE	0460	1700
15		Badis badis	Nanitkoi				1	0 10	001-0	107.0		101.0		1	661.6	0.24/
145		Notonterus notonterus	Eali			1		1	7000	1.027	0.050	0.126	t	T	4.778	0.121
203		Tatracton autoritie	rou	1	1	T	1	T	1	1	T	0.820	I.	T	6.676	0.169
36		Tenadon cucuna	FOIKa	1	I	T	1	T	1	1	0.053	0.116	1	Г	1.477	0.037
3 2			Nama chanda	5.900	0.831	0.187	1	1.932	10.311	1	0.739	1.197	1	0.716	183.113	4.637
10		Chanda ranga	Lal chanda	3.688	3.036	0.287	1	2.713	13.539	2.737	4.518	1.670	0.520	0.119	282 349	7 151
214		Oryzias melastigma	Kanpona	T	1	0.019	T	1	1	1	1				-	
Subtotal	total			85.222	51.853	99.280	100.000	90.501	55.415	53.135	38.830	80.243	C1710	02 420	2338 10K	50.712
931 Other	er	Prawn spp.	Chingri/Icha	12.566	1.591	0.154	T	7.826	6.689		092.50		7367	5 600	K02.112	12:20
Subtotal	otal			12.566	1.591	0.154	1	7.826	6.689		25.760	17 276	7 787	2 600	C17:00	117:01
Gran	Grand total			1001	1001	WI I	WI.	ş	2			214-14	-04-4	Roo	CT7:000	117.01

1. No fishing activities were observed from November to December 1992, from January to April 1993 and from January to February 1994
 2. – denotes zero catch

LIBRARY.

R. P

P.

127

cies	Species Habitat	Species name	2		Year: 1992						Year: 1993	93						Year:1994	994	1 otal annual catch (Mar'93 - Feb'94)	- Feb'94
Code	Preference	Scientific	Bengali	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	May	June	July	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Ke	28
58	Rivenne	Corica soborna	Kachki	1	Ŀ	4.648	T	Т	т	т	1	Т	Т	т	T	Т	1	T	Т		
	Subtotal			1	1	4.648	Т	Т	1	T	T	1	Т	Т	Т	Т	т	Т	Т	1	
4	Migratory	Cirrhinus mrigala	Mrigel	T	Т	Т	Т	Т	Т	т	Т	Т	0.975	+	T	T	1	1	Т	1.848	0.135
	Subtotal			Т	T	Т	1	1		Т	-1-	Т	0.975	T	T	Т	T	Т	T	1.848	0.135
9	Hoodplain	Anabas testudineus	Koi	T	T	Т	1	7	7.728	1	т	T	6.051	T	T	T	T	T	T	31.338	2.289
137	resident	Mystus vittatus	Tengra	1	4.499	Ţ	Ţ	1.472	2.618	T	-	1	T	1	Ţ	1	1	-1	1	6.733	0.492
55		Colisa fasciatus	Khalisha	1.794	18.498	35.466	13.285	14.832	5.471	T	ſ	T	31.078	17,800	6.760	52.495	31.728	8.897	17.086	373.524	27.278
211		Colisa la biosus	Khalisha	1	Ţ	1	1	1	1	1	Т	13.095	- 04-	1.020			1	1	1	2.247	0.164
56		Colisa lalia	Lal Khalisha	1.931		Ţ		1	T	T	-1	-	1	1	1.468	Т	-1	-1	Т	2.526	0.184
2		Colisa sota	Khalisha	11.612	10.676	14.703	52.959	16.834	1.616	1	1	1	13.982	1	1	6.338	12.107	14.169	1	72.669	5.307
175		Puntius conchonius	Canchan puti	ľ	1	1	1	0.575	0.022	1	1	31.940	0.196	1.290	0.189	0.282	1,808	4.613	1	7.939	0.580
176		Puntius gelius	Giliputi	1	1	0.067	Т	U	r	1	1	1	r	0.925	2.106	0.028	T	-1	-1	4.976	0.363
178		Puntius phutunio	Phutani puti	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	T	1	2.213	10.723	4.138	1	1	1	1	25.503	1.862
180		Puntius sophore	Puti	12.234	28.997	12.716	12.863	22.524	10.605	T	Т	1		10.536	10.748	4.221	3.618	3.624	-1	138.609	10.122
212		Puntius ticto	Tit puti	2.561	1	0.067	1	-1	-1	Т	-	T		-	0.150	'	1	1	1	0.259	0.019
5		Amblypharygodon mola	Mola	I	0.217	T	0.121	0.368	-1	Т	-	-1	0.049	14.799	1	0.062	1	1	1	10 050	1 458
75		Esomus danneus	Darkina	1	0.433	0.598	2.054	0.118	0.784	T	1	-1		0.794	3.009	1 550	1 530	1 483	-1	FC0 91	926 1
182		Rasbora daniconius	Darkina	2.060	1	1	7	1	1	1	1	-1	1	1	1	1		1	1		1
83		Glossogobius giurus	Bailla	T	Ţ	-1	0.544	0.877	0.035	T	1	T	1		0.946	1	1	1318	-1	2242	164
110		Lepidocephalus guntea	Gutum	5.548	606.0	2.390	4.952	0.710	0.546	15.796	Т	Т	0.951	-	Ţ	4.323	11.272	2.306	26.421	33.266	2.429
6		Aplocheilus panchax	Kanpona	1	0.044	0.199	0.422	1	0.058	Т	ī	1	T	1360	2.784	0.110	0.695	1	1	7.662	0.560
9		Channa orientalis	Cheng	1	1	T	T	1	t	Т	1	T	T	Т	2.558	0.827	1	-1	1	8.205	0.599
4		Channa punctatus	Taki	13.626	26.988	16.161	5.677	29.217	28.411	- 10	100.000	52.356	2.937	3.628	10.553	19.725	28.056	25.041	27.334	268.112	19.580
5		Channa striatus	Shol	Ľ	I	Ţ	1	1	11.017	T	1	r	Т	Т	2.934	1	1	1	1	33.383	2.438
49		Clarias batrachus	Magur	1	1	1	1	1.031	6.546	1	1	T	1	Ţ	1	Ŀ	1	23.066	1	26.025	1.901
88		Heteropneustes fossilis	Shingi	2.134	1.730	2.093	1.329	9.779	18.380	Т	T	2.609	1.030	1	3.385	7.641	3.896	6.425	797.97	96.023	7.012
121		Macrognathus aculeatus	Tara baim	0.191	0.606	0.465	I	1	1	Т	T	T	T	1	2.859	1	,	ł	1	4.921	0.359
123		Macrognathus pancalus	Guchi	3.415	3.980	1.660	0.181	1.219	5007/1	53.949	Т	T	2.178	1.701	0.677	1.042	2.227	6.096	10.929	26.961	1.969
138		Nandus nandus	Bheda	0.083	T	1	T	1	0.862	T	Т	T	T	1	2.155	0.291	-1	1	1	7.263	0.530
15		Badis badis	Napit koi	3.117	0.390	2.261	1.872	1	0.079	2.612	T	Т	0.953	0.907	2.633	0.145	1	0.823	3.189	9.050	0.661
124		Monopterus cuchia	Kuchia	1	1	1	1	T	0.132	Ţ	Ţ	T	Т	1	1	1	1	J	1	0.340	0.025
148		Ompok pabda	Madhu pabda	1	1	0.531	12	Ţ	1.436	I,	Ļ	T	Т	1	T	1	1	T	1	3.694	0.270
203		Tetraodon cutcutia	Potka	1	1	1	1	1	1	Т	1	T	0.340	T	1	T	1	1	T	0.645	0.047
36		Chanda nama	Nama Chanda	T	0.130	T	Ţ	T	T	1	Т	Т		0.925	1	1	1	0.823	1	1.552	0.113
37		Chanda ranga	Lal chanda	2.561	0.087	0.199	T	T	т	1	т	Т	0.025 2	28.655	T	0.110	-	1.318	T	38.995	2.848
-	Subtotal			62.866	98.183	89.575	96.257	99.556	99.873	72.357 10	100.000 10	100.000	6 005.16	95.062 6	60.053 5	99.273	96.939 1	100.000	94.755	1271.545	92.860
931	Other	Prawn spp.	Chingn/Icha	37.134	1.817	5.777	3.743	0.443		27.643	т	Т	7.524	4.938 3	39.947	0.727	3.062	1	5.245	95.926	7.005
	Subtotal			37.134	1.817	5.777	3.743	0.443	0.126	27.643	т	Т	7.524	4.938 3	39.947	0.727	3.062	Т	5.245	95.926	7.005
	Grand total			100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	1369.319	100

128

1

1

T

T

1

our

							10-	LEGEND				
Table 7.17	Table 7.17 Breeding seasons of selected fish, BRE, October 1992 – February 1	isons of selver 1992 – F		le and ou	inside and outside the 994		Peak seaso 20-506 fi sh < 20% fish rip 0% fish rip No data	Peak season > 50% fish ripe, ripe running, speat 20–50% fish ripe, ripe running, speat <20% fish ripe, ripe running, speat 0% fish ripe, ripe running, speat No data	speat	5 (*	
							Note: Numb	Note: Numbers quoted are numbers of fish examined	examined			
Habitat	Species name	s name		Inside/		Vaile: 1007						H
Preference	Scientific	Bengali	Habitat	Outside BRF Site	E Site	Oct New Dec		Ycar: 1993				
Riverine	Aspidoparia morar	Piali	Main river	Outside	IOWN	-		June July Aug	T			Ja
species			Secondary river	Outside	NC06		1	0			0	-
	Barilius evezardi		Secondary river	Outside	NC06						0	╉
	Nemacheilus botia	Balichata	Secondary river	Outside	NC06		No. of Concession, No. of Conces	c 07	07	n .	-	╉
	Rhinomugil corsula	Khorsula	Main river	Outside	NC01			E E		-	9	╉
					IOWN		•			7		
	Ailia coila	Kajuli	Main river	Outside	NC01		,	c +				-
					10MN			•			4 -	
			Secondary river	Outside	NC06			e e o ie			+	4
	Clupisoma garua	Ghaura	Secondary river	Outside	NC06		-	7 6	5	+ 1	-	╉
	Gagata youssouff	Gang tengra	Main river	Outside	NC01		-	3			4	-
					NW01						0	
			Secondary river	Outside	NC06				4 0			0
Migratory	Mystus bleekeri	Golsha tengra	Secondary river	Inside	01MN			Total State State State	0			+
species	Mysnus cavasius	Kabashi	Main river	Outside	IOWN			And the first is the second se		2		-
			Secondary river	Outside	NC06			•		:	-	₹ (
	Circhinus reha	Rait	Canada and alive		A STATE OF			7		11	-	6

Current

	mee Istantist Description Itabilist Outside BNR State Det Not Retribute encount Pail Main Free Outside BNR State Det Not Retribute encount Pail Main Free Outside BNR State Det Not Retribute encount Annu Free Outside BNR Not Not Not Retribute encount Annu Free Outside BNR Not Not Not Annu Free Outside BNR Not Outside BNR Not Not Allia colin Annu Free Outside BNR Not Not Not Allia colin Annu Free Outside BNR Not Not Not Allia colin Annu Free Outside BNR Not Not Not Allia colin Annu Free Outside BNR Not Not Not Allia colin Annu Free Outside BNR Not Not Not Annu Freen Outside RNN Not <th>Image: Second structure June July Aug. Sep Oct 11 1 6 7 11 1 6 9 1 1 20 5 28 1 3 3 3 3 3 1 2 3 3 3 3 3 1 2 2 3<</th>	Image: Second structure June July Aug. Sep Oct 11 1 6 7 11 1 6 9 1 1 20 5 28 1 3 3 3 3 3 1 2 3 3 3 3 3 1 2 2 3<
Application term Paid South frieter Outlie New Paid Control New Paid Control New Paid	Argidopucia motor Piali Main river Outside NW01 NW01 Renthira evezanti Bandra river Outside NC06 NC01 Naturobelluz bolin Bandra river Outside NC01 NC01 Naturobelluz bolin Bandra river Outside NC01 NC01 Naturobelluz bolin Main river Outside NC01 NC01 Main civer Outside NC01 NC01 NC01 Montu fleckeri Goldan tengra Secondary river Outside NC01 NC01 Montu fleckeri Kanaki Main river Outside NC01 NC01 NC01 NC01 Montu fleckeri Goldan tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 NC01 NC0 Montu fleckeri Kanaki Main river	III Date July Aug Sep Oct. Nov. Dec Jan II 1 20 5 3
Mediatu recardi Decondentriere Conditi Notion	Benchary trivet Dunside NC06 Image: NC06 Image: NC06 Image: NC01 Image: NC01 <thi< td=""><td>1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 2 11 1 1 1 2 11 2</td></thi<>	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 2 11 1 1 1 2 11 2
Member resontis Econdaryteris Otadia Notati	Burlins: Burlins: Secondary river Outside NC06 NC06 Remanderliks borins Residentian Secondary river Outside NC001 NC001 Remanderliks borins Renormality Ann river Outside NC001 NC001 Attin colla Knoming Renormality Renormality NC001 NC001 NC001 Attin colla Knoming Collation Secondary river Outside NC001 NC001 Attin colla Knoming Collation Secondary river Outside NC001 NC001 Attin colla Knoming Collation Secondary river Outside NC001 NC00 Attin colla Gaug tengra Main river Outside NC001 NC00 NC00<	20 5 28 5 5 1 1 6 1 1 3 4 1 1 3 3 4 1 1 2 1 21 9 1 2
Memandricker konsis Resonancysis Seconancysis Nones	Neumotelits botis Bailchna Scondary river Ouside NC06 NC06 Atila colla Khorsula Main river Ouside NC01 NC01 Atila colla Khorsula Khorsula Main river Ouside NC01 NC01 Atila colla Kojuli Main river Ouside NC06 NC01 Main river Cluprison guna Gang reagra Main river Ouside NC01 NC01 Mystus thefeteri Gotha rengen Scondary river Ouside NC01 NC01 NC01 Mystus treba Kabasti Kabasti Scondary river Ouside NC06 NC06 NC06 NC01 NC01 NC01 NC01 NC01 NC06 NC01 NC06 NC01	3 1 6 1 6 1 1 6 1 6 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 2 1 1 2 1 2
Rute media contrait Seconda Main friet Contrait Notifie	Rhinomugli acreaula Korata Main river Outside NCO1 NCO1 Alifa colla Köjüli Main river Outside NCO1 NCO1 Alifa colla Köjüli Main river Outside NCO1 NCO1 Alifa colla Köjüli Ganuta Secondary river Outside NCO0 NCO0 Organa youssoufi Gang tengra Main river Outside NCO0 NCO0 Mystus carrasius Gang tengra Köhan river Outside NCO0 NCO0 Mystus carrasius Köhan river Outside NCO0 NCO0 NCO0 Mystus carrasius Köhan river Outside NCO0 NCO0 NCO0 Secondary river Outside NCO0 NCO0 NCO0 NCO0 NCO0 Salarostoma bucalia Köntri Main river Outside NCO0 NCO0 NCO0 NCO0 Salarostoma bucalia Köntri Main river Outside NCO0 NCO0 NCO0 NCO0	3 1 0 3 3 4 1 1 2 3 4 21 9 2 2
Alia cola Lyoid Lyoid Num Num Secondary friet Num Secondary friet Num Secondary friet Secondary friet <td>Alia colla Kajuli Main river Outside NW01 Alia colla Kajuli Anin river Outside NC01 NW01 Clapicona garaa Gabaura Secondary river Outside NC06 N Gagna yousoufi Gabar tengra Secondary river Outside NC01 N Mysuus anasius Gadaa tengra Secondary river Outside NV01 N Mysuus anasius Gadaa tengra Secondary river Outside NV01 N Mysuus anasius Kabaati Main river Outside NV01 N N Mysuus ravasius Kabaati Secondary river Outside NV01 N N Sulfnostorma boacella Kabaati Main river Outside NV01 N</td> <td>3 3 1 1 3 2 1 21 9 2 33 4</td>	Alia colla Kajuli Main river Outside NW01 Alia colla Kajuli Anin river Outside NC01 NW01 Clapicona garaa Gabaura Secondary river Outside NC06 N Gagna yousoufi Gabar tengra Secondary river Outside NC01 N Mysuus anasius Gadaa tengra Secondary river Outside NV01 N Mysuus anasius Gadaa tengra Secondary river Outside NV01 N Mysuus anasius Kabaati Main river Outside NV01 N N Mysuus ravasius Kabaati Secondary river Outside NV01 N N Sulfnostorma boacella Kabaati Main river Outside NV01 N	3 3 1 1 3 2 1 21 9 2 33 4
Affit online Equit Main frace Outide NOUT Mont Image Ima Image Image	Alia colla Kajuli Main river Outside NC01 NC01 Cuprisonna gruna Grang teagra Secondary river Outside NC01 NC01 Organa youssoufi Gang teagra Secondary river Outside NC01 NC01 Myraus leteleri Goldan tengra Secondary river Outside NC01 NC01 Myraus carastus Kanati Secondary river Outside NC06 NC06 Myraus carastus Kanati Secondary river Outside NC06 NC06 Main river Outside NC06 NC06 NC06 NC06 Salmostoma buculin Kanati Main river Outside NC06 NC06 Salmostoma poulo Fulcht di Secondary river Outside NC06 NC06 Salmostoma poulo Fulcht di Secondary river Outside NC06 NC06 Main river Outside NC06 NC06 NC06 NC06 Main river Outside NC06 NC06	1 3 1 2 11 2 2 11 2 2 11 2 2 11 2 2 11 2 2 11 2 2 11 2 2 11 2 2 11 2 2 11 2 2 11 2 2 11 2 2 11 2 2 11 2 2 11 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 <th2< th=""> <th2< th=""></th2<></th2<>
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	Physical free for the secondary river NW01 NW01 NW01 Cluprisona grun Chaura Secondary river Outside NC06 N Clagra youscouff Gaag reagra Main river Outside NC01 N Mysus carraaius Kaheati Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mysus carraaius Kaheati Main river Outside NC06 1 Mysus carraaius Kaheati Main river Outside NC06 1 Salmostoma bucalin Kani Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Salmostoma puulo Fulch dia Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Salmostoma puulo Fulch dia Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Salmostoma puulo Fulch dia Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Salmostoma puulo Fulch dia Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mysus riser and Bacha Secondary river Outside NC06 <td>9 2 2 33 4 1 2</td>	9 2 2 33 4 1 2
Curptional prior Consider river (anginum prior) Secondary river (anginum prior) Consider river (angi	Clupisona gruna Cânarra Secondary river Ouside NC06 Cagona ycussouff Gang reagra Main river Ouside NC01 Mysnus kleekeri Gang reagra Secondary river Ouside NC06 Mysnus kleekeri Goldhn nengra Secondary river Ouside NC06 Mysnus envasius Kabašti Secondary river Ouside NC06 1 Mysnus envasius Kabašti Secondary river Ouside NC06 1 Mysnus envasius Kahari Secondary river Ouside NC06 1 Salmostoma bacalla Katari Main river Outide NC06 1 Salmostoma bacalla Katari Main river Outide NC06 1 Gudusia daapra Katari Main river Outide NC06 1 Gudusia daapra Europii river Outide NC06 1 1 Mystus stargura Backa Secondary river Outide NC06 1 Mystus stargur	9 2 2 33 4 -
Optimization Chained print Consider riter Oundid NCOID <	Clupisional patria Chaura Secondary river Ouside NC06 Agena yousoouf Gang reagra Main river Ouside NC01 NC01 Mysus theekeri Goldn rengra Secondary river Ouside NC06 Image Mysus carastus Kabashi Bain river Ouside NC06 Image Mysus carastus Kabashi Secondary river Ouside NC06 Image Mysus carastus Kabashi Secondary river Ouside NC01 20 Salmostoma buculo Fulch cia Secondary river Ouside NC06 Image Salmostoma puulo Fulch cia Secondary river Ouside NC01 20 Gudusia chapra Chapita Secondary river Ouside NC06 Image Min Fulch cia Secondary river Ouside NC06 Image Gudusia chapra Chapita Secondary river Ouside NC06 Image Mutus crapara Bacha Secondary river Ouside	4 4
Cupper possould Gag rages Muin trier Notion <	Qagata youssouff Gagata youssouff Gagata river Muid Number Number<	F
101 Kwoin theferic Secondary river Nwoin Kwoin Kwo	NY Mostus theekeri Galdia tengra Secondary river Numple Numple Mystus carvastus Galdia tengra Secondary river Ouside NV01 N Mystus carvastus Kabashi Secondary river Ouside NV01 N Mystus carvastus Kabashi Secondary river Ouside NV01 N Salmostoma bucalin Kabashi Secondary river Ouside NC06 N Salmostoma bucalin Kabashi Secondary river Ouside NC01 N Salmostoma bucalin Kabashi Secondary river Ouside NC06 N Salmostoma phulo Fulchela Secondary river Ouside NC06 N Salmostoma phulo Fulchela Secondary river Ouside NC06 N Salmostoma phulo Fulchela Secondary river Ouside NC06 N Mystus titants Cladusia chapra Bacha Secondary river Ouside NC06 N Mystus titants Ten	
Manu kleekeri Golda nove Secondarytiere Outie Note Manu kleekeri Golda nove Secondarytiere Outie Nove Manu kleekeri Secondarytiere Outid Manuk Manu kleekeri	Mynus likeekeri Golsha tengra Secondary river Inside NW01 N Mysrus carvasius Kabashi Becondary river Outside NW01 Mysrus carvasius Kabashi Becondary river Outside NC06 Chrhinus rebu Raik Secondary river Outside NC06 Salmostoma bacalla Katari Main river Outside NC06 Salmostoma bacalla Katari Main river Outside NC06 Salmostoma bacalla Katari Main river Outside NC06 Salmostoma bacalla Katari Main river Outside NC06 Salmostoma bacalla Katari Main river Outside NC06 Salmostoma bacalla Katari Bacha Secondary river Outside NC06 Min Gadusia river Outside NC06 NC06	-
Worst freekering Goldst regres Secondistry free Display With free Display Multi Display Display <thdisplay< th=""> Display Displ</thdisplay<>	Mysnus kleekeri Goldan iengra Secondary river Inside NW19 Image Mysnus cavaaius Kabashi Main river Outside NW01 Image Krathinus reba Kabashi Main river Outside NC06 Image Salmostoma bacalin Katari Main river Outside NC06 Image Salmostoma bacalin Katari Main river Outside NC06 Image Salmostoma bacalin Katari Main river Outside NC06 Image Salmostoma bacalin Fulch cla Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Salmostoma bacalin Fulch cla Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Gudusia dhapra Chapila Outside NC06 Image Image Gudusia dhapra Bacha Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Main river Outside NC06 NC06 Image Image Main river Outside NC06 NC06<	
Monta cirradua Gobaci Number circle Conside Neutron Conside Neutron <td>Mysus carasius Kabashi Main river Outside NWOI NWOI Chrhinus reba Raik Secondary river Outside NCO6 N Chrhinus reba Raik Secondary river Outside NCO6 N Salmostoma bacalia Kitani Main river Outside NCO6 N Salmostoma poulo Fulchela Secondary river Outside NCO6 N Salmostoma poulo Fulchela Secondary river Outside NCO6 N Salmostoma poulo Fulchela Secondary river Outside NCO6 N Gudusia chapra Chapila Main river Outside NCO6 N Gudusia chapra Chapila Muscue Outside NCO6 N N Mystus tengara Bacha Secondary river Outside NCO6 N N Mystus tengara Baljari tengra Secondary river Outside NCO6 N Mystus tengara Bacha Secondary river<!--</td--><td></td></td>	Mysus carasius Kabashi Main river Outside NWOI NWOI Chrhinus reba Raik Secondary river Outside NCO6 N Chrhinus reba Raik Secondary river Outside NCO6 N Salmostoma bacalia Kitani Main river Outside NCO6 N Salmostoma poulo Fulchela Secondary river Outside NCO6 N Salmostoma poulo Fulchela Secondary river Outside NCO6 N Salmostoma poulo Fulchela Secondary river Outside NCO6 N Gudusia chapra Chapila Main river Outside NCO6 N Gudusia chapra Chapila Muscue Outside NCO6 N N Mystus tengara Bacha Secondary river Outside NCO6 N N Mystus tengara Baljari tengra Secondary river Outside NCO6 N Mystus tengara Bacha Secondary river </td <td></td>	
Christient elsen Secondary triver Ounde NC60	Cirrhinus reba Raik Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Cirrhinus reba Raik Secondary river Outside NC06 NC06 Image Salmostoma bacaila Kanri Main river Outside NC06 NC01 20 Salmostoma bacaila Fairti Main river Outside NC06 N 1 Salmostoma phulo Fulchela Secondary river Outside NC06 1 1 Salmostoma phulo Fulchela Secondary river Outside NC06 1 1 Gudusia chapra Chaptia Main river Outside NC06 1 1 Feudeutroprius atherinoid Bacha Secondary river Outside NC06 1 1 Mystus vitanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 1 Mystus vitanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 1 Mystus vitanus Tengra Secondary river O	3
Chrimitstrefen Ruik Secondarytier Outlide NG6 N Selfnorscene breadin Kanti Main river Outlide NC0 2 1	Cirrhinus reba Raik Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Salmostoma bacaila Katari Main river Outside NC06 Image Salmostoma bacaila Katari Main river Outside NC06 Image Salmostoma bacaila Fuichela Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Salmostoma phulo Fuichela Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Gudusia drapra Chapila Main river Outside NC06 Image Peudeutroprius atherinoid Bacha Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Mystus tengara Bajari tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Mystus tengura Bajari tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Mystus vittatus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Mystus vittatus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Mystus vittatus Teng	2
Selanotoran bracia Kitori Main river Oratide NCOI 20 12 12 12 12 Selanotoran bracia Feodophin NNOI 20 1 2 2 2 1 2 4 Senotary river Outside NNOi NNOi N 1 1 2 2 3 2 1 <td>Salimostoma bacalla Katari Main river Outside NC01 20 Salimostoma poulo Fulchela Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Salimostoma poulo Fulchela Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Salimostoma poulo Fulchela Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Gudusia chapra Chapila Secondary river Outside NC06 4 Develorutroprius atherinoid Bana' Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus tengura Bajari tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus vittanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus vittanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus vittanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Outside NC06 NC06 NC06 1 1 Mystus vittanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus vittanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus vittanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC07 <td< td=""><td></td></td<></td>	Salimostoma bacalla Katari Main river Outside NC01 20 Salimostoma poulo Fulchela Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Salimostoma poulo Fulchela Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Salimostoma poulo Fulchela Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Gudusia chapra Chapila Secondary river Outside NC06 4 Develorutroprius atherinoid Bana' Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus tengura Bajari tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus vittanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus vittanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus vittanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Outside NC06 NC06 NC06 1 1 Mystus vittanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus vittanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus vittanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC07 <td< td=""><td></td></td<>	
Allocations Evendary river NWO 20 Submotions Fuldadis Secondary river NWO 20 1 1 1 Submotions Fuldadis Secondary river Outside NKOS 7 3 1 1 1 Submotions Fuldadis Secondary river Outside NKOS 7 3 3 20 Fundadis chapters Caprilis Main river Outside NKOS 7 3 3 20 Predicturryrine Babin Secondary river Outside NKOS 7 3 4 1 <	Multiply	12 4
Manustrant pluio Fuldation Secondary river Outside NC06 1 1 1 1 Valuatorant pluio Fuldatia Secondary river Outside NC06 Inc. 2	Salmostoma pluio Fuichela Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Salmostoma pluio Fuichela Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Gudusia chapra Education Eacondary river Outside NC09 4 Gudusia chapra Chapila Main river Outside NC09 4 Eutropriichthys racha Bacha Secondary river Outside NC06 7 Readeutroprius atherinoid Bana's Secondary river Outside NC06 7 Mystus vitanus Bajari tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus vitanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 7 Mystus vitanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus vitanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 7 Mystus vitanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus vitanus Tengra Secondary river	n •
Sulfacestorary pludo Fundaday river Outside NC06 Image <	Salmostoma plulo Fulchela Secondary river Outside NC06 Gudusia chapra Chapila Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Gudusia chapra Chapila Main river Outside NC06 Image Gudusia chapra Chapila Main river Outside NC06 Image Europriechthys randm Bacha Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Pseudeutroprius atherinoid Banai Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Mystus tengara Bajari tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Mystus tengara Bajari tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Mystus titanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC07 Image Mystus titanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC07 Image Colisa flascianus Khalisha Secondary river Outside NW19 Image Colisa flascianus Khalisha Secondary river Outside NW19 Image Colisa flascianus Khalisha Secondary river Outside NW19 Image Colisa flascianus Khalisha Sec	-
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	Inside Nw19 Inside Nw19 Inside Nw19 Gudusia chapra Chapila Main river Outside NC09 Inside NC09 Inside NC09 Inside NC09 Inside NC09 Inside NC06 Inside NC06 Inside NC06 Inside	-
Induction Floadplin Outside NCOS Image	Floadplain Floadplain Outside NC09 A Gudusia chapra Chapilia Main river Outside NW01 4 Eutropridhys vacha Bacha Secondary river Outside NC06 4 Eutropridhys vacha Bacha Secondary river Outside NC06 4 Pseudeutroprius atherinoid Bana's Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus tengara Bajai tenga Secondary river Outside NC06 18 Mystus tengara Tenga Secondary river Outside NC06 18 Calisa fasciatus Khalisha Secondary river Outside NC06 18 Colisa fasciatus Khalisha Secondary river Outside <t< td=""><td></td></t<>	
Gudusia chapra Capila Main frier Outside NW01 4 1 Eutroprii dhips varba Bacha Secondary river Outside NC06 - - - - - - - - - - 1 -<	Guddusia chapta Chaptia Main river Outside NW01 4 Europrichthys varha Bacha Secondary river Outside NC06 4 Europrichthys varha Bacha Secondary river Outside NC06 4 Pseudeutropius atherinoid Bansi Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus tengara Bajari tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus tengara Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Colisa fasciatus Khalisha Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Colisa fasciatus Khalisha Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Aforent todon cancilin Kaikka Secondary river Outside NC07 6	20 A
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	Eutroprichthys vardna Secondary river Outside NC06 Eutroprichthys vardna Bacha Secondary river Outside NC06 Pseudeutroprius athernioid Barsi Secondary river Outside NC06 Mystus tengura Bajari tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 1 Mystus tengura Bajari tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 18 Mystus tengura Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 18 Mystus tengura Tengra Secondary river Outside NC07 1 Mystus tengura Khalisha Secondary river Outside NC06 18 Colisa fascianus Khalisha Secondary river Outside NC07 1 Zolisa fascianus Khalisha Secondary river Outside NC07 6 Aenen todon cancila Kaikka Secondary river Outside NC07 6	
Europrischens racha Bacha Secondary river Outside NC06 Image: Secondary river Outside NC06 Image: Secondary river Image: Secondary river Image: Secondary river Outside NC06 Image: Secondary river Outside NC06 Image: Secondary river Image: S	Leuropii chthys vacha Bacha Secondary river Outside NC06 Image: NC07 Image: NC06 Image: NC07	T
n Preductorprise attention attentin attention attentin attention attention attention	Insertion in the fination of the secondary river Outside NCO6 Image: NCO7	T
Mystus tengara Bajar tengar Secondary river Outside NC06 18 N N 1 20 1 21 Mystus titatus Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 18 N 1 1 20 <td>Mystus tengura Bajari tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Mystus vitanus Tengra Canal Outside NC07 Image Mystus vitanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NW19 Image Colisa fascianus Tengra Secondary river Outside NW19 Image Colisa fascianus Kitalisha Secondary river Outside NW20 Image Kenen todon cancila Kaikka Secondary river Outside NW19 Image Mentiocon cancila Kaikka Secondary river Outside NW19 Image</td> <td></td>	Mystus tengura Bajari tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 Image Mystus vitanus Tengra Canal Outside NC07 Image Mystus vitanus Tengra Secondary river Outside NW19 Image Colisa fascianus Tengra Secondary river Outside NW19 Image Colisa fascianus Kitalisha Secondary river Outside NW20 Image Kenen todon cancila Kaikka Secondary river Outside NW19 Image Mentiocon cancila Kaikka Secondary river Outside NW19 Image	
Mystus vitanusTengaCanalOutsideNC0718120121Mystus vitanusTengaSecondary riverOutsideNV19133123Colina fascianusKahikhaSecondary riverInsideNW20135123Colina fascianusKahikhaSecondary riverOutsideNW20599124Colina fascianusKahikhaSecondary riverOutsideNW2065123Colina fascianusKahikhaSecondary riverOutsideNW2065996Neme todon anacijaKaikhaSecondary riverOutsideNW20659968Neme todon anacijaKaikhaSecondary riverOutsideNW2065991231Parnius conchoniusCanalOutsideNW01659971211Parnius conchoniusCanalOutsideNW0165999111 <td>Mystus stratus Tengra Canal Outside NC07 18 Mystus stratus Tengra Secondary river Outside NW19 18 Colisa fasciatus Kitalisha Secondary river Outside NW20 18 Colisa fasciatus Kitalisha Secondary river Outside NW20 1 Colisa fasciatus Kitalisha Secondary river Outside NW20 1 Fandi Conside NW19 1 1 Mener todon cancila Kaikka Secondary river Outside NW20 Puniti condon cancila Kaikka Secondary river Outside NW20</td> <td></td>	Mystus stratus Tengra Canal Outside NC07 18 Mystus stratus Tengra Secondary river Outside NW19 18 Colisa fasciatus Kitalisha Secondary river Outside NW20 18 Colisa fasciatus Kitalisha Secondary river Outside NW20 1 Colisa fasciatus Kitalisha Secondary river Outside NW20 1 Fandi Conside NW19 1 1 Mener todon cancila Kaikka Secondary river Outside NW20 Puniti condon cancila Kaikka Secondary river Outside NW20	
TengraSecondary riverOutsideNC06182020120CanalInsideNW1913512012CanalInsideNW2013512012KhalishaSecondary riverInsideNW191351212CanalInsideNW19135512125CanalOutsideNW00659975631156KaikkaSecondary riverOutsideNC0765997631156Canchan putMain riverOutsideNC016599712112Secondary riverOutsideNC0765999112112Canchan putMain riverOutsideNC0765999112111 <td>Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 18 Canal Inside NW19 1 Khalisha Secondary river Outside NW20 1 Khalisha Secondary river Outside NW20 1 Khalisha Secondary river Outside NW09 1 Kaika Secondary river Outside NW09 6 Kaika Secondary river Outside NW20 6</td> <td></td>	Tengra Secondary river Outside NC06 18 Canal Inside NW19 1 Khalisha Secondary river Outside NW20 1 Khalisha Secondary river Outside NW20 1 Khalisha Secondary river Outside NW09 1 Kaika Secondary river Outside NW09 6 Kaika Secondary river Outside NW20 6	
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	Khalisha Laside NW19 1 Canal Inside NW20 1 Khalisha Secondary river Outside NW20 1 Canal Laside NW20 1 1 Canal Outside NW19 1 1 Kaika Canal Outside NW09 6 Kaikka Secondary river Outside NW20 6	
Canal Inside NW20 NW20 N N Khalikha Secondary river Outside NW20 1 3 5 1 1 Kaikha Secondary river Outside NW19 6 3 1 2 1 2 Kaikha Secondary river Outside NW20 6 5 9 9 7 6 31 15 8 Kaikha Secondary river Outside NW20 6 5 9 9 7 6 31 15 8 Candan put Main river Outside NW01 1 2 1 1 1 Secondary river Outside NC05 6 31 15 1 1 Candan put Main river Outside NC06 1 2 1 1 Secondary river Outside NC06 NC07 0 1 1 0 1	Canal Inside NW20 Khalisha Secondary river Outside NC06 Canal Outside NW19 Inside Canal Outside NW19 Inside Kaikka Secondary river Outside NC07 6	
Khalisha Secondary river Outside NC06 NC06 NC06 NC07 Secondary river	Khalisha Secondary river Outside NC06 Canal Unside NW19 Inside NW20 Kaikka Secondary river Outside NW20 Inside Inside	1 1 8 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
$\begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	Inside NW19 Canal Outside NC07 Inside NW20 Inside Kaikka Secondary river Outside	
Canal Outside NC07 NC07 Image	Canal Outside NC07 Kaikka Secondary river Outside NW20	13
Kaikka Inside NW20 6 31 15 88 Kaikka Secondary river Outside NC06 6 9 7 6 31 15 88 Carachan puri Main river Outside NC01 1 1 2 1 1 Secondary river Outside NC01 NW01 1 2 1 1 Secondary river Outside NC06 NC06 10 10 1 1 Canal Outside NC07 NC07 10 1 1 1	Kaikka Secondary river Duside NW20 Contract Outside NC06 0	
Kalkka Secondary river Outside NC06 NC06 NC0 N	Kaikka Secondary river Outside NC06	0 0 H H O 0
Canchan put Main river Outside NC01 Addition put NW01 NW01 Secondary river Outside NC06 Canal Outside NC07		
Iary river Nwol 12 2 1 Iary river Outside NC06 1 1 Outside NC07 10 1 1	Cananan pun Main nver Outside	
lary river Outside NC06 110 1 10 1 1		
Outside NC07 0	lary river Outside	罰
	Outside	
Outside	Floodplain Outside NC08 + NC09	

(Cont.)

Table 7.17 Breeding seasons of selected fish, inside and outside the BRE, October 1992 – February 1994

LEGEND Peak season > 50% fash ripe, ripe running, spent 20–50% fash ripe, ripe running, spent <20% fash ripe, ripe running, spent 0% fash ripe, ripe running, spent Nodata Note: Nambers quoted are numbers of fash examined

200

	Species name	ame		Inside/			5							2			YCR
Preference	Scientific	Bengali	Habitat	Outside BRE Site	Site	Oct N	Nov Dec	Jan Feb) Mar	Apr	May J	June July	Aug	Sep C	Oct Nov	ov Dec	Jan Feb
	Puntius sophore	Puti	Main river	Outside	10MN	2					Press and	197	100				
			Secondary river		NC06	20	19			-		- India		S		2 21	29
				Inside	NW19		2 4	19	1	9	7 5	25			22 21		42
			Canal	Inside	NW20	9		3 24	24					31	3 59		
			Floodplain		NC09							7	1 North	3			
	Puntius ticto	Tit puti	Secondary river	Outside	NC06										6	6	
1	Amhlvrharveodon mola	Mola	Canal		NC07							13					
	Gloscopolius siurus	Bailla	Main river		NC01		Î			-	1		NT NO		Selar 15		
	and annothing				IOWN	9 and 10 a	-			13	6	e					
			Secondary river	Outside	NC06	4	20			4	2	5	3	13	1	22	
					NW19	4	10	102	3.110	19	37	17 5	際屋	2	1000	1	3
			Canal	Outside	NC07									8			
1	Lorid combalus cuntea	Gunm	Secondary river		NC06					14	2			1	4	2	3
	a standard				NW19		1	9		17	A thereas	2 1	12010		1 29	~	2
			Canal	Outside	NC07									20	Ì		
					NW20		3	4		1					9		
1~	Channa punctatus	Taki	Secondary river	Outside	NC06	2					2						16
			•35	Inside	NW19			S	_	5	200					- Harris	2
			Canal	Inside	NW20		6	3	10	8		-			-		
	Heteropneustes fossilis	Shingi	Secondary river	Inside	61MN			15	_	5			_			-	-
			Canal	Inside	NW20		5	1	18	2							
1	Macrosmathus pancalus	Guchi	Secondary river	Outside	NC06												
×		_		Inside	61WN	1		1	_	4	149 3	36 2	100		2	31 1	_
			Canal	Outside	NC07							~	E.	9			
			Floodplain	Outside	NC08 + NC09							11	-				
				Inside	NW21				7	_				18	6 1	_	
	Chanda nama	Nama Chanda	Main river	Outside	NC01 NW01			-			1	4		1 Marshall		2	4 1
			Secondary river	Outside	NC06						10	4		32		20	
				Inside	6IMN					19	20 1	19 1			24 2	-	6 2
			Canal	Inside	NW20									T THE R			
			Floodplain	Outside	NC08 + NC09							4		-			
	Chanda ranga	Lal chanda	Secondary river	Outside	NC06	1					4				4		1
				Inside	NW19			_						9	35 2	1 Million	3
			Canal	Outside	NC07			_				2	3	3			
			Floodplain	Outside	NC08 + NC09	-						15		17		1.1.1	-
	17		2	Inside	NW21	_							8		-		

130

1

1

T

Ĩ

Figure 7.9 Seasonal variation in the number of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident fish species from Anahula floodplain/beel (site NC08+NC09, outside BRE)

24t



Katari was the first migratory species to enter the *beel* in June. Data on mean weight per individual fish indicated that this species arrived as juveniles (2 g/indiv). In July, there was an influx of 5 riverine and 8 migratory species. All species entered as small juveniles, most averaging less than 4 g/indiv. The two fish groups accounted for 38% of the monthly catch with most (26%) provided by migratory species (Fig. 7.10). The most abundant species included *piali*, *fulchela*, *rui*, *chapila*, *katari* and *bhangan*. Two of these species, *piali* and *fulchela* were found in breeding condition in the Northern Dhaleswari in May (Table 7.17). In August there was no new riverine species but 4 new migratory species appeared in catches: *mrigel*, *raik*, *golsha tengra* and *boal*. Again all were fry or juvenile fish. The most abundant species were *mrigel* (60 g/indiv), *raik* (3-7 g/indiv) and *rui* (3-6 g/indiv). *Boal* appeared as small fry averaging 5 g. Contributions to catches made by riverine and migratory species decreased in this month to 1% and 10% respectively.

During the flood drawdown in September and October, 3 new riverine and 2 migratory species appeared: *Kachki* (0.3 g), *ghaura* (25 g), *bata* (14 g) and *chital* (180 g). It is obvious from the mean size of *kachki* that spawning had occurred in adjacent rivers in August and September. Catch contributions by riverine species continued to decline to very low levels during this period; however the percentage catch of migratory species increased sharply in September to 34% before falling considerably in October (2%). The most abundant migratory species in September included *fulchela*, *boal*, *mrigel*, *catla*, *raik* and *rui*. Average weights indicated that these species were again juveniles of the year.

7.5.2 Regulated Nandina floodplain/beel

200

Riverine and migratory species were recorded at Nandina on only two occasions during the 17 month survey period. In December 1992 *kachki* accounted for about 5% of the monthly catch and in August 1993 juvenile *mrigel* (20 g/indiv.) provided 1% of the catch (Figs 7.11 and 7.12). It is surprising that the ingress of 6 riverine and migratory species into Nandina *Khal* during September 1993, when they comprised a peak catch contribution of 19%, had no impact on floodplain catch composition at a time of maximum flooding during the early part of the month.

Three floodplain resident species were recorded in May; gutum, guchi baim and napit koi. In June, only one species, taki, was found and in July, 4 species: khalisha, canchan puti, taki and shingi. In August there was an influx of 12 new species and a further 10 species appeared during the drawdown in September and October. Diversity remained relatively high in November before decreasing during the winter.

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

Figure 7.10 Percentage total monthly catch of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident groups of fish from Anahula floodplain/beel, (site NC08+NC09, outside BRE)



Notes: 1. See text for definition of different categories of fish based on habitat preference (Section 5.4.1) 2. Dominant species are shown for peak relative abundances of riverine and migratory fish



Figure 7.11 Seasonal variation in the number of riverine, migratory and floodplain resident fish species from Nandina floodplain/beel (site NW21, inside BRE)

2yz

134

1







FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

270

Ť

2

8 RECOMMENDED MITIGATION MEASURES

Several mitigation measures are listed below. The first six are directly relevant to the BRE impact area and are recommended for implementation in the short or near-term. These measures are also relevant to areas of proposed embankment on the left bank of the Jamuna such as the Jamalpur Priority Project and the Jamuna Multipurpose Bridge Project. The others involve broad institutional development, mainly within BWDB/WARPO, and are therefore of a longer term nature. The measures recommended for short or near-term implementation are based on the assumption that the BRE will be made structurally secure and that natural breaches no longer occur.

Formulation of the mitigation measures listed below drew a distinction between mitigation i.e. measures to reduce losses to capture fisheries caused by flood control, and compensation i.e. measures to replace such losses by culture-based techniques. Only mitigation measures are listed below. This does not imply, however, that aquaculture developments should not be encouraged. Indeed, the ODA has supported work in various aspects of fish culture in Bangladesh for many years, covering activities such as pond culture, cage culture, rice-fish culture and open-water stocking of floodplains. Many of these techniques could be developed further inside and outside areas of controlled flooding. The greater area of the BRE comprising higher floodplains, provides suitable habitats for such small-scale aquaculture developments.

However, FAP 17 studies¹⁵ have shown that considerably greater economic benefits can be derived through mitigation measures from small potential increases in capture fisheries over wide areas than from aquaculture development in the same areas. Future work should therefore focus on mitigation measures.

Within the area of 240,000 ha impacted by the BRE, there is enormous potential for the introduction of mitigation measures to reduce harmful effects of flood control on capture fisheries. Mitigation strategies must take into account topographical and hydrological characteristics of the impacted area. The measures listed below relate principally to distributary systems of the Jamuna River which extend for most of the length of BRE apart from areas in the extreme north where tributaries drain land sloping towards the Jamuna.

The proposed mitigation measures question a principal rationale of flood control: to convert low-lying wetlands to drier land where deepwater rice can be replaced with HYV *t. aman.*

Experience in Bangladesh has shown that most flood control projects have failed, for one reason or another, to achieve this objective. The BRE is no exception and in this case the reason is due to repeated breaches caused by natural erosion by the Jamuna River. An alternative approach advocated by the North West Regional Study (FAP 2), for partial flood control on lowlands to allow the production of *b. aman* or transplanted deepwater *aman*, would cause considerably less damage to fisheries providing that the degree of flood control does not substantially alter normal flooding patterns during the early monsoon.

In a recent detailed and comprehensive review, Catling¹⁶ dispelled certain myths surrounding deepwater rice. The most important of these was that yields of deepwater rice are low and usually less than 1 t/ha. Using the most complete data available in Bangladesh, Catling showed that between 1997 and 1979, yields of unmilled paddy from various parts of the country averaged 2.3 t/ha. The study was based on crop cuts from 291 fields of which 13% yielded 3 to 4 t/ha. The average yield was about 50% higher than those reported in Government statistics which indicated an average yield of about 1.5 t/ha. Three surveys carried out independently in the North West Region during 1991 reported differences in yields between HYV t. aman and b. aman of 0.9 to 1.3 t/ha, again substantially lower than that indicated by official statistics (1.7 t/ha). It is clear that a yield of just over 3 t/ha of HYV t. aman reported by farmers in the North West Region is well within the upper range of b. aman recorded in other parts of the country. Catling concluded that the yield potential for the best traditional varieties of b. aman was about 4 t/ha but in areas of flood control new varieties of deepwater rice may produce 5 t/ha. The reduced difference in yields of b. aman and HYV t. aman has considerable implications for the economic viability of many flood control projects, especially when the value of high fish losses associated with HYV t. aman production are also taken into consideration. Under these circumstances it seems probable that many projects would fail to produce viable levels of EIRR.

1. Increased fish migration across flood control structures

The supply of fish hatchlings, juveniles and adults should be increased by modification of sluice gate operating schedules. This measure is designed to reduce the negative impact of flood control on fish productivity caused by blocking movements of fish hatchlings, especially those of major carps, between rivers and floodplains at critical times of the year and by reducing the entry of adult riverine and migratory species. Hydrodynamic modelling will be needed to predict geographical areas of conflict between the water requirements of rice and fish. These should be taken into account in the design of the gate operations to

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

Dya

T

achieve an integrated approach to water management through controlled flooding. It is anticipated that this mitigation measure will also result in increased species diversity as more migratory fish will be able to move from the Jamuna River to the floodplains behind the BRE. Since there are reportedly 31 cross-flow structures along the entire length of the BRE, most of which are flushing regulators on distributaries or former distributaries of the Jamuna, there is enormous scope for mitigation using this measure. It is anticipated that canal re-excavation work will be required both outside and inside the BRE to improve flows in silted systems. Key target areas should include low-lying floodplains in the southern section of the BRE and potentially highly productive *baor*-like water bodies wherever they connect with adjacent river systems.

2. Production of deepwater rice and fish

The most effective mitigation measure to reduce losses to capture fisheries caused by flood control is to extend the recommendations of the North West Regional Study (FAP 2) for the lower Atrai basin to the impact area of the BRE. This would entail the provision of controlled river flooding on low floodplains of the BRE for the production of deepwater rice rather than an attempt to convert these seasonal wetlands into drier land by complete closure of regulators for the production of HYV *t. aman.* Observations from many floodplains in the North West Region indicate that it would also be possible to obtain a harvest of HYV *boro* during winter as well as a harvest of deepwater rice during the monsoon.

3. <u>Habitat rehabilitation and protection</u>

Important dry season habitats such as perennial *beel* and *baor* in which the magnitude, extent and duration of flooding have been severely reduced by flood control should be rehabilitated by reconnection to original feeder river systems and maintenance of adequate dry season water levels. This measure is designed to reduce the negative impact of flood control caused by loss of winter and pre-monsoon habitats. It is anticipated that canal re-excavation work will be needed inside and outside the BRE together with modifications to sluice gate operations referred to in mitigation measure number (1) above.

4. Fisheries conservation

Dry season fish sanctuaries should be established using *beel* and *kua* to protect overwintering broodstock. This measure is designed to reduce the negative impact inside flood protected

June, 1994

24.

areas of heavy fishing pressure on the remaining small areas of water during the dry season which can reduce fish productivity. It is anticipated that protection of the overwintering broodstock will result in increased recruitment of juveniles to the fishery which in turn will lead to increased productivity.

5. Prohibited fishing zones at regulators

Flood control structures which block or delay movements of fish in rivers or canals thereby increasing their susceptibility to capture should be classified as prohibited fishing zones. Fishing from the structure itself and from a set distance upstream or downstream from it should be made illegal. Distances will vary depending on the location of the structure but as an example, fishing at Bauitara regulator should be prohibited on it and for a distance of 1 km downstream.

6. Design and construction of a new type of regulator with a fish pass

A regulator should be designed and field tested so that water is controlled principally through undershot gates with outer vents to provide overshot flow to facilitate the downstream passage of fish hatchlings. Undershot gates should be sufficiently wide to generate minimum head differences across the structure when gates are fully open. This type of regulator was proposed for the Lohajang River in the Tangail Compartmentalization Pilot Project. However, in view of the current construction of the Jamuna Bridge which involves the closure of the Northern Dhaleswari River which feeds the Lohajang, a new location is needed for meaningful field trials of a new regulator design. The most appropriate location for such a regulator would be along the right and left banks of the Jamuna River in conjunction with FAP 1 activities and the construction of the Jamuna Bridge respectively. Evidence from the present study indicated that there was upstream migration from the Old Hurasagar to the Jamuna River by juveniles of several species of fish and that their movements were blocked or hindered by Bauitara regulator. There is therefore a need to test the effectiveness of a fish pass to assist the upstream passage of fish in distributaries of the Jamuna River. The design of the pass should also incorporate facilities to allow the downstream passage by passive drift of fish hatchlings as an alternative to overshot gates.

7. Monitoring biodiversity

A national capability to provide systematic quantitative information on geographical variations in diversity of aquatic resources of Bangladesh should be established. This measure is designed to improve the basic knowledge of the diversity of fish, shrimp and prawns and to identify environmental problems, including flood control, linked with reductions in biodiversity. This information can then be considered at the project identification and planning stage of future developments which impact on aquatic resources. The measure should involve the strengthening of institutions such as DoF and FRI through training in a) fish taxonomics b) procedures for the establishment of fish reference collections c) methods for planning and implementing field surveys and sample collections and d) data analysis. It is anticipated that there would be a need to assist institutions in the design and implementation of national field surveys and sample collections.

8. Strengthening of technical assessment and planning capabilities of BWDB/WARPO

There is a need to establish within BWDB/WARPO a multidisciplinary technical assessment unit comprising expertise from fisheries, agriculture, environment, hydrology and hydraulic engineering. The unit should be responsible for the re-evaluation of operating procedures of existing structures and for the examination of future flood control projects. Proposals for major new road or rail links should also be assessed by the unit in terms of their impact on flooding patterns, fisheries and agriculture. The eventual siting of the assessment unit would depend on the future roles of BWDB and WARPO.

9. Establishment of national database on FCD/I projects

A detailed and comprehensive national database should be established by BWDB to provide information on all flood control projects in Bangladesh and the major regulatory structures within these projects. The database should provide a basic description of the design and size of each structure, its function within the project area and its state of repair. Daily water level data at each structure should also be provided with computed head differences. The database should be made available, in a user-friendly form, to other government agencies.

10. Improvement of data collection by BWDB

There is an urgent need to improve the quality of data collection by BWDB personnel responsible for the operation of regulatory structures. Supervisory personnel should ensure that accurate detailed daily records are maintained of water levels at the structure (inside and outside), numbers of gates open and height to which each gate is opened. These data should be incorporated into the national database at monthly intervals.

11. Establishment of water-user groups

Local groups of water users should be established in flood control projects to represent the full range of sectors affected by modified flooding patterns. This should include capture fisheries as a water-user group. Representatives from each group should form a local committee in association with relevant government departments to establish operating procedures of regulatory structures. The committee would provide the mechanism for the establishment of local integrated water management.

12. Training within BWDB

An annual series of training courses should be established within BWDB to give engineers a basic understanding of the water requirements within each natural resource sector, focusing attention on fisheries and agriculture. The fisheries course should contain descriptions of identified adverse impacts of flood control on fish and various methods of mitigation against such impacts.

13. Development of flood modelling techniques

There is a need to continue the development of flood modelling techniques using the MIKE11 hydrodynamic model. The SWMC and FAP 19 are currently active in this field but require future support, both financial and technical, to continue to make progress. The work would require detailed field surveys to improve basic topographical information.

9 FUTURE RESEARCH REQUIREMENTS

FAP 17 investigations provided quantitative baseline data on several aspects of freshwater fisheries in various regions of Bangladesh. Because of the widespread nature of sampling effort and the relative short duration of field data collection (13-19 months), it was not possible to obtain a detailed understanding of the ecology, biology or population dynamics and movements of even the few most important floodplain fish in relation to changes in flooding patterns. It is therefore important to use the baseline data of FAP 17 as a foundation for further longer term fisheries studies which should provide both greater detail and scope of research activities.

In the formulation of future research requirements listed below, it has been assumed that the BRE will be effectively sealed against Jamuna flooding and that flooding inland will result from local rainfall and controlled flooding through regulators. A package of fisheries mitigation measures has been recommended for implementation in the short or near term. The measures will need to be supported by further research, some basic, but most adaptive. Many of the research areas listed below are relevant not only to the BRE and the adjacent FCD/I area to the immediate south in the PIRDP but also to other regions of Bangladesh. Certain areas of research - for example, the establishment of a quantitative floodplain fisheries model to predict impacts of changes in annual flooding patterns - require work inside and outside flood controlled areas. Within the BRE area, such studies can serve two purposes. Firstly, to provide a method of monitoring changes in fish yields and composition resulting from various mitigation measures. Secondly, to provide information which can be incorporated into the establishment of a fisheries production model.

1. Investigation of the biology and ecology of selected fish and prawn species dominating floodplain catches inside and outside flood controlled areas. Information collected should include data on age, breeding biology, feeding habits and micro-distributions in relation to seasonal changes in flooding and the distribution of aquatic vegetation including deepwater rice. The study should also include detailed limnological investigations which examine plankton, macroinvertebrates and water quality, particularly nutrient levels. The role of deepwater rice fields in providing shelter from certain fishing gears and natural predators in addition to providing food, should also be explored in detail. This study will provide an understanding of the overall functioning of the dominant fish and prawn community in relation to openwater habitats and deepwater rice fields.

- 2. Stock assessment using length frequency analysis and ageing techniques to obtain information on the population dynamics of selected species of fish and prawns dominating floodplain catches. This study will provide information on growth, mortality and the status of stocks and allow predictions to be made of the effects on fisheries of further increases in fishing pressure. This study is particularly relevant to flood controlled areas of the BRE project where there are high levels of fishing effort on fish communities in which diversity has been reduced and a greater dependence placed on a small number of floodplain resident species. The current status of the stocks of these species is not known.
- 3. Establishment of catch assessment surveys to obtain estimates of fish densities and yield per unit area of floodplain. These data, when collected over a period of at least five years and linked with a concomitant set of quantitative data on flooding patterns, will provide the first rational basis for the development of a quantitative floodplain fisheries model. This can then be used as a predictive tool to provide future advice on fisheries management and development.
- 4. Investigation of the movements of fish and prawns between rivers and floodplains which are free-flooding and others on which flooding is controlled. This study will require continuous daily monitoring of catches in canals linking rivers with floodplains. Tagging studies may also be employed if preliminary studies indicate that the method provides useful information.
- 5. Investigation of the movements by passive downstream drift of fish and prawn hatchlings between rivers and floodplains in relation to seasonal changes in river discharge. This study is essential on the BRE where the Jamuna River provides an annual supply of hatchlings of major carps and many other species of fish.
- 6. Investigation of the impact of water regulators on the survival and movement by passive downstream drift of fish and prawn larvae in relation to seasonal changes in river discharge. This study has particular relevance on the Brahmaputra/Jamuna and Padma rivers.
- 7. Determination of water velocities from a range of different types of structures operating under varying head differences and gate openings. These data should be

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

144

June, 1994

collected by BWDB and incorporated into a national database on water regulators (mitigation measure no. 9).

- 8. Determination of swimming speeds of selected fish species. This work requires carefully controlled laboratory flume studies and therefore the most appropriate approach may be a joint study between the Fisheries Research Institute (FRI) and the River Research Institute. Results from this study would be related to data on water velocities at regulators (No. 7 above) to provide quantitative management advice on the operation of various types of regulator.
- 9. Investigation of the physiological effects on fish of passage through regulators under different prevailing head differences. This work requires the controlled release of selected species upstream of a regulator and their subsequent capture downstream. Physiological examinations could be undertaken by FRI and or universities.
- 10. Integration of biological information derived from research studies (numbers 4-9) and flood modelling techniques to improve the predictive capability of impact assessments of flood control projects and assist in the design of future water regulator structures. This work requires institutional collaboration between fisheries research organisations and hydrodynamic modelling specialists such as the SWMC, Dhaka.
- 11. Identification of possible spawning grounds of major carps in the Brahmaputra and Padma rivers in Bangladesh and investigation of upstream breeding migrations in these rivers.
- 12. Investigation of the migrations of fish along rivers of the North Central Region to identify possible environmental factors which might explain the general scarcity of riverine and migratory species compared to some other regions in Bangladesh.
- 13. Assessment of the impact of FCD/I projects on the diversity of fish and prawns. Standardised systematic, intensive sampling is required to record not only the more common species but also the numerous rarer species which may be more vulnerable to adverse impacts caused by flood control.



REFERENCES

Reference

No.

- FAP 19 (1993). The dynamic physical and human environment of riverine charlands: Brahmaputra-Jamuna. Report prepared by FAP 16 and FAP 19. Draft report submitted to Government of Bangladesh, Flood Plan Coordination Organisation, Flood Action Plan, August 1993.
- FAP 1 (1991). River Training Studies of the Brahmaputra River. First Interim Report, Main Report. Report submitted to the Government of Bangladesh, BWDB, April 1991.
- FAP 2 (1993). The Regional Plan. Final Report of the North West Regional Study. Report submitted to Government of Bangladesh, Flood Plan Coordination Organisation, Flood Action Plan. January 1993.
- FAP 12 (1991). FCD/I Agricultural Study. Rapid rural appraisal of Brahmaputra Right Embankment, Kazipur reach. Report submitted to Government of Bangladesh, Flood Plan Coordination Organisation, Flood Action Plan. January 1993.
- FAP 13 (1991). Operation and Maintenance Study, Final Report, Volume 2. Case Studies. Report submitted to Government of Bangladesh, Flood Plan Coordination Organisation, Flood Action Plan. January 1993.
- FAP 17 (1994). Draft Final Report, Supporting Volume No. 10. Fisheries Study. The Jamuna and Padma Rivers. Report submitted to Government of Bangladesh, Flood Plan Coordination Organisation, Flood Action Plan and UK Overseas Development Administration.
- FAP 17 (1994). Draft Final Report, Supporting Volume No. 4. Fisheries Study. Pabna Irrigation and Rural Development Project. Report submitted to Government of Bangladesh, Flood Plan Coordination Organisation, Flood Action Plan and UK Overseas Development Administration.

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

- FAP 17 (1994). Draft Final Report, Supporting Volume No. 1. Fisheries Study.
 Tangail Compartmentalization Pilot Project. Report submitted to Government of Bangladesh, Flood Plan Coordination Organisation, Flood Action Plan and UK Overseas Development Administration.
- FAP 17 (1994). Draft Final Report, Supporting Volume No. 11. Fisheries Study. Movements of Fish Hatchlings. Report submitted to Government of Bangladesh, Flood Plan Coordination Organisation, Flood Action Plan and UK Overseas Development Administration.
- FAP 17 (1994). Draft Final Report, Supporting Volume No. 5. Fisheries Study. The Regulated Baral River, Report submitted to Government of Bangladesh, Flood Plan Coordination Organisation, Flood Action Plan and UK Overseas Development Administration.
- BRRI/ODA (1989). Deepwater rice project. Phase Two. Final Report submitted to Government of Bangladesh and UK Overseas Development Administration, May 1989.
- Whitton, B. A. and Rother, J. A. (1988). Environmental features of deepwater rice fields in Bangladesh during the flood season. In: Proceedings of the 1987 International Deepwater Rice Workshop, Bangkok, Thailand. International Rice Research Institute, Manila, Philippines. p. 47-54.
- Welcomme, R. L. and Haghorg, D. (1977). Towards a model of a floodplain fish population and its fishery. Environ. Biol. Fish. 2, 7-24.
- FAP 6 (1994) North East Regional Water Management Project. Fisheries Specialist Study, Volume 1, Main Report. Report submitted to Government of Bangladesh, Flood Plan Coordination Organisation. Flood Action Plan, December, 1994.
- FAP 17 (1994). Flood Action Plan 17: Fisheries Studies and Pilot Project, Phase II. Draft Project Memorandum. Prepared for the Government of Bangladesh and UK Overseas Development Administration, December 1994.
- Catling, D. (1992). Rice In Deep Water. The MacMillan Press Ltd., International Rice Research Institute (IRRI), Manila, Philippines, 542 pp.

FAP 17: Supporting Volume No. 6

1

)



Appendix 1 List of fishing gears recorded during FAP 17 surveys in Bangladesh

Gear Type	Name	Code	Description
	Current jal(Stationary)	88	
	Current jal(Drifting)	282	Monofilament drifting gill net, usually top set, any mesh size
Gill	Koi jal	123	
Net	Chandi jal	65	
	Par jal	315	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
	Kajuli jal		Multifilament drifting gill net, usually bottom set, large mesh Multifilament drifting gill net, usually bottom set, small mesh
	Awo jal		Multifilament fixed gill net set in zig-zag pattern to catch large fish
	Foot jal	327	Very small gill set horizontally at surface in shallow water
	Gai Dasem		Drifting net used in rivers, has pockets at base
	Ber jal	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	Seine net: small, medium or large size
	Baoli jal	State Contractor	Medium sized seine net pulled by 2 ropes
	Moi jal		Small drag net with pockets at base
	Dora jal	3000000000000000	Similar to moi jal but pulled by 2 long ropes
	Konaber jal	268	
	Dhor jal	89	
	Horhori		sent sent sent printe of a new of boloks on such and of hat
		297	
	Kathi jal	175	Seine net with a series of vertical sticks along net
Net	Chabi jal	293	Seine/gill net pulled to shore, often used with polo traps
	Hat panch	276	Medium size seine pulled at each end by one man while man in boat beats water to drive fish into net
	Satiber jal	304	Seine net with a series of pockets at base
	Kachitana	277	Type of lift net hung from boat on floodplain or beel. Net use with drag rope to drive fish into net.
	Ferra jal	126	Drag rope used to drive fish into gill net/seine net
	Thaga	285	Barrier across river with bag nets set perpendicular to it
Bag	Suti jal	271	Single bag net staked to river bed
Net	Ghori jal	and the second	Barricade/fence with nets set in gaps to trap fish
	Bhuti jal	328	Clap net on bamboo frame hung from boat anchored in a gap of barrier fence
	Veshal	266	Triangular lift net on large bamboo frame
Lift	Dharma jal	105	Square or round lift nets on bamboo pole
Net	Jhali jal	160	Small veshal used on main rivers at night for prawns
	Jhap jal	319	Boat lift net: lifted at 4 corners by men in boats
	Chota jal	323	
	Dara jal	329	Lift net and barrier used in canals or small rivers
Scoop	Hat Tana	Sector Margaret	Oval or triangular scoop nets used with pole and rope or by han
Net	Ucha	263	Basket scoop on pole used by hand
	Tukri	296	
	Afa/Hat bauli	321	Large thella jal, large mesh, used on boat
	Uttar jal	68	Like a cast net but hung from a boat drifting along river and lifted to catch fish
Clap Net	Shangla jal	234	Multifilament drifting bag net on bamboo frame boat used for hilsa fishing
	Katha	270	Submerged brush shelter used to attract fish
FAD	Boat Katha	314	Submerged boat filled with branches used to attract fish
	Horgra		Submerged basket filled with branches used to attract fish
	Kua		Fish pit on floodplain, invariably contains brush shelter

Appendix 1 Continued

D

Gear			
Type	Name	Code	Description
	Polo	222	Bell-shaped trap used to catch fish by hand
	Doiar trap	95	Small, oval or box traps used for prawns or small fish
Тгарв	Deal	286	Larger trap, bilaterally divided to catch fish on 2 sides of bar
	Kadum trap	311	Large box traps used to catch larger fish e.g. Koi, Taki
t	Kakila bana	310	Bamboo fence pulled downstream to trap fish in small area
	Katra	326	Active trap: fish speared after entering trap
	Kalsi pata	299	
[Kotta	318	Bunded area on floodplain used to trap fish as water recedes
	Char jal	11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	Tidal fence trap
	Kharia/Kore	330	Fence trap used on floodplain during flood recession
	Malai pata	331	
	Patar savar	States and the state of the sta	Large active fence trap used to surround fish on flooplain
	Tui	334	Small polo-type trap used to catch fish in mud on floodplain
	Daun	272	Long line: many hooks set at intervals on one line
	Sip	30	Rod and line : usually one hook per line
Hook/ Lines	Nol barsi	278	Hook & line attached to bamboo floats. Many floats/hooks may be joined along line
Spear	Tana barsi	152	Hand line (no rod) from bank or boat with or without groundbait
	Juti	170	Spears of various types: fixed or detachable barbs
	Jhaki jal	164	Multifilament circular net thrown by hand
	Thella jal	255	Small triangular push net set on bamboo frame
	Urani	291	Various barrier nets/fences used to catch jumping fish.
	Akra	298	Pole with metal hooks used to catch mud-dwelling fish e.g. baim
Other	Chunga	301	Hollow bamboo rod shelter used to attract baim
	Thushi	317	Cloth/basket traps used to drive baim into them
	Hand fishing	307	Picking fish by hand but without dewatering
	By hand/Dewatering	97	Empty water and catch fish by hand in mud
	Net/Basket+Dewatering	98	Empty water through an outlet where net or basket used to trap fish
	Nimbaich	335	Large scale fishing by whole village using many different gears
	Canal dewatering	336	Large section of canal isolated by cross dams and emptied by pumping by other means to catch fish by various methods

Notes:

- Local names of gears vary between different districts and regions in Bangladesh. Those listed in the table above are generally used in the North Central Region. If gears were not found in this region, the name from the region in which the gear was most recorded was used.
- 2. Some names e.g. juti (spear) doiar traps and hat tana were used to denote a group of similar gears. A more detailed list and description of individual gears is provided in the FAP 17 database.
- 3. FAD = Fish Aggregation Device.



